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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 Cumulative

Prentiss | 3.5% | | 34.9% | | 97% | 1L1% | 24.6% = 226% | 152.6%

Peers” | " 3% Y s, A% || B0

!
| !

142.0%

NAREIT | (4.6%) | | 26.4% 13.8% 3.8% 37.1% 31.6%

Unerating 2005 % of
Portiolig Rollgye Portfolig

Washington, D.C. 4,000 309 71.7%

‘Chicaga 2,227 104 4.7%

Déllé&Fort Worth 4,718 208 4.4%

Austiﬁ 1,673 67 4.0%

: Norfht;rn Cali;ornia | 1,772 106 6.0%

WSouthem Ealifornfa 814 126 15.5%

VOfficei 16,155 1,184 7.3%

“—=IeleNi{TeYa

Prentiss
Office Average"

W Green Street Advisors, Real Estate Securities Monthly, Febuary 2005




To our shareholders:

In our 2003 Annual Report we made
several predictions. First, we believed
that 2004, like 2003, would be a very
difficult year. Unfortunately, we were
right. Second, we predicted 2004
would mark the modest beginnings of a
recovery and third, we predicted the
recovery would accelerate in 2005. For
Prentiss Properties and the broader office
market, 2004 was truly a challenging
year; loss of occupancy and negative
mark-to-market on expiring leases pro-

B duced negative same store cash flows at
Tom August Mike Prentiss our properties. We were, however, able
President and CEO Chairman to offset some of these losses with external
growth and by reducing interest costs.
Despite this difficult environment, we
believe we were correct in predicting
that the office recovery would begin in
2004.

. e

On a national basis, the office business
experienced the best demand we've
seen since 2000. Very little new supply
was added and effective rents in most
markets have stopped declining. In a
few markets rents are actually improv-
ing. Itis too soon to tell what lies ahead
in 2005; trends suggest the recovery will
continue and accelerate this year. Both
demand and supply fundamentals
continue to strengthen. Consumer and
business confidence is up. Businesses
are projecting higher levels of hiring and
capital expenditures. Our tenants
appear to again be focused on growth.




“In 2004 we did what was necessary
to position ourselves for the upturn
in the office business.”

These conditions should create demand
for office space. The supply picture is
alsa improving. New construction defiv-
eries will continue at very low levels this
year, although we may begin to see
limited amounts of new developments in
selected markets. However, we believe
starts will stay low for the next couple of
years since most markets still do not
have high enough rents to justify significant
levels of new construction. Additionally,
the substantial increases in cement,
steel, and land prices, combined with a
175 basis point increase in 30-day
LIBOR, have caused construction costs
to increase significantly. This further
reduces the feasibility of new office
development.

Office cycles tend to be fairly long.
While 2005 is certain to present many
challenges, considering all factors, we
believe our business should improve this
year and has a reasonable prospect of
improving over the next three to four
years. In 2004 we did what was necessary
to position ourselves for the upturn in
the office business. In the rest of this
letter and annual report we will discuss
our 2004 results and what we hope to
accomplish in 2005.

2004 Results

Despite the difficult operating environ-
ment, Prentiss Properties delivered total

shareholder returns of 22.6%. While we
are pleased with these returns compared
to our office peers, broader REIT indexes
showed even better returns as office
stocks as a group underperformed the
NAREIT index for the fourth consecutive
year.

Our properties unfortunately did not
perform as well as our stock. We
entered 2004 knowing we faced daunting
challenges - our lease expiration schedule
was very heavy and we believed several
large tenants were leaving due {o space
consolidations into owned space and
business line discontinuations. This
resulted in a significant loss of office
occupancy in 2004 from 90.0% at
12/31/03 to 88.2% at 12/31/04. Our
occupancy loss, combined with an
average reduction of rent for new leases
compared to expiring leases of
approximately 9%, produced negative
same store growth. The other significant
trend was continued high levels of
capital expenditures. For the year we
spent $42.8 million on recurring capital
expenditures and leasing commissions
to maintain our buildings, and re-tenant
vacated and e)(;%mg space. This was
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Notwithstanding these problems we
achieved several noteworthy objectives
in 2004, most of which set the stage for
improvements in our business in 2005
and beyond.

1) We leased 1.8 million SF of office
space.

2} We started our first new development
since 2001 in Del Mar, California and
pre-leased the project 50%.

3) We made $267 million of acquisitions,
including several large transactions with
substantial value-add potential. Included
in these acquisitions was an empty office
building in Silicon Valley which we leased
to 72% occupancy within 45 days of
closing.

4) We exited Houston and Sacramento
and continued our long term strategy of
focusing our capital and effort on the six
markets where we believe we have
competitive advantages.

5) We closed a $510 million joint venture
fund with one of the world'’s largest
pension funds and funded approximately
$250 million of investments during our
first year. As a result of this fund and
other capital transactions we have
conservative leverage and substantial
capacity to take advantage of new
opportunities as they arise.

6) We drove our average borrowing costs
down by 62 basis points from the fourth
quarter of 2003 to the fourth quarter of
2004,

Looking forward to 2c05

We began 2004 facing significant
challenges due to extremely soft markets
and high lease expirations. As we enter
2005 our markets have improved,
demand is stronger, and Prentiss
Properties has particularly low levels of
lease maturities. These factors should
position us well to increase our occupancy
this year. We will continue to see negative
mark-to-market on our rents since
today’s expiring leases were typically
signed at the top of the market, however,
we expect improving occupancy to offset
much, if not all, of the decline in rents.
Rising interest rates will have same
negative impact. However, we have
managed our expasure to rising rates
through fixed rate debt and hedging. In
2005, here is what we expect to achieve:

1) Complete our Del Mar, California
development and lease it to stabilization.

2) Begin $100 million of new develop-
ments from our existing land inventory.

3) Acquire another $200-250 mitlion of
high quality properties in our core markets.

4) Continue to dispose of non-strategic
assets. If asset pricing continues to be
as strong as we are seeing today this
could be a bigger number than in
previous years.




“...trends suggest the recovery will

continue to accelerate this year.”

It has become clear over the last several
cycles that our different markets require
different strategies. We believe certain of
our markets may require a much more
trading-oriented strategy than we have
demonstrated in the past. Although we
remain committed to our current core
markets, our senior management and
our Board of Trustees are reviewing
whether we should focus our capital on
shorter term transactions in certain mar-
kets. In those markets we would pursue
transactions where we could create
value and then quickly harvest that value
through a sale or joint venture.

//%

Mike Prentiss, Chairman of the Board

Conclusion

We believe 2005 will be a transition year
in our office markets. Hopefully in 12
months we will Jook back and see that
our business fundamentals have dramat-
ically improved. If the economy’s current
strength continues, we believe there is a
good chance this improvement will
occur. While 2005 results will show
some mixed news and a challenging
earnings environment due to rent roll
downs, most other operating metrics
should start to improve. We should then
have a real possibility of several years of
steady improvement 1o look forward to.

<P

Tom August, President and CEQ
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Acquisitions

I

Cityplace 1,296 $124.0 $ 96 4/04 82%
The Bluffs 69 $ 17.7 $257 5/04 71%
5500 Great America 306 $ 279 $ 91 5/04 0%
2101 Webster 459 $ 64.8" $141  10/04 85%
Lakeside | & Il 198 $ 32.5 $164  10/04 100%

2,328 $266.9 $ 115 73%

wExchudes value of additional land

We were particularly pleased with the quality of
the new acquisitions we made in 2004

-- especially considering the extreme competitiveness of our
markets. We were aggressive about taking lease-up risk as we
began to view vacant space as a potential opportunity instead
of a risk. In each case we had a specific strategy for how we
believed we could create value in the asset.
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Cityplace

Prentiss Properties had leased Cityplace
for the seller for many years. As a result
we had a strong relationship with them
and knew the building extremely well.
While the Dallas market is still very soft,
we believe our acquisition basis of
$96/SF (which is substantially below
replacement cost) for one of the highest
quality office assets in Dallas, provides
us with a long-term competitive advan-
tage. Because of our relationship with
the seller, our willingness to provide
significant flexibility in structuring the
leaseback of their space, and our financial
strength we were able to buy this high
guality asset at a reasonable price. As
the market recovers we expect to even-
tually realize a value substantially above
our current basis.




5500 Great America Parkway

5500 Great America Parkway in Silicon
Valley is comprised of three office build-
ings totaling 306,000 SF, and land suffi-
cient to build an additional 230,000 SF
of office space. When purchased, 5500
Great America Parkway was 100%
vacant. We believed that our acquisition
basis of $91/SF for a fairly new, high
quality building presented us with an
opportunity. Within 45 days of completing
the acquisition we were able to lease
220,000 SF to Hyperion Solutions on a
long term lease at rents providing a 9%
yield on our existing basis at 72% occu-
pancy. Once we lease the remaining
building we believe we will have created
a substantial increase in value over our
original basis.




2101 Webster

We purchased 2101 Webster in an
off-market transaction in October 2004,
The acguisition consisted of a 459,000
SF office building in downtown Qakland
along with a commitment to purchase
land to build up to an additional
250,000 SF. At the time of purchase the
building was 85% leased. Our strategy
is to renovate the existing building and
expand the lower building levels using
the acquired land. We hope to start this
expansion and renovation in 2005. The
downtown Qakland market is improving
dramatically and we believe that with the
improving market and renovated building
we will be able to realize higher rents
and occupancy in the future.




The Bluffs

The Bluffs is a 69,000 SF office building
in Rancho Bernardo, California. The
property, built in 2002, had leased up
fairly slowly since completion. At the
time of acquisition occupancy was 71%.
We saw an opportunity to take some
leasing risk and acquire a property that
could produce a stabilized yield approxi-
mately 100 bps higher than comparable
properties. As of year end we have
improved leasing to S1% and are well on
our way to successfully executing our
strategy.

Lakeside I & II

We acquired this property in October 2004, after a previous bidder was
unable to close in a timely fashion. We were able to move quickly to
accommodate the seller’s desire to close quickly after losing that bidder.
Lakeside | & Il consists of two buildings containing 198,000 SF in
Waukegan, lllinois. The buildings are 100% leased, primarily to one
credit tenant with four years of remaining lease term. Our strategy is to
extend the lease term early and position the property for resale at a profit.
If we are unsuccessful at extending the lease we believe the remaining
lease term will be adequate to bridge the market’s current softness and
allow us to re-lease the space in a more landlord-favorable environment.




Dispositions
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Natomas
Shadowridge
One Westchase
1800 Sherman

During 2004 we continued our strategy of exiting
non-core markets and divesting lower quality real

estate.

Our Natomas sale completed our exit of Sacramento, while
One Westchase was our last property in Houston. The other
two asset sales were lower quality properties in core markets.
Each property was approximately 20 years old and had leasing
chalienges that were optimistically valued by the buyers. In
2005 we expect to continue to be aggressive sellers, as we exit
non-strategic markets and sell properties that have peaked in
value.




Development

In 2004 we started our first new development since the first quarter of
2001. We also made new strategic land investments, which should
help position us to start more developments in 2005 and beyand.

We currently have under construction High Bluff Ridge at Del Mar in
the Del Mar market of North San Diego County. This market is one of
the best in the country and one of the few where rents justify new
construction. We were able to mitigate much of the market risk by
pre-leasing 50% of the property to Morrison Foerster, a large national
law firm. The project will be complete in the third quarter of this year
and we hope to be substantially leased by year end.

During 2004 we also acquired or got control of four new parcels of land
which can accommodate up to 1.3 million SF of future development.




i A R

|
1
ik
|

e

Land Inventory

o Wiarket St |
Washington, D.C. 2 465K SF
Chicago 1* 147K SF
Dallas 5 1,349K SF
Austin 1 211K SF
Northern California 5 1,256K SF
San Diego 1 200K SF
TOTAL 15 3,628K SF

o Industrial land.
! Includes one site under contract.

Of the above sites we believe that the San Diego land and one of the Oakland
sites can potentially be put into production in 2005. We also believe there is
some chance we can start a building in Narthern Virginia later this year, and we
are carefully monitoring the recovery in Austin., That property could be ready to
start in 12 months if the Southwest Austin market continues to rebound at its
current pace.
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Prentiss Properties focuses on major markets with favorable
long term growth characteristics. Within these six markets
we believe that we have competitive advantages which
allow us to produce better than average returns on our
invested capital.
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S BUSINESS PROFILE

We are a se}f admrnrstered and self-managed Maryland REIT. We acquire, own, manage, lease, develop and build primarily office properties throughout the
United States We are self admlmstered in that we provide our own administrative services, such as accounting, tax and legal, internally through our own
employees We are self-managed in‘that we internally provide all the management and maintenance services that our properties require through employees,
such as, property managers ‘leasing professionals and engineers. We operate pnncrpally through our operating partnership, Prentiss Properties Acquisition
Partners L P. and |ts substdrarles and two management service companies, Prentiss Properties Resources Inc. and its subsidiaries and Prentiss Properties
Management L P As of December 31 2004, we owned interests in a diversified portfolio of 133 primarily suburban Class A office and suburban industrial
properties' as follows .

> T ‘ number of net rentable

RPN “3 R ' huildings square feet(V
‘ ‘ “ S e : (in millions)
Office propemes = : o 106 175
Industnal propemes - T o . 27 22

(1) lncludes 100% of the net rentable square feet of our wholly-owned, consolidated joint venture and unconsolidated joint venture properties, which totaled 17.2 million, 983,000
and 1.6 mxllron respectlvely Our pro rata share of net rentable square feet totals 18.4 million and includes 504,000 and 669,000 from our consolidated and unconsolidated joint
venture propertles respectxve!y

As of De‘c’em’beri‘B‘,:l, 200‘4i“oor properties were 88% leased to approximately 950 tenants. In addition tc managing properties that we own, we manage approx-

imately 9.83millio‘n‘ net,rentaole souare feet in office, industrial and other properties for third parties.

Our primary bu§1néss fs fhe‘ ownership and operation of office and industrial properties throughout the United States. Our organization which includes approxi-
mately 475 employees consrsts ofa corporate office located in Dallas, Texas and.five regional offices each of which operates under the guidance of 2 member of

our senror management team The following are the 10 markets in which our properties are located with the first market being the location of each regional office:

region market

Mid-At!anticj Metropolitan Washington, DC
Midwest b Chicago, Suburban Detroit
Southwest | Dallas/Fort Worth, Austin, Denver

Northern California

Southern California

Qakland, Silicon Valley

San Diego, Los Angeles

We have oefermined that Our reponable segments are those that are based on our method of internal reporting, which disaggregates our business based upon
our five geographrc reglons For revenues, income from continuing operations and total asset information on each of our segments, see Note (19) o our

Consohdated Fmanmal Statements
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property name

2291 Wood Oak Drive(l)
2411 Dulles Corner Road
3130 Fairview Park Drive
3141 Fairview Park Drive
4401 Fair Lakes Court
6600 Rockledge Drive
7101 Wisconsin Avenue
8521 Leesburg Pike
12601 Fair Lakes Circle
13825 Sunrise Valley Drive
Calverton Office Park
Campus Point

Fairmont Building
Greenwood Center
Oakwood Center

Park West at Dulles Corner
Plaza 1900

Research Office Center I-I1i
Willow Oaks i-1lI

Total Mid-Atiantic Region

123 North Wacker Drive
410 Warrenville Road
701 Warrenville Road
1717 Deerfield Road
Bannockburn Centre
Corporate Lakes I11(1)
Corporetum Office Campus
Lakeside Point | & [I(1}
O'Hare Plaza Il

One O’'Hare Centre
Salton

Chicago Industrial

One Northwestern Plaza
Total Midwest Region

Barton Skyway -1V
Cielo Center

Spyglass Point
Bachman East & West
Burnett Plaza
Cityplace Center
Cottonwood Office Center
IBM Call Center
Lakeview Center
Millennium Center
Park West C2

Park West C3

building type

Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office

Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Cffice
Office
Industrial
Office

Office
Cffice
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Cffice
Office
Office

OUR PROPERTIES

market

Metro. Wash,, DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash,, DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro, Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro, Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC
Metro, Wash., DC
Metro, Wash., DC
Metro, Wash., DC
Metro. Wash., DC

Metro. Wash., DC

Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Chicago
Sub. Detroit

Austin

Austin

Austin

Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth
Dallas/Fort Worth

year(s) built/
renovated

1993
1990
1999
1988
1988
1981
1975
1984
1995
1989
1981-1987
1985
1964/1997
1985
1982
1997
1983
1986-2000

1986-2002

1986
1999
1988
1985
1999
1590
1984-1987
1950/1998
1986
1984
2001
1987-1988
1989

1999-2002
1984
1999
1986
1983
1988
1986
1998
2000
1999
1989
1985

number of
buildings

S}
O W o~ = = e = ) e S 2 e e e b b e e

n
L e S e " T 4 1 B ol S R R S R =

o W= N = WS

net rentable
square feet®
(in thousands)
228

177

183

192

53

156

237

151

264

106

307

172

124

150

128

152

203

439

569

3,997

541
60
67

141

257

124

322

198

236

380
59

682

242

: '-»'3y309”“ .

787
271
59
196
1,025
1,296
165
150
101
99
349
339

total base rent
for year ended
12/31/043
(in thousands)
$ 4,728
4,703
5,654
3,430
1,343
4,712
3,737
1,246
4,992
2,759
5,281
2,985
2,695
3,555
2,824
4,184
5,011
10,098
8,387
82,324

9,232
798
1,165
1,403
4,745
1,985
1,876
520
4,632
3,654
1,132
2,339
3,265
36,746

14,111
4,192
949
3,189
16,066
12,295
1,417
2,232
1,451
301
7,665
4,776

% leased
as of
12/31/04

100
86
100
g2
95
100
60
89
100
S8
52
100
93
100
98
100
100
87
79

92
100
a3
100
100
100

100
71
74

100
82
89

97
90
100
30
96
87
90
100
100

85
79




total base rent % leased

] year(s) built/  number of net rentable for year ended as of
property name 3‘3 ‘ building type market renovated buildings square feet® 12/31/0413 12/31/04
o (in thousands) (in thousands)
Park West El ‘ o ‘ "Office Dailas/Fort Worth 1982 1 183 3,183 100
Park West E2 ! Co Office Dallas/Fort Worth 1985 1 201 1,767 10
Walnut Glen Tower ‘ . e Cffice Dalias/Fort Worth 1985 1 464 8,186 95
WestPoint Ofﬁte Bj;iilding‘ i Office Dallas/Fort Worth 1998 1 150 2,508 91
Carrara Place: Y : Office Denver 1982 1 234 2,978 89
Highland Court - - . ‘ Office Denver 1986 1 93 1,328 84
Orchard Place &1~ Office Denver 1980 2 105 2,052 94
PacifiCare Building' : Office Denver 1983 1 198 2,584 79
Panorama Poirit - : Office Denver 1983 1 79 781 82
Total Southwest Region - T 30 e5u w461l
2101 Webster e Office Oakland 1985 1 459 2,228 78
Lake Merritt Towerl: Office Qakland 1890 1 204 5,585 95
The Ordway - . Office Qakland 1970 1 531 15,202 99
World Savings Center : Office Qakiand 1985 1 272 6,852 99
5500 Great America ‘Parkvi{ay Office Silicon Valley 1999 3 306 27 72
Total Northern Calffornia Region o A 1772 - 29,904
Los Angeles lhdustiial Industrial Los Angeles 1973-1983 18 1,253 7,081 88
Camino West porp‘oréte Park) Office San Diego 1991 1 54 1,007 a3
Carlsbad Airport P‘Ie:zz‘a(” ‘ Office San Diego 1987 1 62 1,277 94
Carisbad Pacifica™ - Office San Diego 1986 1 49 1,176 69
Carisbad Pacific Center I-11l Office San Diego 1986-2002 3 130 3,155 93
Del Mar Gateway ' Office San Diego 2001 1 164 5,207 100
Executive Center Del Mar Office San Diego 1998 2 113 3176 83
La Place Courtd - F Office San Diego 1988 2 81 1,577 20
Pacific Ridge Corporate Centre(l) Office San Diego 1999 2 121 2,772 92
Pacific View Plazam‘)‘ o + - Office San Diego 1986 1 52 1,230 96
Plaza | & I ‘ ‘ j Office San Diego 1988-1989 2 89 2,027 89
The Blufistl) '+ " i Office San Diego 2002 1 69 957 91
The Campus s Office San Diego 1988 1 45 959 93
San Diego Industriali ‘ Industrial __San Diego o 1985-1988 5 268 3,452 100
Tow Sauten CaermaRegor T s asom
Total ConsolidetecPropertes 124 18172 278638

[$5] Property'of propénies owned by Prentiss Office Investors, L.P., of which we own a 51% controliing interest. Net rentable square feet and total base rent is presented at 100%.

(2) Net rentable square feet defines the aréa of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable area plus a portion of the common areas of the
property allocated to a tenant.

(3) Total base rent ft;r‘the year ended Decemnber 31, 2004 includes the fixed rental amount due for the year ended December 31, 2004 under contractual lease obligations, which
excludes (1) teas? termination jpayments: (2) parking rent; (3) future contractual or contingent rent escalations; and (4) additional rent payable by tenants for items such as com-
mon area mainteﬁancé, real estate taxes and other expense reimbursements.
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The following table presents specific information about our unconsolidated properties as of December 31, 2004

total base rent % leased
year(s) built/  number of net rentable for year ended as of
property name building type market renovated buildings square feet® 12/31/044 12/31/04
(in thousands) (in thousands)
1676 International Drive(D Office Metro. Wash., DC 1999 1 295 $ 8544 100
8260 Greensboro(l) Office Metro. Wash., DC 1980 1 156 2,309 70
Total Mid-Atlantic Regions 2 451 10,853
Broadmoor Austin{2) Office Austin 1991 7 1,112 20,359 100
Total Southwest Region ' 7 1,112 20359
Total Unconsolidated Properties T g T 13 s 31212
Total Properties o T133 0 19735 $309850

(1)
)]
(3)

(4)

Properties owned by Tysons International Partners of which we own a 25% nan-controlling interest. Net rentable square feet and total base rent is presented at 100%.

Properties owned by Broadmoor Austin Associates of which we own a 50% non-controlling interest. Net rentable square feet and total base rent is presented at 100%.

Net rentable square feet defines the area of a property for which & tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable area plus a portion of the common areas of the
property allocated to a tenant.

Total base rent far the year ended December 31, 2004 includes the fixed rental amount due for the year ended December 31, 2004 under contractual lease obligations, which
excludes (1) lease termination payments; (2) parking rent; (3} future contractual or contingent rent escalations; and (4) additional rent payable by tenants for items such as com-

mon area maintenance, real estate taxes and other expense reimbursements.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual I-Liéport‘may éontain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 When used in this Annual Report, words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “predict,” “project,” and
similar expresstons as they relate to-us or our management, identify forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on the beliefs

of our management as weII as assumptions made by us and information currently available to us. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain

risks, uncertamtles and assumptrons including risks, uncertainties and assumptions related to the following:

e Our farlure to quahfy as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

* Possible adverse changes intax and environmental laws, as well as the impact of newly adopted accounting principles on our accounting policies and on

penod -to- -pel ‘od‘companson of fmancrat results;
* Potentiall ||ab|||ty for un|nsured Iosses and environmental contamination;
o Our propertles are |H|qutd assets
* Factors that coutd result in-the pbor operating performance of our properties including tenant defaults and increased costs such as taxes, insurance, utili-

X

ties and casualty losses that exceed insurance fimits; ‘
. Changes“ in ;rnart:ret conditiens including market interest rates and employment rates;

e Our incurrence 6f deb’t and‘use of variable rate and derivative financial instruments;

* Ourreal estate acqursrtron redevelopment development and construction activities;

s The geographlc concentratron of our properties;

¢ Changes in rnarket condmons including capitalization rates applied in real estate acquisitions;

. Competttion:‘tn 'rn‘arkets where we have properties;

e Our dependence on key personnel whose continued service is not guaranteed;

* Changes in our mvestment financing.and borrowing policies without shareholder approval;

e The effect of shires avarlable for future sale on the price of common shares;

s Limited abmty of sharehotders to etfect change of control;

» Conflicts of rnterest with' management our hoard of trustees and joint venture partners could impact business decisions;

s Cur thlrd-party property management, leasing, development and construction business and related services;

* Risks associa‘ted: w1tn an:‘in’Crease in'the frequency and scope of changes in state and local tax laws ahd increases in the humber of state and local tax audits;
s Cost of comphance W|th the Amencans with Disabilities Act and other similar laws related to our properties; and

o Other risk factors rdentmed herein;

if one or more of these nsks or uncertarnnes materialize, or if any underlying assumption proves incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those antic-

ipated, expected: or p‘ ected ‘Such forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are subject to these and other risks,
uncertainties and assumptrons relatmg to our operations, results of operations, growth strategy and liquidity. All subsequent written and ora! forward-looking
statements attnbutable to. us or rndlvrduals acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this paragraph. You should refer to the section enti-
tled “Risk Factors” |n our Form 10- K for a discussion of risk factors that couid cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-look-
ing statements You are cautloned not 4o place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this Annual Report. We

do not undertake any oblrgatton io update or revise any forward-locking statements, whether as a result of new i nformatlon future events or otherwise,
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following section sets forth our selected financial data. The following data should be read in conjunction with our historical Consclidated Financial

Statements and notes thereto and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The selected historical consolidated financial data has been derived from our audited financial statements and notes thereto.

year ended december 31,

Cperating Data 2004 2003 2002 200 2000
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Rental income $ 356,825 $314,718 $ 307,487 $ 287,385 $ 288,728
Service business and other income 13,309 16,769 4,386 ) 5042 4,555
Total revenues ” 370,734 331487 311,873 292,431 293,283
Prbpérty opérating ex;;enses and real estate tabxes 131,087 111,857 110,354 95,997 98,252
General and administrative and personnel costs 11,803 10,988 10,361 10,396 9,790
Expenses of service business $,898 10,513 - - -
Depreciation and amortization 92,315 72,483 61,944 52,804 53,592
Total operating expenses o 245,203 ) ' 205,841 182,6_59 159,197 161,634
Interest expense and amortization of financing costs (70,380) (69,516) (66,300) (63,804) (70,050)
Merger termination feg, net - = - 17,000 4,001

Income from continuing operations before equity in
incame of unconsolidated joint ventures,

loss on securities, impairment and minority interests 55,151 56,130 62,914 86,430 65,650
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures 2,429 2,555 3,154 3,131 3,843
Loss on investment in securities (420) - - - (1,000)
Loss from impairment of mortgage foan (2,900) - - - -
Impairment loss on real estate property - - - (4,765) -
Minority interests (2,744) (10,227 (10,450} (16,834) (14,928)
Income from contim)ihg operations 51,516 ' ‘ 48,458 55,618 67;902 ' ) 53,605
Income from discontinued operations 3,354 © 6034 1096 16611 16,489
Gain/(loss) from disposition of discontinued operations 11,957 (4,457) 8,430 - -
Loss from debt defeasance related to sale of real estate (5,316) - - - -
Minority interests related to discontinued operations (310) (63) (733) (707) 7 (730)
Discontinued operations 9685 1524 18663 15904 15759
income before gain on sale of properties o 61,201 49,982 - 74,281 83,806 69,364
Gain on sale of prope!:ties including land and B » o ' -

an interest in a real estate partnership ) 1222 9,435 - 18,660 221
Net income ' T$ 62423 § 59417 $ 74281 $ 102,466 $ 69,585
Preferred dividends B (10,052) (8,452) (8,358) (7,887) (7,151)
Net income applicable to common sh‘areholdrer‘s $ 52,371 o $ 50,965 - $ 65,923 $ 94,579 $ 62,434

Basic earnings per common share:
Income from continuing operations applicable

to common shareholders $ 0.96 $ 123 $ 1.23 $ 2.14 $ 1.28
Discontinued operations $ 0.22 $ 004 $ 0.49 $ 0.43 $ 0.43
Net income applicablé to common shareholders — basic $ 118 $ 127 $ 172 % 2.57 $ 172
Weighted average nhrﬁber of common shares T 4 T ‘

outstanding - basic 44,330 40,068 38,402 36,736 36,273
Diluted earnings per common share:
income from continuing operations applicable to

common shareholders $ 0.96 $ 1.23 $ 1.22 $ 212 $ 1.28
Discontinued operations $ 0.22 $ 004 $ 0.49 $ 0.39 3 0.43
Net income applicable to commen shareholders —f:liluted $ 118 $' 1.27 ) $ 1.71 $ 2.51 $ 1.71
Weighted average'nurﬁber of common shares and ' T o ' . '

common share equivalents outstanding - diluted 44,529 40,270 38,649 40,843 36,515
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Gy year ended december 31,
Balance Sheet Data” | . 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in thousands} |

Operating réa“l esta{e, bgfcre“ accumulated depreciation  $2,130,364 $2,052,679 $1,932,028 $ 1,807,039 $ 1,869,694
Operating real estate, after accumulated depreciation 1,896,357 1,841,735 1,753,236 1,660,690 1,743,064
Cash and caéh equivalents 8,586 5,945 5,080 5,845 5,452
Total assets i 2,333,539 2,199,093 2,122,289 2,030,593 2,117,875
Mortgages and notes payable 1,191,911 1,029,035 1,011,027 807,734 1,007,800
Mandatorily redeemable preferred units - 10,000 - - -
Total liabilities . 1,329,168 1,162,229 1,141,731 1,024,607 1,132,858
Minority interest 60,782 124,623 136,325 186,186 178,753
Shareholders' equity : 943,589 912,241 844,233 819,800 806,264
Other Data

(in thousands) ;

Cash flow from opérations $ 158,249 $ 133,625 $ 160,611 $ 160,424 $ 161,961
Cash flow from iniresting . (79,004} (142,304) (160,505) (52,854) (173,211)
Cash flow from ﬁhancing . (76,604) 9,544 (871) (107,177) 3,389
Distributions‘:dec‘laréd per-common share $ 2.240 $ 2.240 $ 2.215 $ 2.080 $ 1.895
Funds from operations . 144,709 139,246 144911 155,814 138,402
Property Data :

(square feetin thousanqs)

Number of properties .-, 133 137 137 146 181
Total net rentablé square feet " 18,358 17,762 17,627 17,597 19,497

Leased % R 88% 91% 93% 84% 96%




MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Qur internal control over financial reporting is a process, that under the supervision of and with the participation of cur management, including our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer, was designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internat control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect our transactions and dispositions of our assets; (il) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of our management and our trustees; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acqui-

sition, use, or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internat cantrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effec-
tiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that our controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compiliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As management, it is our responsibllity to establish and maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting. As of December 31, 2004, under the super-
vision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Principat Accounting Officer, we evalu-
ated the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using criteria established in internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Based on our evaluation, we concluded that the Company maintained effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.

Our management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Changes In Our Internal Control over Financial Reperting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the three months ended December 31, 2004 that have mate-

rially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, such internal control over financial reporting.

Disclosure Controls and. Procedures

As of December 31, 2004, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 15d-
15. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms.




The foltowmg drscussron and anatysrs of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our Selected Financial Data and our
historical: Conso!tdated Ftnancrat Statements and related notes thereto. Historical results set forth in our Selected Financial Data and Consolidated Financial

Statements should not be, taken asan mdrcatton of our future operations.

nvznv'lew‘ (A

We are a self-adjmjrﬁrjis:tered:and ‘setfj-m‘anaged Maryland REIT. We acquire, own, manage, lease, develop and build primarily office properties throughout the
United States. We are self- ‘ad‘mi‘nistere'd‘ in that we provide our own administrative services, such as accounting, tax and legal, internally through our own
employees. We ar‘_ self-managed in that we internaily provide alt the management and maintenance services that our properties reguire through employees,
such es, property managers easrng professionals and engineers. We operate principally through our operating partnership, Prentiss Properties Acquisition
Partners, LP and |ts substdranes and two management service companies, Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries and Prentiss Properties

Management L

As of Decembet 31 2004, we owned interests in a diversified portfolio of 133 primarily suburban Class A office and suburban industrial properties as foliows:

L : ‘ number of net rentable
buildings square feettV
(in millians)

Office propertigs I . . : 106 175

Industrial progerties R 27 22

Total CopraEoonboo e 133 19.7

(1) Includes. 160% bt the net rentabte square feet of our wholly-owned, consolidated joint venture and unconsolidated joint venture properties, which totaled 17.2 million, 989,000 and
1.6 million; respectwety Our pro rata share of net rentable square feet totals 18.4 million and includes 504,000 and 669,000 from our consolidated and unconsolidated joint ven-
ture propemes respectwely

As an owner of real estate the majorrty of our income and cash flow is derived from rental income received pursuant to tenant leases for space at our proper-
ties; and thus our earmngs woutd be negatively impacted by a deterioration of our rental income. One or more faciors could result in a deterioration of rental

income mctudtng (1) our farlure to renew or execute new leases as current leases expire, (2) our failure to renew or execute new leases with rental terms at or

above the terms ot in- place leases and (3) tenant defaults.

Qur failure fo renew or execute new teases as current leases expire or to execute new leases with rental terms at or above the terms of in-place leases is depend-
ent on factors such as (1) the local économic climate, which may be adversely impacted by business layoffs or downsizing, industry slowdowns, changing

demographrcs'and other factors and (2) local real estate condltions, such as oversupply of office and industrial space or competition within the market.

Our tndustrys perforrnance is generalty pradicated on a sustained pattern of ob growth. In 2004, while the overall United States economy began to demon-
strate economic growth there were few indications that the economy was creating jobs at a pace suffrcrent to generate significant increases in demand for our

office space.:We cpntlnued to operate in a period of weak fundamentals, evidenced by relatively high vacancy and correspondingly lower rental rates.

As a resutt of the recent weak economic climate, the office real estate markets have been materially impacted by higher vacancy rates. In 2003, vacancy rates
appeared to peak in many of our markets and some positive net absorption of space started to occur. During 2004, all of our markets, with the exception of
Downtown Chrcago, experlenced posmve net absorption of space. {n addition, the overall vacancy rates are down as compared to 2003, Aithough there is a

slight trnprovement in the economrc clxmate we do not expect any material improvement in the leasing conditions for 2005. In the face of challenging market




conditions, we have followed a disciplined approach to managing our operations. We are constantly reviewing our portfolio and the markets in which we oper-

ate to identify potential asset acquisitions, opportunities for development and where we believe significant value can be found, asset dispositions.

The occupancy in our portfolio of operating properties decreased to 88% at December 31, 2004 compared to 91% at December 31, 2003 and 93% at
December 31, 2002. Market rental rates have declined in each of our markets from peak levels and there may be additional declines in 2005. Rental rates on
our office space that was re-leased in 2004 and 2003 decreased an average of 8% and 9%, respectively, in comparison o rates that were in effect under expir-

ing leases.

QOur organization consists of a corporate office located in Dallas, Texas and five regionat offices each of which operates under the guidance of a member of our
senior management team. The following table presents regional revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004, and the markets in which our properties are

located within each region. The first market represents the location of each regional office.

region revenues market

(in theusands)
Mid-Atlantic $ 97586 Metropolitan Washington, DC
Midwest 60,114 Chicago, Suburban Detroit
Southwest 130,831 Dallas/Fort Worth, Austin, Denver
Northern California 39,485 Qakland, Sificon Valley
Southern California ‘ 40,474 San Diego, Los Angeles
Total ‘ ‘ $ 368,490

In addition to the $368.5 million of regional revenues, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recognized $2.2 million of revenue consisting of reim-
bursements from employees for their share of health care related costs of $515,000, interest income of $523,000 representing the portion not allocated to our

regions and the balance of $1.1 million relating primarily to income derived from services performed for third parties not allocated to our regions.

At December 31, 2004, our pro rata share of in-place leases totaled 16.2 million square feet, or 88% of the net rentable square feet of our properties. Our leas-

es range in term from 1 month to 17 years with an average term of 5 to 7 years. The 16.2 million square feet of in-place leases expire as follows:

square feet expiring
{in thousands)

2005 1,503 9.3%
2006 2,012 12.4%
2007 2,559 16.1%
2008 1,703 10.5%
2009 2,262 14.0%
Thereafter 6,103 37.7%

" ‘ ' ' ) “ 16182 100.0%

If one or more tenants fail to pay their rent due to bankruptcy, weakened financial condition or otherwise, our income, cash flow and ability to make distribu-
tions would be negatively impacted. At any time, a tenant may seek the protection of the bankruptcy laws, which could result in delays in rental payments or

in the rejection and termination of such tenant leases.

&
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2004 REAL ESTATE TRANSACTIONS
Joint Yentiiie Arrangement

On January 22, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. was established to acquire office properties in our core markets of Washington D.C./Northern Virginia,
Chicago, Da\las/Fi; Worth, Northern California and San Diego/Orange County. The partnership was initially whoily owned by the operating partnership and its
affiliates aﬁd was seeded bfy the transfer of several recent acquisitions including, 2291 Wood Qak Drive a single office building containing approximately
228,000 net r‘enta‘b“lg squa‘re‘1 feet located in Herndon, Virginia, Corporate Lakes |1l a single office building containing approximately 124,000 net rentable square

feet located in Chiéago, lllinois and seven office buildings containing approximately 370,000 net rentable square feet located in Carlsbad, California.

Pursuant to.a jbint venture agreement, effective February 1, 2004, Stichting Pensioenfonds ABF, a Netheriands based pension fund and unrelated third party,
acquired a 49% I\mlted partnersmp interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. for proceeds totaling $68.8 million. As a result of the transaction, we recorded a
gain on saié of $1. 2 mllhon The joint venture is consolidated with and into the accounts of the operating partnership. Proceeds from the transaction were used

to repay a p‘ortl‘on1 of the outstandmg borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

Acquisitions.

During the year ehaed becember 31, 2004, we acquired, from unrelated third parties, 8 office buildings totaling approximately 2.3 million net rentable square

fest as detailed below: |

W : month of number of net rentable acquisition

acquired properties | o segment market acquisition buildings square feet(n price(®
R : (in thousands) {in millions)
Cityplace Center.: - Southwest Dallas/Ft. Worth April 2004 1 1,286 $ 1233
The Bluffs@® " Southern Calif. San Diego May 2004 1 69 17.7
5500 Great Amé‘r‘i:c‘a Parkway Northern Calif. Silicon Valley May 2004 3 306 348
2101 Webster - o ‘ Northern Calif. Cakland Oct. 2004 1 459 65.7
Lakeslde I LT ‘ Mldwest Chicago Oct 2004 2 198 32 8
e o i e o o+ e U e U SV U 8. . 2"328 . 274 1

e bt e o gtk e 3 8 g et < e e et + v 12 2 1 emien | —eeres e e e s e et

(1) Net rentatile sqlare feet defines the area of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable arez plus a portion of the commen areas of the
property aliocated 10 2 tenant.

(2) Acquxsmons were funded with proceeds from our revolving credit fagility, debt assumption, property sales and proceeds generated from the sale of comman shares,

(3)  Acquisitions were acquued by Prentiss Office Investars, L.P,, the joint venture described above. The net rentable square feet and acquisition price is presented at 100%. Each part-
ner contributed their pro rata;share of the purchase price of each property to Prentiss Office investors, L.P. prior to acquisition.

On July 15,,2004, we acquired from an unrelated third party, approximately 7.7 acres of land in Del Mar, California for gross consideration of $15.1 million,
The acquisition was funded with proceeds from our revolving credit facility. The land is unrelated to our development project which is aiso located in Del Mar,

California. .
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Dispositions

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we sold, to unrelated third parties, 4 industrial buildings containing approximately 91,000 net rentable square feet

and 8 office buildings containing approximately 1.2 million net rentable square feet as detailed below:

month of number of net rentable gross

properties sold segment market disposition tuildings square feet progeeds(h
{in thousands) {in millions)

Natomas Corporate Center Northern Calif. Sacramento May 2004 6 566 $ 80.7
Shadowridge Business Center Southern Calif. San Diego July 2004 4 91 10.2
One Westchase Center Southwest Houston Aug. 2004 1 466 44.2
1800 Sherman Avenue Midwest ) Chicago Nov. 2004 1 136 182
12 1,258 $ 1533

(1) Proceeds from property sales were used t0 repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revaiving credit facility and to complete a defeasance of 2 morigage loan col-
lateralized by the Natomas Carporate Center properties.

Development

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we transitioned a parcel of land from land held for development to construction in progress. The construction,
which has an estimated total project cost of $48.1 million, includes a two building office project located in Del Mar, California and will contain approximately
158,000 net rentable square feet upon completion. The project which is currently 50% pre-leased is owned by Prentiss/Coltins Del Mar Heights, LLC, a joint
venture, owned 70% by our operating partnership and its affiliates and 30% by Collins Corporate Center, LLC, an unrelated third party. The accounts of
Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC are consolidated with and into the accounts of our operating partnership. The December 31, 2004 carrying amount of

this development project was $23.4 million.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements. Our consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of Prentiss Properties Trust, our operating partnership and our other consolidated subsidiaries. The preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the report-

ed amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ from our estimates.

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements are fully described in Note (2) to our audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004. However, certain of our significant accounting estimates are considered critical accounting esti-
mates because the estimate requires our management to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made and dif-
ferent estimates that reasonably could have been used in the current period, or changes in the estimates that are reasonably likely to occur from period to peri-
od, would have a material impact on our financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations. We consider our critical accounting poli-

cies and estimates to be thase used in the determination of the reported amounts and disclosure related to the following:

(1) Impairment of long-lived assets and the long-lived assets to be disposed of;

(2) Allowance for doubtful accounts;

(3) Depreciable lives applied to real estate assets and improvements to real estate assets;
(4) Initial recognition, measurement and allocation of the cost of real estate acquired; and

(8) Fair value of derivative instruments,




Impairméntf 6! lqrig-li;iad assets and long-lived asssts to be disposed of

Real estate Ieasehotd lmprovements and land holdings are ciassified as long-lived assets held for sale or long-lived assets to be held and used. In accordance
with Statement of Fmancral Accountmg Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we record assets held for sale
at the tower of the carrymg amount or fair value, less cost to sell. With respect to assets classified as held and used, we periodically review these assets to deter-
mine whether dur carryrng amount will be recovered. Al of our long-lived assets were classified as held and used at December 31, 2004. Our operating real
estate; Wthh compnses the maJonty of our long-lived assets, had a carrying amount of $1.9 billion at December 31, 2004. A long-lived asset is considered
impaired if rts carrymg amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Upon
impairment, we. would: recognlze ‘an.impairment loss fo reduce the carrying value of the long-lived asset to our estimate of its fair value. Our estimate of fair
value and cash fioifvs to be generated from our properties reguires us to make assumptions related to future occupancy of our properties, future rental rates,
tenant conceesrqns, operatrng expendrtures, property taxes, capital improvements, the ability of our tenants to perform pursuant to their lease obligations, the
holding pérfod of j'ojur prouenies a\nd the proceeds to be generated from the eventual sale of our properties. if one or more of our assumptions proves incorrect
or if our. assumbttdns change the recognition of an impairment loss on one or more properties may be necessary in the future, The recognition of an impair-
ment loss would negatlvely impact earnings. The table below details impairment losses on real estate properties recognized during the three years ended

December 31 2004

[
[ RS

ok :, : year ended december 31,
in thousands) = i 1 i 2004 2003 2002

ImpairmentjIoss*recogni;ed o : $ - $ 1,7920 $ 2,855

[ v
i Y
[ I

(1) included in the line item "income from discantinued operations” in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Allowance ‘for dt)ubﬂbl acX:ounts

Accounts recelvable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that we estimate to be uncollectible, Qur recelvable balance is comprised primarily of accrued
rental rate rncreases to be received over the life of in-place laases as well as rents and operating cost recoveries due from tenants. We regularly evaluate the
adequacy of oun allowance for doubtful accounts considering such factors as credit quality of our tenants, delinquency of payment, historical trends and cur-
rent economlc condmons ‘At December 31, 2004, we had total receivables of $62.0 million and an allowance for doubtful accounts of $6.2 million, resulting
ina net recelvabte balance of $55.8 million. Of the $62.0 million in total receivables, $50.7 million represents accrued rental rate increases to be received over
the life df in= p!ace; Ieases‘ Itis our policy to reserve all outstanding receivables that are 90-days past due along with a portion of the remaining receivable bal-
ance thatrwje“ feet ts unéolt‘ectible based on our evaluation of the outstanding receivable balance. In addition, we increase our allowance for doubtful accounts
for accrued ren“tal‘rate increases if we determine such future rent is uncollectible. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or condmons lf our assumptlons regarding the collectibility of accounts receivable, prove incorrect, we may experience write-offs in excess of our allowance
for doubtful accounts whtch ‘would negatively impact earnings. The table below presents the net mcrease/(decrease) to our allowance for doubtful accounts

during the penods, arnounts wntten-off as uncollectible during the periods and our allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2004, and 2003 and 2002.

: i year ended december 31,
{in thousands) . j‘ i . 2004 2003 2002

(Decrease)/rncrease in al!owance tor doubtful accounts $‘ (3,779) $ 2274 $ 4626
Amounts wntten off durmg the penod (6 847) {1,289) (802)

Altowancefordoubtfulaccountsatpenodend o $ 6207 ) $ 9986 o $ 77'12
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During the vear ended December 31, 2002, our earnings were negatively impacted by a charge of $5.4 million resulting from our concern over the collectibility
of certain tenant receivables. A significant portion of the charge related to our concern that accrued rental rate increases would not be collectible. Our concern
was due in part to the impending bankruptcy of several significant tenants (bankruptcy tenants) as well as a deterioration of credit with certain other tenants.

During 2002, we wrote-off approximately $197,000 and $605,000 of the receivables due from the bankruptcy tenants and other receivables, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we recognized a charge to earnings of $3.6 million, a significant portion of which resulted from increased receiv-
ables due from the bankruptcy tenants. During 2003, we wrote-off approximately $667,000 and $622,000 of the receivables due from the bankruptcy tenants

and other receivables, respectively,

During 2004, our earnings were negatively impacted by a charge of $3.0 million. The charge consisted of a $2.3 million allowance established for a note receiv-
able that we determined to be partially uncollectible and other collectibility concerns of $1.7 million, partially offset by a $1.6 million allowance reversal result-
ing from the emergence from bankruptcy and recapitalization of one bankruptcy tenant. During 2004, we wrote-off approximately $1.5 miltion, $2.9 million and

$2.4 million of the receivables due from the bankruptcy tenants, our note receivable and other receivables, respectively.

As a result of the significant write-offs taken during the year ended December 31, 2004, a large portion of which related to the bankruptcy tenants and was
allowed for in prior periods, accompanied by the allowance reversal attributable to the bankruptey tenant's emergence from bankruptcy, our allowance for

doubtful accounts have decreased $3.8 million from December 31, 2003 to December 31, 2004,

Dapreciable lives applied to real estate asseis and improvements to real estale assets

Depreciation on buildings and improvements is provided under the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 30 to 40 years for office buildings and
25 to 30 years for industrial buildings. Significant betterments made to our real estate assets are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated usefut life of
the betterment. If our estimate of useful lives proves to be materially incorrect, the depreciation and amortization expense that we currently recognize would
also prove to be materially incorrect. A change in our estimate of useful lives would therefore result in either an increase or decrease in depreciation and amor-
tization expense and thus, a decrease or increase in earnings. The table below presents real estate related depreciation and amortization expense, including
real estate depreciation and amortization expense included in income from continuing operations as well as discontinued operations, for the three years ended

December 31, 2004.

year ended december 31,

{in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Real estate depreciation and amortization from continuing operations $ 91,756 $ 72,199 $ 61,855
Real estate depreciation and amortization from discontinued operations $ 3673 $ 7,773 $ 11,513

Initial recognition, measurament and allocation of the cost of real estate acquired

We allocate the purchase price of properties acquired to tangible assets consisting of land and building and improvements, and identified intangible assets and
liabilities generally consisting of (i) above- and below-market leases, (i} in-place leases and (iii) tenant relationships. We allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their relative fair values in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business

Combinations.” These fair values are derived as follows:

Amounts allocated to land are derived from {1) comparable sales of raw land, (2) floor area ratio (FAR) specifics of the land as compared o cther developed

properties (average land cost per FAR) and (3) our other local market knowledge.




Amounts allocatedffd buildi‘ngs and. improvements are calculated and recorded as if the building was vacant upon purchase. We use estimated cash flow pro-
jections and apjplydiscount ahd capitalization rates based on market knowledge. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
life of 30 to 40:yea|js for officé‘building§ and 25 to 30 years for industrial buildings.
R '

We record above—m‘a‘rket and below-market in-place lease values for acquired properties based on the present value (using a market interest rate which reflects
the risks assocfaied With the Ieases acquired) of the difference between (1) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and (2) man-
agement's éstimate; éﬂ fair: market lease rates for the corresponding in-place leases, measured over a period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the
fease for above-markjet leases and the initial term plus the term of the fixed rate renewal option, if any for below-market leases. We perform this analysis on a
Jease (tenant) Ey légase (tehaﬁt) basis. The capitalized above-market lease values are amortized as a reduction to rental income over the remaining non-can-
celable terms of theirespective leases. The capitalized below-market lease values are amortized as an increase {0 rental income over the initial term plus the
term of the fixe‘d‘ rafe :renewal option, if any, of the respective leases.

Other intangiblé ‘a'sjsﬂs, in-bl;ce leases and tenant relationships, are calculated based on an evaluation of specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease. Our
estimates of fair value for other intangibles inciudes an estimate of carrying costs auring the expected lease-up periods for the respective spaces considering
current markeg coﬁéition; anﬁ the costs to execute similar leases. In estimating the carrying costs that would have ctherwise been incurred had the leases not
been in place, we ihElude such items as real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses as well as lost rental revenue during the expected lease-up
period based on c‘ﬂ?rént harke; conditions. Costs to execute similar leases include leasing commissions, legal and ather related costs. The value of in-place
leases is amoftized ﬁ‘o expehée over the remaining non-cancelable term of the respective leases. Should a tenant terminate its lease, the unamortized portion
of the in-place, Ieasg value yvould be charged to expense in current period earnings.

Based on ou‘r bstimétes of 1the fair value of the components of each real estate property acquired between January 1, 2003 and December 31, 2004, we allo-

cated the purchase grice as follows:

S " year ended december 31,

(in thousands) . o b 2004 2003
Land b ' $ 46,597 $ 33173
Buildings and-imprévements ‘ - $ 183,250 $ 107,506
Tenant Improvjemenjts and leasing.commissions $ 29641 $ 28,159
Below market ieas‘ej value - ‘ $ (7,122 $ (@33
Above market leaée value . $ 2,342 $ 3241
In-place Iease‘\/‘alL‘ce at market $ 21,099 $ 7425

$ -

Above market debt. Do $ (1,651
IR B . L

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we acquired a parcel of land for gross consideration of $15.1 million, which is inciuded as land held for develop-

ment on our co‘ns‘ot‘idated halance sheet.
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Fair value of derivative instruments

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended and
interpreted, beginning January 1, 2001, we record all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives
depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation. Derivatives/ used to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Derivatives used to hedge the expo-

sure to variability of expected future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges.

For derivatives designated as fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged item related to the hedged risk are recognized in
earnings. For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is initially reported in other com-
prehensive income and subsequently reclassified to earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings, and the ineffective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative is recognized currently in earnings. We assess the effectiveness of each hedging refationship by comparing the changes in fair vatue or
cash flows of the derivative hadging instrument with the changes in fair value or cash flows of the designated hedged item or transaction. For derivatives not

designated as hedges, changes in fair value are recognized in earnings.

Our objective in using derivatives is to add stability to interest expense and o manage our exposure to interest rate movements, To accomplish this objective,
we use interest rate swaps as part of our cash flow hedging strategy. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate
amounts in exchange for fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without the exchange of the underlying principal amount. During 2004, such deriv-

atives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with a portion of our variable-rate debt.

As of December 31, 2004, we did not have any derivatives designated as fair value hedges. Additionally, we do not use derivatives for trading or speculative

purposes, and currently, we do not have any derivatives that are not designated as hedges.

To determine the fair value of our derivative instruments, we use a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing
at each balance sheet date. For the majority of financial instruments including most derivatives, standard market conventions and technigues such as dis-
counted cash flow analysis, option pricing models, replacement cost, and termination cost are used to determine fair vaiue. All methods of assessing fair value
result in a general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. Future cash inflows or outfiows from our derivative instruments
depend upon future borrowing rates. If assumptions about future borrowing rates prove to be materially incorrect, the recorded value of these agreements could
also prove to be materially incorrect. Because we use the derivative instruments {o hedge our exposure 1o variable interest rates, thus effectively fixing a por-
tion of our variable interest rates, changes in future borrowing rates could result in our interest expense being either higher or lower than might otherwise have
been incurred on our variable-rate borrowings had the rates not been fixed. The table below presents the amount by which cash payments made under our
interest rate swap agreements exceeded cash receipts from our agreements during the three years ended December 31, 2004. The table also presents the

estimated fair value of our in-place swap agreements as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

year ended december 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Net cash paid under our interest rate swap agreements $ (10,557) $ (9,743) $ (8,232)
Fair value of interest rate swaps $ (1,046) $ (8,074) $ (16,776)
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RESULTS OF OPERATIDNS

Comparrson of tha Year Ended December 31, 2004 to the Year Ended Decsmber 31, 2003

The table ‘be%owﬁpresems ourfcorisohdated statements of income for the years ended December 21, 2004 and 2003:

Consnhdated Slatements nf ]ncame
(rnthousands)‘ [T 1‘ v

Revenues:
Rental mcome SRy

Servrce busmess and other income

Operatmg expen S:
Property operatvng and mamtenance
Real estate taxes o
General: and admrmstratrve and personnel costs
apenses of servrce busmess

Deprecratron and amomzatron

Other expenses
lnterest expense

Amomzatron of deferred fmancmg costs

e b Sk

Income from contmumg operatlons before equity in income of unconsalidated joint ventures,

loss on: mvestmem in secuntles impairment, and minority interests

Equity in mcome of unconsolrdated Jomt ventures
Loss on, mves‘cment in securmes
Loss from |mparrment of mortgage Idan

nomy mterests .

b PRI o
Income from dqntimuing operations o

Drscontmued operat(ons e

income from dsscommued operanons
n/(loss) from drsposrton of drscontmued operations

Loss from debt defeasance re\ated to sale of real estate

I

M|nor|ty mterests rerated to dlscontmued operatrons

A S ) QD P P O N S P S

" i L

fncome befbre gain on sale‘of Iand and an interest in a real estate partnership

Gain on sa(e of Iand and an lnterest ina real estate partnershrp

S

Net income . .

Preferred drvrdends“ ‘

Net mcome apphcable to common shareholders

¢
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year ended december 31,

2004 2003

$ 356,825 $ 314,718
13 909 16 769
370 734 331 487
91,681 80,583
39,406 31,274
11,803 10,888
9,998 10,513
92,315 72, 483
245,203 205 841
68,037 67,232

2 343 2,284
55,151 56,130
2,429 2,565
(420) ~
(2,900 -
(2,744) (10,227)
51,516 48,458
3,354 5,034
11,957 (4,457)
5,316) -
(310) {53)

9 685 1 524
61,201 49,982
1,222 9,435

$ 62,423 $ 59417
(10 052) (8, 452)
$ 52 371 $ 50 965



Included below is a discussion of the significant events or transactions that have impacted our results of operations when comparing the year ended December

31, 2004 to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Acquisition of Real Estate. Acquisitions are a key component of our external growth strategy. We selectively pursue acquisitions in our core markets when long-
term yields make acquisitions attractive. Between January 1, 2003 and December 31, 2004, we acquired nineteen office properties containing in the aggre-

gate approximately 3.4 million net rentable square feet as presented below;

month of number of net rentahle acquisition

acquired properties segment market acquisition buildings square feet(® price
(in thousands) (in millions)

Park West C3 Southwest Dallas/Ft. Worth Feb. 2003 1 338 $ 28.1
410 Warrenville Road Midwest Chicago May 2003 1 60 8.7
Corporate Lakes 1112 Midwest Chicago June 2003 1 124 22.6
2291 Wood Oak Drivel2 Mid-Atlantic Metro. Wash., D.C. Aug. 2003 1 228 52.2
Camino West Corporate Park(@ Southern Calif. San Diego Nov. 2003 1 54 8%
Carlsbad Airport Plaza(@ Southern Calif. San Diego Nov. 2003 1 62 10.5
La Place Court(2) Southern Calif. San Diego Nov. 2003 2 81 1386
Pacific Ridge Corporate Centret2 Southern Calif. San Diego Nov. 2003 2 121 238
Pacific View Plazal2 Southern Calif. San Diego Nov. 2003 1 52 10.2
Cityplace Center Southwest Dallas/Ft. Worth April 2004 1 1,296 123.3
The Bluffst3) Southern Calif. San Diego May 2004 1 69 17.7
5500 Great America Parkway Northern Calif. Silicon Valley May 2004 3 306 348
Lakeside Point | & I3 Midwest Chicago Oct. 2004 2 198 326
2101 Webster Northern Calif. Oakland QOct. 2004 1 459 65.7
' o . - ' lé - 3,449 $ 4528

(1) Net rentable square feet defines the area of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable area plus a portion of the common areas of the
property allocated to a tenant.

(2) Properties were acquired by the operating partnership and its affiliates and subsequently transferred to our Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. joint venture on January 22, 2004,

(3] Acquisitions were acquired by Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. The net rentable square feet and acquisition price is presented at 100%. Each partner contributed their pro rata share
of the purchase price of each property to Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. prior to acquisition.

Leasing of Development Projects. Our results of operations, for the year ended December 31, 2004, have increased due to an increase in occupancy at a devel-
opment project located in our Mid-Atlantic region which includes approximately 182,000 net rentable square feet. The project was 100% leased ---at December
31, 2004 and 35% rent paying for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to 29% leased at December 31, 2003 and 29% rent paying for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

Reat Estate Dispositions. During the period January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2004, we disposed of four industrial properties containing 91,000 net
rentable square feet and nineteen office properties containing 2.2 million net rentable square feet. The industrial properties were sold on July 23, 2004. Two
office properties, containing 339,000 net rentable square feet, within our Southwest region were sold on June 26, 2003. Nine office properties containing
644,000 net rentable square feet were sold on July 24, 2003, representing aur only real estate assets located within the Atianta area, a market within our Mid-
Atlantic region. Six office properties containing 566,000 net rentable square feet were soid on May 20, 2004, representing our only real estate assets in the

Sacramento area, a market within our Northern California region. On August 23, 2004, we sold our only remaining real estate asset in the Houston, Texas area,




a market wiﬁhin our Southv\ies? region. The property contained 466,000 net rentable square fest. The remaining 136,000 net rentable square feet included the
disposition on NoVemb"e; 19, 2004 of an office building in the Chicago area, a market within our Midwest region.

Other Significant Real Eslaté Transactions. On January 22, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. was established to acquire office properties in our core markets
of Washihgtdn D,C./NortH‘e}'n Virginia, Chicago, Dallas/Ft. Worth, Northern California and San Diego/Orange County. The partnership was initially wholly owned

by the operatfng‘bénnership and its affillates and was seaded by the transfer of several recent acquisitions as highlighted in the table above.

Pursuantto a joinf venture agreement, effective February 1, 2004, Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP, a Netherlands based pension fund and unrelated third party,
acquired é 49% iimited pahnership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. for proceeds totaling $68.9 million. As a result of the transaction, we recorded a
gain on salé of $lv.‘2 million. The joint venture is consolidated with and into the accounts of the operating partnership. Proceeds from the transaction were used
to repay a pdrtion Qf the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The following is a dlscussion of the material changes in our consolidated statements of income and a discussion of the impact that the significant events or
transactioﬁs, :as déscribéd ébove, had on one or more line items of our consolidated statements of income when comparing the year ended December 31,
2004 1o tHe year ebded December 31, 2003,

Rental lncomje“. Réﬁtal incdme increased by $42.1 million, or 13.4%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties coming on-line resulted in
increases of $‘37."7‘ fﬁillion and $311,000, respectively. Additionally, our ather properties experienced a $4.1 million increase primarily due to an increase in ter-
mination fee inborhe of $4.7 miltion and an increase in operating cost recoveries of $1.3 milfion for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year
ended Decembear 3;1‘, 2003. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in rental income of $2.3 million refating primarily to decreased occupancy and

rental rate declings for newly executed leases.

. ! ! q ’ . . . . N .
Service Business and Othet fhcorne. Service business and other income decreased $2.9 million, or 17.1%, primarily due to a decrease in interest income resuit-
ing from the répaymént of a:nate receivable on February 4, 2004 and the reduction of consulting fee income due to the completion of consulting contracts
earfy in 2004.

Property Operating. énd Maintenance. Property operating and maintenance costs increased by $11.1 million, or 13.8%. The real estate acquisitions and devel-
oprment propefties cbming on-line resulted in increases of $10.9 million and $137,000, respectively. Property operating and maintenance expenses related to
our other properties ;increased by $100,000. Property operating and maintenance expense at our other properties experienced increases due to increased util-

ity cost and other Qperating éxpenses, offset by a decrease in bad debt expense.

Real Estate Taxes. Real estate taxes increased by $8.1 million, or 26.0%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties coming on-line resulted in
increases of $4.5 million and $85,000, respectively. Real estate taxes related to our other properties increased by $3.6 million. The increase was primarily due

to refunds received:during the year-ended December 31, 2003.

Expenses of Service Bu51hess. Expenses of service business decreased by $515,000, or 4.9%, primarily due to a decrease in income tax expense offset by an
increase in compensation related expenses.
General and adm[niszralive and personnel costs. General and administrative and personnel costs increased by $815,000, or 7.4%, primarily due to an increase

in compensation related expenses, which resulted from an increase in amounts due participants related to our deferred compensation and share incentive plans.




Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization increased by $19.8 million, or 27.4%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties
coming on-line resulted in increases of $15.0 million and $212,000, respectively. Other properties increased by $4.6 million which is attributable to the depre-

ciation and amortization expense related to capital expenditures incurred at our properties subsequent to acquisition.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $805,000, or 1.2%, primarily as a result of an increase in weighted average borrowings outstanding for the
year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase was partially offset by a decrease in the weighted average
interest rate paid on outstanding borrowings from 6.61% in 2003 to 6.22% in 2004 and an increase in capitalized interest from $416,000 in 2003 to $653,000
in 2004.

Loss on (nvestment in Securities. Lass on investment in securities of $420,000 resulted from a loss recorded on an investment we made in August 2000. We
invested $423,000 in Narrowcast Communications, a provider of an electronic tenant information service known as Elevator News Network. On May 11, 2004,
we received a letter notifying us that Narrowcast Communications was being dissolved. Included with the letter was a check totaling $3,000 representing a par-
tial return of our investment. As a result, during the second quarter of 2004, we recognized a loss of $420,000 representing our remaining investment in the

entity.

Loss on impairment of morigage joan. Loss on impairment of mortgage loan of $2.9 million, relates to a $4.4 million note receivable associated with & real estate
sales transaction completed in 2001. On December 22, 2004, we received correspondence from Fhe borrower indicating an inability to fuffill their total obliga-
tion under the note. Due to the fact that our note receivable is subordinate to a first mortgage totaling approximately $12.0 million, we initiated an evaluation
of the underlying real estate. Our evaluation was to determine whether the fair value of the property, less cost to sell would be sufficient to satisfy both the first
mortgage and our note recelvable. In our opinion, the fair value of the underlying real estate would not be sufficient to satisfy both the first mortgage and our

nate receivable and thus in the preparation of our financial statements, we recognized a $2.9 million write-cdown of the note.

Minority Interests. Minority interests decreased $7.5 million, or 73.2%, primarily due to a decrease in the proportionate share of net income attributable to the
Series E and Series B Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred unitholders as a result of the repurchase of these units on February 4, 2004 and February

24, 2004, respectively.

Discontinued Operations. Discontinued operations increased by $8.2 million, primarily as a resutt of the gain from the sale of properties of $12.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004 compared to a loss on the sale of properties of $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, partially offset by a loss
from debt defeasance of $5.3 million recognized during the year ended December 31, 2004. Discontinued operations were also impacted by an impairment

loss of $1.8 million recognized during the year ended December 31, 2003 and the timing of sale of the properties.

Gain on Sale of Land and Partnership Interest, Gain on sale of land and partnership interest decreased by $8.2 million, or 87.0%. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, we sold an interest in a real estate partnership resulting in a gain of approximately $1.2 million. During the year ended December 31,

2003, we disposed of three land parcels resulting in a gain on sale of $3.4 million.




Companson of the Yaar Endad December 31, 2003 to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

The table below presents our consohdated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Lo ey
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands), 1 .1

Revenues [

Rental mcome

Serv:ce busmess and other |ncome

Operating éxpénéé‘s- e

Property operatlng and' mamtenance

Real estate taxes v i

General and admmcstratwe and personnel costs

Expenses of serwce busmess )

Deprecnatxon and amortuzatlon

Other expenses

Interest expense

e e g i et e

Amomzatuon of »deferred fmancmg costs

Income from oontinuing‘ operations before equity in income of unconsolidated

joint vehtd%es"ahd uncohsolidated subsidiaries and minority interests

Equity i in mcome of unconsoudated joint ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries

Mmonty [nterests

year ended december 31,

2003

$ 314,718
16,769

331,487

80,583
31,274
10,988
10,513
72,48:3

67,232
2 284

56,130

2,565
(10,227)

!ncoming from cohtinuing operatibns‘
| Vi

Dlscontmued operahons
Income from d|scontlnued operatmns
(Loss)/gam from d|sposmon of dtscontmued operations |

Mmonty nnterests relatéd to discontinued operations

L

Income before gam on: sale of land

s e

Gain on sa\e of nd

e by e o SR . J—— PN OO US R YU PSS U

i

Net income*

Preferred di wdends

Net lncome \apphcab\e to, common sharehotders

7

48,458

6,034
(4,457)
l 524

49,982
9 435

$ 59417

50,965

205,841

(53)

(8,452}

2002

$ 307,487
4,386

311,873

75,235
35,119
10,361
61 944
182 659

64,468
1,832

62914

3,154
(10,450)

55,618

10,966
8,430
(733)
18,663

74,281

$ 74,281
& 358)
$ 65 923




Included below is a discussion of the significant events or transactions that have impacted our resuits of operations when comparing the year ended December

31, 2003 to the year ended December 31, 2002.

Acquisition of Real Estate. Acquisitions are a key component of our external growth strategy. We selectively pursue acquisitions in our core markets when long-
term yields make acquisitions attractive. Prior to March 2002, we owned a 20% non-controlling interest in the joint venture owning the Burnett Plaza proper-
ty, a 1.0 million net rentable square foot office building located in our Scuthwest Region. Our 20% inferest was accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and thus, our share of the results of operations from the property were included in the line item “equity in income of joint ventures and unconsol-
idated subsidiaries” on our consolidated statements of income. On March 7, 2002, we purchased from Burnett Plaza — VEF 1ll, L.P,, an affiliate of Lend Lease
Real Estate Investments, its 80% interest in the joint venture for a purchase price of approximately $51.2 million and the assumption of their pro rata share of
joint venture debt. Subsequent to this purchase, the results of operations for the Burnett Plaza property are consolidated into the results of operations of our

operating partnership.

In addition to the acquisition of the Burnett Plaza property, between January 1, 2002 and December 31, 2003, we acquired twelve wholly-owned office prop-

erties containing in the aggregate approximately 1.4 million net rentable square feet as presented below.

month of number of net rentable acquisition

acquired properties segment market acquisition buildings square feet price
(in thousands) (in milliens)

12601 Fair Lakes Circle Mid-Atlantic Metro. Wash., D.C. Nav, 2002 1 264 $ 55.1
Park West C3 Southwest N Da(tas/Ft».VWorth VFekV). 200é - 1 o >339 o ‘ 281
410 Warrenville Road B 7 Midwest Chicago May 2003 1 ‘60 87
Corporate Lakes I11(2) ‘ Midwest Chicago Juné 2063 o 1 ‘— 124 » ‘22.6
2231 Wood Oak Drive(2>> Mid-Atlantic Metré. Wésh,, DC. Aug. 2003 1 - é28 52.2
Caminc West Corporate Fark(Z) Southern Calif. San Diego Név; ‘2003k 1 - 54 89
Carlsbad Airport Piaza@). V Southern Caﬂf. San Diego Nov. 2003 " ’ 1 L - 62 105
La Place Courtt? . Southern Calif. San Diegoi 7 Nov. 726037 o 2 h 81 136
Pacific Ridge Corporate Centre(@! Southern Calif. San Diego Nov.»2003 - 2 121 238
Pacific View Plazal2) . Southern Calif. San Diegov ” Nov. 2003 ' 1 52 10.2
V - 12H 1385 ‘$ 233.8

(1) Net rentable square feet defines the area of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable area plus a portion of the common areas of the
property allocated to a tenant.
(2) Properties were acquired by the operating partnership and its affiliates, and subsequently transferred to our Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. joint venture on January 22, 2004.

Leasing of Develpment Projects. Cur results of operations, for the year ended December 31, 2003, have been bolstered by increased occupancy at three devel-
opment projects. The projects include approximately 182,000 net rentable square feet in our Mid-Atlantic Region, 223,000 net rentable square feet in our
Southwest Region and 40,000 net rentable square feet in our Southern California Region. The projects were approximately 71% leased and rent paying at

December 31, 2003.

Real Estate Dispositions. During the period January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2003, we disposed of seven industrial properties containing 875,000 net
rentable square feet and fourteen office properties containing 1.2 million net rentable square feet. The industrial properties were sold on September 10, 2002
and included all of the industrial properties within our Mid-Atlantic Region. Three office properties containing 194,000 net rentable square feet were sold on
October 17, 2002 and represented our only office holdings within the Los Angeles area, a market within our Scuthern California Region. Two office properties,
containing 339,000 net rentable square feet, within our Southwest region were sold on June 26, 2003, The remaining 644,000 net rentable square feet includ-

ed the disposition on July 24, 2003 of nine office properties representing our only properties within the Atlanta area, a market within our Mid-Atlantic region.
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Other Significant Réél Esfaté\?’ransaczions. On Novemnber 22, 1999, we acquired 123 North Wacker, a 540,000 net rentable square foot office property locat-
ed in our Midwest‘Reg{on far a purchase price of approximately $87.3 million. The property was primarily leased to a single tenant whose intention was to
vacate the property |n Septernber 2001 upon the expiration of the in-place lease. Our intention was to convert and market the building for lease as a multi-ten-
ant property. The property which was vacated as intended incurred significant leasing activity during 2002 and 2003. The property was approximately 88%
leased at December 31, 2003 compared to 81% leased at December 31, 2002.

The following is a digcussion of the material changes in our consolidated statements of income and a discussion of the impact that the significant events or
transactions, as déséribed above, had on one or more line items of our consolidated statements of income when comparing the year ended December 31,
2003 to the year ended December 31, 2002.

Rental Income. Reﬁtal incomeg increased by $7.2 miflion, or 2.4%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties coming on-line resulted in increas-
es of $21.1 m|lhon and $2.3 million, respectively. The leasing of our 123 North Wacker property resulted in an increase of $2.5 million. The increases were off-
set by a decrease of $18 7 fillion from our other properties relating primarily to occupancy and rental rate declines in our portfclio and a decrease in termi-
nation fee income’ recogn ized for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended December 31, 2002.

. . {

Property Operating ond Ma/htenance.‘Property operating and maintenance costs increased by $5.3 million, or 7.1%. The real estate acquisitions and devel-
opment propemes commg on-line resulted in increases of $5.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively, The leasing of our 123 North Wacker property resulted
inan |ncrease of $383 000, Property operating and maintenance expenses related to our other properties decreased by $2.0 million. The decrease in proper-
ty operating and mamtenance expenses at our other properties is primarily due to the decrease from the year ended December 31, 2002 to the year ended

December 31, 2003 of baddebt expenses recognized at our properties

Real Estate Taxes. Real estate taxes decreased by $3.8 million, or 10.9%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties coming on-line resulted in
increases of $1.3 million and $59,000, respectively. The increases were offset by decreases of $4.5 million and $757,000 from our other properties and our
123 North Wacker ‘property, respectively. The decrease primarily resulted from real estate tax refunds received and lower estimates of current year taxes result-

ing from lower property tax éssessments across our portfolio.

Service Busﬁessiqnd Other Income/Expenses of Service Business. Service business and other income and the expenses of service business increased as a
result of the‘acquisition of the remaining interest in Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. and the resulting consclidation of the accounts with and into the
accounts of the dberating partnership. During the year ended December 31, 2002, our pro rata share of the. results of operations of Prentiss Properties

Resources, Inc. wére included in the dine item “equity in income of joint ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries” in our consolidated statement of income.

Depreciation and ‘Aﬁvorlizaﬁbn. Depreciation and amortization increased by $10.5 million, or 17.0%. The real estate acquisitions and development properties
coming oh-lihe resulted in increases of $5.9 million and $2.0 million, respectively. The leasing of our 123 Narth Wacker property resulted in an increase of $1.1
million. Other properties increased by $1.5 million which is attributable to the depreciation and amortization expense related to capital expenditures incurred

at our properfies?subsequent o acquisition.

interest Expénsé. Interest expense increased by $2.8 million, or 4.3%, primarily as a resuit of an increase in weighted average borrowings outstanding for the
year ended Decérﬁber 31, 2003 compared to the year ended December 31, 2002 accompanied by a decrease in capitalized interest from $3.4 million in 2002
to $416,000 in 2(‘);03 The increase was partially offset by a decrease in the weighted average interest rate paid on outstanding borrowings from 6.78% in 2002
10 6.61% in 2003..
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Discontinued Operations. Discontinued operations decreased by $17.1, primarily as a result of the loss from the sale of properties of $4.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 compared to a gain on the sale of properties of $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Also contributing to the

decrease is the shortened period of time the assets were in our portfolio during 2003 versus 2002.

Gain on Sale of Land, During the year ended December 31, 2003, we disposed of three parcels of land resulting in a gain on sale of $9.4 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents were $8.6 million and $5.9 million at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively. The increase in cash and cash

equivalents is a result of net cash flows provided by operating activities exceeding net cash used in investing and financing activities.

Cash flows provided by operating activities totaled $158.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $133.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The change in cash flows from operating activities is attributable to (1) the factors discussed in our analysis of results of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to December 31, 2003 and (2) the timing of receipt of revenues and payment of expenses which is evidenced

by cash outflows of only $4.1 million in 2004 compared to $21.6 million in 2003 refated to the changes in assets and liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities totaled $79.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to $142.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2003. The decrease in net cash used in investing activities of $63.2 million is due primarily to an increase in cash generated from the sale of real estate
of $65.8 million, an increase of $69.3 million in proceeds from the sale of a joint venture interest in a real estate partnership, an increase in cash generated
from the repayment of notes receivable of $11.5 million, partially offset by an increase of $58.7 million in cash used to purchase real estate, an increase of
$19.2 million used for capital expenditures refated to in service properties and an increase of $4.3 million in cash used in the development and redevelopment

of real estate.

Net cash used in financing activities totaled $76.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to net cash provided of $9.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003. The increase in net cash used in financing activities of $86.1 million is due primarily to an increase of $105.0 million of cash used
for the redemption of preferred units, an increase of $64.5 million in net cash used for distributions, a decrease in cash generated from the sale of common
shares of $34.3 million, an increase in cash used to pay debt defeasance cost on the extinguishment of debt of $5.3 million, partially offset by an increase in

net borrowings of $37.2 million and an increase in capital contributions from consolidated joint ventures of $26.9 miltion.

Net cash flow from operations represents the primary source of liquidity to fund distributions, debt service, capital improvements and non-revenue enhancing
tenant improvements. We expect that our revolving credit facility will provide for funding of working capital and revenue enhancing tenant improvements, unan-
ticipated cash needs as well as acquisitions and development costs. Our principal short-term liquidity needs are to fund normal recurring expenses, debt sery-

ice reguirements and the minimum distributions required to maintain our REIT qualification under the Internal Revenue Code.

Our net cash flow from cperations is generally derived from rental revenues and operating expense reimbursements from tenants and, 1o a limited extent, from
fees generated by our office and industrial real estate management service business. Qur net cash flow from operations is therefore dependent upon the occu-
pancy level of our properties, the collectibility of rent from our tenants, the level of operating and other expenses of our properties, and other factors. Material
changes in these factors may adversely affect our net cash flow from operations. Such changes, in turn, would adversely affect our ability to fund distributions,
debt service, capital improvements and non-revenue enhancing tenant improvements. In addition, a materiat adverse change in our net cash flow from opera-
tions may affect the financial performance covenants under our revolving credit facility. If we fail to meet any of our financial performance covenants, our revolv-
ing credit facility may become unavailable to us, or the interest charged on the revolving credit facility may increase. Either of these circumstances could adverse-

ly affect our ability to fund working capital and revenue enhancing tenant improvements, unanticipated cash needs, acquisitions and development costs.
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In order to qualrfy'as g REIT for federal income tax purposes, we must distribute at least 90% of our taxable income, excluding capital gains. We expect to make

dlSTl‘lbUthl’lS to our shareholders pnmanly based on our cash flow from operations distributed by our operating partnership. We anticipate that our short-term

liquidity needs w ‘l ‘be fully funded from cash flows provided by operating activities and, when necessary to fund shortfalls resulting from the timing of collec-

tions of accounts recelvable |n the ordinary course of business, from our revolving credit facility. In the event that our cash flow needs exceed cash fiows pro-

vided by operatrng actlvl' S, we may be forced to incur additional debt or sel real estate properties to fund such cash flow needs.

We expeet to meEt our Iong~terrn quuidity requirements for the funding of activities, such as development, real estate acquisitions, scheduled debt maturities,
major renovatlons expansrons and other revenue enhancing capital improvements through long-term secured and unsecured indebtedness and through the
lssuance of addrtronal debt and equity securities. We also intend to use proceeds from our revolving credit facility to fund real estate acquisitions, development,

redevelopment expansro ’s and caprtal improvements on an interim basis.

Dobt Finahclrrg i

As of December 31 2004 we had outstandlng total consolrdated indebtedness of approximately $1.2 billion. The amount of indebtedness that we may incur,

and the polrcres‘:‘rth respect thereto are not limited by our declaratlon of trust and bylaws, and are solely within the discretion of our board of trustees, limit-

ed only by vanous flnanr:lal covenants in our credit agreements. It is our general policy to limit combined indebtedness including our pro rata share of consol-
idated and unconsohdated Jornt venture debt so that, at the time such debt s incurred, it does not exceed 50% of our total market capitalization. As of December

31, 2004 we had outstandrng total indebtedness, including our pro rata share: of consolidated and unconsolidated joint venture debt, of approximately $1.2

billion, o aporo ‘ tely 38 8% of total market capitalization based on a common share price of $38.20 per common share. Qur credit agreements limit total

rndebtedness toi 55% of total assets and require an interest coverage ratio of at least 2 to 1.

Cn February 19 2004 we renewed our $300 million revolving credit facility, including an extension of the maturity date from May 23, 2005 to February 19,
2007. The mteres ‘ ate on the facrllty will fluctuate based on our overall leverage with a range between 30-day LIBCR plus 112.5 basis points and 30-day LIBOR

ity was substantrally oversubscrrbed with initial commitments of $370 million. Banking participants in the revolving credit facility include Bank One as
Admmrstratrve Agent Bank of Amenca as Syndication Agent; Commerzbank, EuroHypo and Societe General as Documentation Agents; PNC Bank, Sun Trust
and Union Bank of Calrfornra as Co-Agents; and Comerica Bank, KeyBank, Mellon Bank, and SouthTrust Bank as Lenders. On June 25, 2004, we exercised
an accordion feature WI‘[hln our revolving credit facrlrty expanding the facility's overa!l borrowing capacity from $300 miilion to $375 million. Other terms of the

facility remam unchanged‘

On Maren,Z,lZOOAl we negotiated an interest rate reduction on our $75.0 million unsecured term loan with Commerzbank AG. The interest rate which is based

on overa‘ll,leverage‘ was féduced from 30-day LIBOR plus 125 to 175 basis points to 30-day LIBOR plus 112.5 to 160 basis points. in addition, the term loan
i i

which had an criginal maturity date of March 15, 2006 was extended to March 15, 2009.

n
i s
i i
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Cn May‘ 20‘ 2004 fin conneotlon with a real estate sales transaction, we exercised our right to complete a voluntary defeasance of the morigage loan collater-

alized by the sold propertles Pursuant to the defeasance, we transferred the mortgage loan with an outstanding principal balance of $35.8 million to an unre-

lated successor entrty }he buyer of the properties transferred proceeds totaling $41.1 million representing the proceeds necessary to acquire U.S. treasuries
sufﬂcrent to cover the debt servrce of the mortgage loan from the defeasance date through maturity of the loan, We recognized a loss from debt defeasance of
$5.3 miflion dunng the perlod wh\ch we included in discontinued operations. The amount used to repay the mortgage loan was funded with proceeds received

from the propertles sold.’ !
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On July 23, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P., completed a five-year, $10.7 million toan collateralized by a 69,000 net rentable square foot office building in
San Diego, California. The loan, which is interest only until maturity, has an interest rate that fluctuates between 130 and 150 basis points over 30-day LIBOR
depending on the property’s occupancy, and matures July 23, 2009. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund a pro rata capital distribution to the joint ven-
ture partners based on their ownership interest in‘Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. Our operating partnership used proceeds received from the capital distribution

to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On July 29, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P, completed a five-year $85.0 million loan, collateralized by nine office buildings owned by various subsidiaries
of Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. located in Illinois, California and Virginia. The interest rate on the loan is 85 basis points over 30-day LIBOR and the monthly
payments are interest only, with the principal of $85.0 million payable at its maturity on August 1, 2009. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund a pro rata
capital distribution to the joint venture partners based on their ownership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. Our operating partnership used proceeds

received from the capital distribution to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On August 16, 2004, Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC, completed a three-year, $34.0 million construction loan with two one-year extension options to fund
a portion of its 158,000 net rentable square foot office development project in Del Mar, California. Construction of the development project commenced dur-
ing the second quarter of 2004. The loan which has an interest rate of 140 basis points over 30-day LIBOR matures September 1, 2007. The interest rate will
drop 10 basis points if certain economic and occupancy targets are achieved. Borrowings under the construction loan, which totaled $8.9 million at December

31, 2004, were used to fund a portion of the development cost incurred to date.

On October 1, 2004, a $33.2 million, 6.92% fixed rate borrowing collateralized by a building located in Dallas, Texas was open for repayment without penalty.

We repaid the outstanding balance using proceeds from our revolving credit facility.

On October 8, 2004, in connection with a property acquisition, we assumed a $46.0 million, 8.22% amortizing mortgage loan with a maturity date of November
1, 2005. We recorded the debt at $47.7 million representing our estimate of the fair market value of the debt on the date of acquisition. The fair value of the
debt was calculated using an effective interest rate of 3.7% which represents our estimate of a market interest rate that we could have achieved on a 1-year

collateralized mortgage loan on the date of acquisition.

On December 21, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P, completed a five-year $20.0 million loan, collateralized by two office buildings located in Waukegan,
lllinois. The interest rate on the loan is 110 basis points over 30-day LIBOR and the monthly payments are interest only, with the principal of $20.0 million
payable at its maturity on December 1, 2009. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund a pro rata capital distribution to the joint venture partners based on
their ownership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. Our operating partnership used proceeds received from the capital distribution to repay a portion of

the out§tanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

During the period, we repaid approximately $40.4 million of our $70.4 miltion collateralized term loan scheduled to mature on September 30, 2004. The remain-
ing $30.0 million was extended for a period of three years to mature on September 30, 2007 at 30-day LIBOR plus 115 basis points. The loan was previously
collateralized by four properties including Willow Oaks | & (1, 8521 Leesburg Pike, and the 1BM Call Center. The amendment released the Willow QOaks proper-

ties from the collateral pool.




The following table sets forth our mortgages and notes payable, including our unconsolidated joint venture debt, as of December 31, 2004,

horrower/dgscriﬁliur; j current balance amortization
' | (in thousands)
Consohdated Entmes
Burnet rPlaza 14"55:;(;,'(’6“165.» o ST
Burnett Plaza = ‘ $ 66,000 None
PL Properﬂés‘Assobiazes, LP
Park WestC2. ¢ ¢ . 32,926 30yr
Prentiss Properl/es ACQU/SI(IDH Partners, L.P.
2101 Webster | - 47,039 None
Highland Court.: ‘ : 4,354 25 yr
Plaza 1 &1l . 6,861 18yr
Revoivnng Credlt Facmty 217,500 None
Coflateralized Term Loarsm 30,000 None
Unsecured Term Loan ~ EuroHypo 1 100,000 None
Unsecured Terrﬁ Loah -~ Commerz 75,000 None
7101 Wisconsin Avenue 20,095 30yr
Unsecured Teith :Loah}"E‘UroHypo It 13,760 30yr
The Ordway o - 47,425 30yr
world Savmgs Center i 28,202 30 yr
One 0! Hare Centre k 39,112 30yr
3130 Fairview Park Drive 21,926 30 yr
Research Ofﬂce Center. t i1} 43419 28 yr
Bannockburn Centre 25,838 30yr
Del Mar Loan | 43,375 30Dyr
Prentiss Propertres Corporeium LP
Corporetum Oﬁtce Campus 24,350 30yr
Prentiss Properiies Real Estate Fund {, L.P
PPREF! Portfolio;Loan‘?’_ 180,100 None
Prentiss Office !n\(é§lors, LB
The Bluffs ‘ 10,700 None
Collateralized Term Loar~ Mass Mutual(4! 85,000 None
Lakeside Point &1 20,000 None
Prentiss/Goliins Del Mar Hé/‘ghts LLC®
H\gh BIUff thge Construction Loan 8, 929 None
Tot‘.a].bzahsolldated ﬁOth‘S»tandmg Debt - $«1“191 911 oo
Uﬁc;);s;hkt;ated *[Entxt;es} B h o o
Broadrnoor Austin Assomates T T e
Broadmoor Atistin(®) $ 131,979 16 yr
Tysons International Partners®)
1676 International Drive. 43,530 28yr
8250 Greensboro ‘ 15,583 28 yr
R Ui Ousenag oo s s
. ‘%otan ng;[ iy ot A1 e i e e e et e e e $1‘383?JO3 e

interest rate

LIBOR+1.500%
6.63%

3.70%
7.27%
7.75%
LIBOR + 1.250%
LIBOR + 1.150%
LIBOR + 1.250%
LIBOR + 1.250%
7.25%
7.46%
7.95%
791%
6.80%
7.00%
7.64%
8.05%
7.41%

7.02%
7.58%
LIBOR + 1.300%
LIBOR + 0.850%
LIBOR + 1.100%
LIBOR + 1.400%

7.04%

7.68%
7.83%

maturity

July 8, 2005
November 10, 2010

November 1, 2005
April 1, 2006
January 1, 2007
February 19, 2007
September 30, 2007
May 22, 2008
March 15, 2009
April 1, 2009

July 15, 2009
August 1, 2010
November 1, 2010
January 10, 2011
Aprit 1, 2011
October 1, 2011
June 1, 2012
Jurne 1, 2013

February 1, 2009
February 26, 2007
July 23, 2009
August 1, 2009

December 1, 2009

September 1, 2007

April 10, 2011

August 30, 2010
August 30, 2010




(1) The Term Loan is collateralized by the following two properties: 8521 Leesburg Pike and the I1BM Call Center.

(2) The PPREF} Portfolic Loan is collateralized by the following 36 properties: the Los Angeles industrial properties (18 praperties), the Chicago industrial properties (four properties),
the Cottonwood Office Center (three properties), Park West E1 and E2 (two properties), One Northwestern Plaza, 3141 Fairview Park Drive, 13825 Sunrise Valley Drive, O'Hare Plaza
I, 1717 Deerfield Road, 2411 Dulies Corner Road, 4401 Fair Lakes Court, the WestPoint Office Building and the PacifiCare Building.

{3} Our operating partnership and its affiliates own a 51% interest in Prentiss Office investors, L.P. The accounts of Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. are consolidated with and into the
accounts of the operating partnership. The amounts shown reflect 100% of the debt balance.

(4) The Term Loan is collateratized by the following 9 properties: Camino West Corporate Park, Carlsbad Airport Plaza, La Place Court (2 properties), Pacific Ridge Corparate Centre (2
properties), Pacific View Plaza, Corporate Lakes 111, and 2291 Wood Oak Drive.

(8) Our operating partnership and its affiliates own a 70% interest in Prentiss/Coliins Del Mar Heights, LLC. The accounts of Prentiss/Collins Det Mar Heights, LLC are consolidated with
and into the accounts of the operating partnership. The amount shown reflects 100% of the debt balance.

(6) We own a 50% non-controlling interest in the entity that owns the Broadmoor Austin properties, which interest is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The amount
shown reflects 100% of the non-recourse mortgage indebtedness collateralized by the properties.

(7)  We own a 25% non-controlling interest in the entity that owns the 1676 international Brive and 8260 Greensboro properties, which interest is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. The amaunt shown reflects 100% of the non-recourse mortgage indebtedness collateralized by the properties.

The majority of our fixed rate secured debt contains prepayment provisions based on the greater of a yield maintenance penalty or 1.0% of the outstanding
loan amount. The yield maintenance penalty essentially compensates the lender for the difference between the fixed rate under the loan and the yield that the

lender would receive if the lender reinvested the prepaid loan balance in U.S. Treasury Securities with a simitar maturity as the loan.

Under our loan agreements, we are required to satisfy various affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations on total indebtedness, total collateral-
ized indebtedness and cash distributions, as well as obligations to maintain certain minimum tangible net worth and certain minimum interest coverage ratios.
Our credit agreements limit total indebtedness to 55% of total assets and require a debt service coverage ratio of at least 2 to 1. Our credit agreements provide
for a 30-day period to cure a default caused by our failure to punctually and properly perform, observe and comply with the covenants contained therein. The
agreements also provide for an additional 75-day period if such failure is not capable of being cured within 30-days and we are diligently pursuing the cure

thereof. We were in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2004,

Hedging Activities

To manage interest rate risk, we may employ options, forwards, interest rate swaps, caps and floors or a combination thereof depending on the underlying
interest rate exposure. We undertake a variety of borrowings: from revoiving credit facilities, to medium- and long-term financings. To manage’ overall inter-
est rate exposure, we use interest rate instruments, typically interest rate swaps, 1o convert a partion of our variable rate debt to fixed rate debt. Interest rate

differentials that arise under these swap contracts are recognized as interest expense over the life of the contracts.

We may employ forwards or purchased options to hedge qualifying anticipated transactions. Gains and losses are deferred and recognized in net income in

the same period that the anticipated transaction occurs, expires or is otherwise terminated.

Beginning on the effective date, each swap effectively locks in our cost of funds at the swap rate paid (before the spread over LIBOR) on variable rate bor-

rowings in amounts equal to the respective notional amounts of the swap agreement.




The followiné ta‘ble“ s'urnrnariz'es the notional amounts and fair values of our derivative financial instruments outstanding at December 31, 2004 and highlights
those swap ag‘reernénts exeduted during the year ended December 31, 2004. The notional amount provides an indication of the extent of our involvement in

these instrnmentsy‘a‘s‘ of the balance sheet date, but does not represent exposure to credit, interest rate or market risks,

swap rate received

R L swap rate paid (variable) at

notional amnun{ S IR (fixed) december 31, 2004 swap maturity fair value

A e . (in thousands)
$250miion 0o 4.345% 2.400% July 2005 s (@2
$ 15 0 mllhon‘ L S ‘ 4.345% 2.400% July 2005 (127)
$200milion 1 1 . 5.985% 2.400% March 2006 (679)
$ 300 milion B 5.990% 2.400% March 2006 (1,015)
$ 50 0 million J ‘ 2 270% 2.400% August 2007 1,500
$ 25 0 rmlhon 2‘277% 2.400% August 2007 746
$ 70 0 mrlhon“)( August 2008 (1 136)
$ 30 O mnlron September 2008 (175)
$ 30 O mrllron<2 October 2008 (134)
$ 200 mlﬂlon(el e October 2008 @9)
$ 50.0 mr!lron @ : May 2009 (286)
$ 30 O rm“lon@ October 2009 558
Totar ’ $ a 046)

(1} The mterest rat swap agreement was executed by our Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. joint venture.
(2) The mterest rate swap agreement was completed during the year ended December 31, 2004,

Capital Imprdvérnéﬁm

Our propértie:s“re‘qbire pe‘riddic investments of capital for tenant-related capital expenditures and for general capital improvements. The majority of capital
required réiateé to‘ tenant»reiated bapifal expenditures and is dependent upon our leasing activity. Our leasing activity is a function of the percentage of our in-

place leases exprnng in current and future periods accompanied by our exposure to tenant defaults and our ability to increase the average occupancy of our

portfoho For 1he year ended December 31, 2004 capital expenditures related to our in-service properties totaled $54.4 million.
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Equity Financing

During the year ended December 31, 2004, 2,496,462 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $.01, were issued. The table below details the common

shares issued during the period, common shares placed in or removed from treasury during the period and the common shares outstanding at December 31, 2004:
Common shares outstanding at December 31, 2003 42,613,284

Common shares issued:

Dribble Plantl 1,634,300
Share options exercised 612,020
Conversion of operating partnership units 113,200
1986 Share Incentive Plan 97,450
Employees’ Share Purchase Plan 29,683
Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan(@ 6,154
Trustees' Share Incentive Plan 3,655

. . e . S o .o 496 452

Common shares piaced infremoved from treasury:

Common shares surrendered in connection with share options exercised (125,863)
Restricted share grants forfeited (4,000)
Common shares removed from treasury pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan 2,095
Common shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 44,981,888

{1} OnJune 10, 2002, we entered into a securities sales agreement with Brinsan Patrick Securities Corporation which we refer to as the Dribble Plan. Under the Dribble Plan we may
sell, with Brinson Patrick acting as our sales agent, up to 3,000,000 of our common shares at the then market price directly to the public. During the year ended December 31,
2004, we issued 1,634,300 common shares through the Oribble Plan resuiting in net proceeds of $54.1 miltion. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding bor-
rowings under our revalving credit facility. On May 28, 2004, we entered into an additional securities sales agreerment with Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation covering 2,000,000
of our common shares in the form of the Dribble Plan that was adopted on June 10, 2002. Shares will be issuable pursuant to the May 28, 2004 Dribble Plan after all shares have
been issued under the original Dribble Plan.

{2) We have a Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan which allows investors an option to purchase common shares by making optional cash investments of $100 to $5,000
in a given month for current shareholders or $500 to $5,000 for persons who are not current shareholders. The plan also allows shareholders to purchase our common shares by
reinvesting all or a portion of cash dividends received on our common or preferred shares, Purchases of greater than $5,000 can be accomplished by us granting a waiver to the
$5,000 limit. During the year ended December 31, 2004, pursuant to our Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan, we issued 6,154 common shares resulting in net pro-
ceeds of $214,000. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On February 4, 2004, pursuant to a unit repurchase agreement between our operating partnership and Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P., we repur-
chased from Brandywine Cperating Partnership, L.P. our outstanding 7.50% Series E Preferred Units and 26,768 common units held by Brandywine Operating
Partnership, L.P. The Series E Preferred Units, which were classified as mandatorily redeemable preferred units, a lability, on our consolidated balance sheet,
were repurchased at their liquidation vatue of $10.0 mitlion plus accrued and unpaid dividends of $70,055. The common units, which were classified within
mincrity interest in operating partnership on our consolidated balance sheet, were repurchased for $891,803 representing a per unit price of $33.316, calcu-
lated as the average of the daily market price of our common shares for the 10 consecutive trading days prior o the date of repurchase. Concurrent with the
repurchase, Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. repaid two promissory notes totaling $8.9 million and accrued and unpaid interest of $282,308 due to our
operating partnership. An amount totaling $1.7 million, representing the difference between the units repurchased and the proceeds from the promissory notes

was paid by our operating partnership to Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. using funds from our revolving credit facility.




Using proceéas frbf"n our‘révolvinfg credit facility, on February 24, 2004, we repurchased the operating partnership's outstanding 8.30% Series B Cumulative
Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Umts which were classified within minority interest in operating partnership on our consclidated balance sheet, for approxi-
mately $96 2 mllhon whlch included accrued and unpaid dividends of $1.2 million. An amaunt totahng $1.6 mitlion representing the original issuance cost
of the Senes B Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units was subtracted from net income in arriving at net income applicable to common shareholders

in accordance Wll’h EITF TODIC No. D-42.

UFF-BALANCE‘.SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At December31 2004 we had the following off-balance sheet arrangements: (1) a non-controlling 50% interest in Broadmoor Austin Associates, a real estate

joint venture and (2) a 25% non- controlling interest in Tysons International Partners, a real estate joint venture.

Our inveétment ic‘unconéolidated joint ventures represents less than .6% of our consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2004 and approximately 1.5%
of our cash flow from opeérations for the year ended December 31, 2004, Our investments, however, do provide us with several benefits including increased

market share |mportant customer relations and a possible capital source to fund future real estate projects.

Broadmoor Austinj Associates and Tysons International Partners represent reat estate joint ventures which own and operate office properties in Austin, Texas
and Tysons Corner, ‘Virginia‘, respectively. We act as managing venture partner and have the authority to conduct the business affairs of each joint venture, sub-
jectto abpfoVaI ‘énd veto rights of the other venture partner. We account for our interest in these joint ventures using the equity method of accounting,

The following infcfmatioﬁ summarizes the financial position at December 31, 2004 for the investments in which we held an interest at December 31, 2004:

Summary of Financial Position company’s

(in thousands) "jﬁi : total assets total debt(! total equity investment
Broadmoor Austin Associates $ 97962 $ 131,979 $ (34,814) $ 4217
Tysonslnternatlonal Partrers $ 89,268 $ 59,113 $ 28914 8,726

e ikl st e oo et < ot e i PSS N . 12,943.

(1} The [n‘ortgage'debt, all of which is non-recourse, is collateralized by the individual real estate property or properties within each venture, the net bock value of which totaled
$164.9 milliof at December 31, 2004. Our pro rata share of the non-recourse mortgage debt totaled $80.8 million at December 31, 2004.

The following infd;mation summarizes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 for our unconsclidated joint ventures:

s

: company’s
Summary of Dperallons ! share of
(in thausands) ‘ total revenue net income net income/(loss)
Broadmoor Aust\n Assocnates ~$ 20015 $ 5058 $ 2,529
Tysons Internatlonal Partners ' $ 11, 985 $  (399) {100)

! $ 2429




CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

We have contractual obligations including mortgages and notes payable and ground lease obligations. The table below presents, as of December 31, 2004, our

future scheduled principal repayments of mortgages and notes payable and ground lease obligations of our consolidated praperties:

Contractual Obligations payments due by period
(in thousands) total 2005 208672007 200872009 thereafter
Morigages and notes payable $1,191,911 $ 118,308 $ 458,314 $ 356,159 $ 259,130

Capital lease obligations - - - - -
Ground leases 29,542 408 817 818 27,481
Unconditional purchase obligations - - - - -
Qther long-term obligations - - - - -
Total contractual cash obligations $1221435 118716 C$489131  $ 356977 286611
Qur mortgages and notes payable consists of $578.8 million and $613.1 million of fixed rate and variable rate debt obligations, respectively. At December 31,
2004, our fixed rate debt obligations were subject to a weighted average interest rate of 7.33% and our variable rate debt obligations were subject to interest
rates that range from 30-day LIBOR plus 85 basis points to 30-day LIBOR plus 150 basis points. $395.0 million of our variable rate debt was effectively locked
at an interest rate before the spread over LIBOR, or 3.88% through our interest rate swap agreements. Interest payable under our mortgages and notes payable

outstanding at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

payments due by period
(in thousands) total 2005 2006/2007 2008/2009 thereafter
Interest payable(l) $ 245,683 $ 62,100 $ 98,212 $ 55972 $ 29,399

(1) Interest payable under our variable rate loans is calculated using our variable interest rate at December 31, 2004 which is equal to 30-day LIBOR of 2.40% plus our spread over
LIBOR which ranges between 85 basis points and 150 basis points.

In connection with the disposition of a real estate property in May 2001, we entered into a financial guarantee with a maximum future potential payment of
$1.4 million. The financial guarantee, provided to the third party purchaser, guaranteed payment of an amount not to exceed the $1.4 million potential max-
imum if certain tenants, as defined in the purchase and sale agresment, fail to extend either their leases beyond the maturities of their current in-place leases
or to perform according to their in-place leases. A payment amount totaling $1.0 million was considered probabie at the date of disposition and therefore,
accrued during the year ended December 31, 2001. Pursuant to the financial guarantee, during the year ended December 31, 2003, we paid the anticipated

$1.0 million to the third party purchaser.




As a conditio:nf df‘ther burchaee end sale and as security for our guarantee, we provided to the title company at closing, two irrevocable letters of credit, total-
ing $1.4 miIIioni drawn on a financial institution and identifying the purchaser as beneficiary. One letter of credit totaling $1.0 million expired in 2003, The
remaining balance on the second letter of credit totaling $189,000 at December 31, 2004 expires as follows:

Other Commerclal Cnrnjmi:tmems; - o commitment expiration.per period
{in thousands)r : ~_‘1  © s - total amounts committed 2005 2006/2007 200872009 thereafter

Lines of credrt 3 G - - -~ - -
Standby lettérs or credrt o $ 189 $ 63 $ 128 - -
Guarantees ' ‘ i i . - _ _ ~ _
Standby repurchase oblrgatlons - - - - _
Other commercrel commrtments : ) - - - - -

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we transitioned a parcel of land from land held for development to construction in progress. The construction,
which has an. es‘umated total prorect cost of $48.1 million, includes a two building office project located in- Del Mar, California and will contain approximately
158,000 net rentable square feet upon completron The project which is currently 50% pre-leased is owned by Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC, a joint
venture, owned 70% by our operatlng partnership and its affiliates and 30% by Collins Corporate Center, LLC, an unrelated third party. The accounts of
Prentrss/Colllne _Del; Mar Heights, LLC are consolidated with and into the accounts of our operating partnership. The December 31, 2004 carrying amount of

this development project was $23.4 mrilion.
FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

Funds fromoperations is a wideiy recognized measure of RE(T operating performance. Funds from operations is a non-GAAP financial measure and, as defined
by the Naticnal Association‘of Real Estate Investment Trusts, means net income, computed in accordance with GAAP excluding extraordinary items, as defined
by GAAP, and garns (or losses) from' sales of property, pius depreciation and amortization on real estate assets, and after adjustments for unconsolidated part-
nerships, jomt ventures and subsrdlanes We believe that funds from operations is helpful to investors and our management as a measure of our operating per-
formance because it excludes depreciation and amortization, gains and losses from property dispositions, and extraordinary items, and, as a result, when com-
pared year over year reﬂects the impact on operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental rates, operating costs, development activities, general and admin-
istrative expenses and mterest ‘costs, providing perspective not immediately apparent from net income. In addition, our management believes that funds from
operations provxdes useful rnformatlon to the investment community about our financial performance when compared to other REITs since funds from operations
is generally recogn zed as the industry standard for reporting the operating performance of REITs. However, our funds from operations may not be comparable
to funds from operatrons reported by other RE{Ts that do-not define funds from operations exactly as we do. We believe that in order to facilitate a clear under-
standing of our,operatmg resurts, funds from operations should be examined in conjunction with net income as presented in our consolidated financial state-
ments and 'n‘ote‘s t‘her‘etofWe”oelieve‘that net income is the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure to funds from operations. Funds from operations
does nat repre‘sénf eaéh ‘generated‘ from operating activities in accordance with GAAP and should not be considered as an alternative to net income as an indi-
cation of our performance or to cash flows as a measure of liquidity or our ability to make distributions. Funds from operations does not reflect either deprecia-
tion and amortlzatron costs or the levet of capital expenditures and leasing costs necessary to maintzin the operating performance of our properties, which are

significant economrc costs that cou!d materially lmpact our results of operations. The following is a reconciliation of net income to funds from operations:
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Funds From Gperations year ended december 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2602
Net income $ 62,423 $ 59417 $ 74,281
Adjustments:
Real estate depreciation and amortization(!) 95,429 79,972 73,368
Minority interest share of depreciation and amortization (4,682) - -
Real estate depreciation and amortization of unconsolidated joint ventures 2,985 2,860 3,103
Minority interestst2) 1,733 1,875 2,589
Gain on sale of real estate (13,179) (4,978) (8,430)
Funds from operatbngﬁ) S - $ 11';4‘,709 o $ 139,246 » $A 144911

(1) Includes real estate depreciation and amortization included in continuing operations and real estate depreciation and amortization included in discontinued operations.

(2) Represents the minority interests applicable to the commeon unit holders of the aperating partnership.

(3) Impairment losses and debt defeasance related to real estate are not added back in aur reconciliation of net income to funds from operations; therefore, for periods in which impair-
ment losses or debt defeasance are recognized, funds from operations is negatively impacted. We recognized impairment losses on real estate of $1.8 million and $2.9 million
during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We recognized impairment loss on a mortgage ioan of $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, We
recognized debt defeasance of $5.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2004. The impairment losses totaling $1.8 million and $2.9 million for the years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002 respectively are included in the tine item “incame from discontinued operations” in our consolidated statements of income.

Funds from operations increased by $5.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from the year ended December 31, 2003 and decreased by $5.7 million

for the year ended December 31, 2003 from the year ended December 31, 2002 as a resuit of the factors discussed in the analysis of operating results.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” in December 2003,
the Financial Standards Board issued a revision to FASB Interpretation No. 46, FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). The Interpretation, as revised, requires consol-
idation of an entity by an enterprise if that enterprise wilt absorb a majority of the entity's expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s expect-
ed residual returns if they occur, or both. An entity subject to this Interpretation is called a variable interest entity. The disciosure provisions of this interpretation,
as revised, are effective for financial statements issued after December 31, 2003. Per this interpretation, as revised, a public entity, that is not a small business
issuer, with a variable interest entity to which the provisions of the Interpretation have not been applied as of December 24, 2003, shall apply this Interpretation
no later than the end of the first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004. However, prior to the required application of this Interpretation, a public enti-
ty, that is not a small business issuer, shall apply this Interpretation to those entities that are considered to be special-purpose entities no later than as of the

end of the first reporting pericd that ends after December 15, 2003.

In November 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on an approach for evaluating whether the criteria in paragraph 42 of Statement 144 have been met for the
purposes of classifying the results of operations of a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale as discontinued
operations. The consensus was incorporated into Appendix A {03-13A) of Issue No. 03-13, "Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement No.

144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, in Determining Whether to Report Discontinued Operations.”

The guidance should be applied to a component of an enterprise that is either disposed of or classified as held for sale in fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2004. In accordance with the criteria prescribed in 03-13A, we evaluated our continuing involvement resulting from certain management agree-
ments retained in relation to real estate sale transactions occurring during period and as a result of our evaluation determined that the results of operations

from the sold properties should be classified within discontinued operations on our consoclidated statements of income.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,”




a revision to Statement of Fmanmal Accountlng Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The Statement supersedes APB Opinion

No. 25, “Accountlng for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related implementation guidance.

The Statement whienfocuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions, estab-
lishes standards fd‘r 1the acéo‘unt’ing for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in
which an entnty mcurs liabilities in .exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity's equity instruments or that may be settled by

the |ssuance of those equity tnstruments

The Staternent requir‘es e pu»blic entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant- .
date fair value of thfeewa}rd (with,timited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in
exchange for the avfa‘rdfthe requisite service period (usually the vesting period). No compensation cost is recognized for equity instruments for which employ-

ees do not render the requisite service;

The Staterment, :wh;ieh is effeetive as.of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting pericd that begins after June 15, 2005 for public entities that do

! ' . . . . . N
not file as small business issuers, will not have a material impact on our financial statements.

In December 2004‘ the Finéncial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 163, "Accounting for Non-monetary
Transactions.” The. statement requires non-monetary exchanges to be accounted for at fair value, recognizing any gain or loss, if the transactions meet a com-
mercial-substance cnteruon ‘and fair value is determinable. The statement is effective for non- monetary transactions occurring in fiscat years beginning after

June 15, 2005. We betieve that the implementation of this standard will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

APPLICANON:OF AND CHANGES IN LAW REGARDING OWNERSHIP OF SUBSIDIARIES AND QUALIFICATIONS AS A REIT

For federal incometax purpt;ses we were organized and have operated in conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 as amended beginning with our taxable year ending December 31, 1996 and through the date hereof. The Internal Revenue Code
sets forth various »ncome asset ownershlp, and distribution tests with respect to which a REIT must comply in order to maintain its status as a REIT. Although the
internat Revenue Serwce based upon its interpretation of the relevant judicial and administrative authorities, may take the position that 2 REIT has failed a partic-
ular qualification test, the facts and circumstances upon which such a determination would be based are controlled by the REIT. To the extent that a REIT does
not comply} wit‘h‘a ‘plarticu!ar test the decision to take an action that would prevent compliiance or to not take an action that would have allowed compliance will be
directly W|thm the control of the REIT We are unaware of any instance in which a REIT has lost its qualification as a REIT due to the failure of one of the statutory

qualification tests under the, Internal Revenue Code. We believe that our current and proposed method of operation will enable us to continue to qualify as a REIT.

The REIT Modérniiation Act effective for 2001 and later years, contains several provisions affecting REITs. The REIT Modernization Act aliows a subsidiary to
perform seryiees de tenants without disqualifying the rents received (as under prior law). These subsidiaries, called Taxable REIT Subsidiaries, are subject to tax-
ation and are ;iimit'ed‘in the amount of debt and rental payments between the REIT and the Taxable REIT Subsidiaries. The fair market value of all Taxable REIT
Subsidiaries’ securities cannet exceed 20% of the REIT's fair market value. Existing subsidiaries could be grandfathered in a one-time tax-free conversion. They

are not subject to these hmltatlons untess engaging in a new line of business or increasing assets. If either of these events occurs, new restrictions on debt and

rental payments wnll apply tor tnese entities as well. The REIT Modernization Act also reduced the REIT taxable income distribution requirement from 95% to 90%.

INFLATION:

Most of thetleases on our'préperties require tenants to pay increases in operating expenses, including common area charges and real estate taxes, thereby
IR )
reducing the impact on us of the adverse effects of inflation. Leases also vary in term from one month to 17 years, further reducing the impact on us of the

adverse effecjts‘ of inflation.

Bl




QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our primary market risk exposure is to changes in interest rates as a result of our revolving credit facility and long-term debt. At December 31, 2004, we had
total consolidated indebtedness of approximately $1.2 billion. Qur interest rate risk cbjective is to limit the impact of interest rate fluctuations on earnings and
cash flows and to lower our overall borrowing costs. To achieve this objective, we manage our exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates for our borrow-
ings through the use of fixed rate debt instruments to the extent that reasonably favorable rates are obtainable with such arrangements. In addition, we may
enter into derivative financial instruments such as options, forwards, interest rate swaps, caps and floors to mitigate our interest rate risk on a related financial
instrument or to effectively lock the interest rate on a portion of our variable rate debt. We do not enter into derivative or interest rate transactions for specula-
tive purposes. Approximately 48.6% of our outstanding consolidated debt was subject to fixed rates with a weighted average interest rate of 7.33% at December
31, 2004, Of the remaining $613.1 million, or 51.4%, representing our variable rate debt, $395.0 million was effectively locked at an interest rate before the
spread over LIBOR, of 3.88% through our interest rate swap agreements, We regularly review interest rate exposure on our outstanding borrowings in an effort

to minimize the risk of interest rate fluctuations.

The following table provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, including interest rate swaps and debt
obligations. For debt obligations outstanding at December 31, 2004, the table presents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates for the
debt outstanding during the periods. For interest rate swaps, the table presents notional amounts that expire and weighted average interest rates for in-place
swaps during the period. Notional amounts are used to calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under the contract. Weighted average variable rates
are based on 30-day LIBOR as of December 31, 2004. The fair value of our fixed rate debt indicates the estimated principal amount of debt having similar debt
service requirements, which could have been borrowed by us at December 31, 2004. The rate assumed in the fair value calculation of fixed rate debt is equal
to 5.50%, representing our estimated berrowing rate for fixed rate debt instruments similar in term to those outstanding at December 31, 2004. The fair value

of our variable to fixed interest rate swaps indicates the estimated amount that would have been paid by us had they been terminated at December 31, 2004.

expected maturity date
(in thousands) 2085 2008 2007 2008 2009 thereafter total fair value

Liabilities

Long-Term Debt:

Fixed Rate $ 52308 § 8704 $182,182 $ 6048 $ 59411  $259,130 $578783 § 620,348
Average Interest Rate 7.33% 751% 7.44% 7.42% 7.45% 7.48% - -
Variable Rate $ 66,000 - $256428 $100,000 $190,700 - $613128 §$ 613128
Average Interest Rate 3.65% 3.63% 3.59% 3.54% 3.45% - - -

Interest Rate Derivatives

Interest Rate Swaps:

Variable to Fixed $ 40000 $ 50,000 $ 75000 $150,000 $ 80,000 - $395000 $ (1,046)
Avg. Pay Rate - 3.88% 3.56% 3.64% 3.87% 3.65% - - -
Avg. Receive Rate 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% 2.40% - - -

The table incorporates only those exposures that exist as of December 31, 2004 and does not consider exposures or positions which could arise after that date.
In addition, because firm commitments are not represented in the table above, the information presented therein has limited predictive value. As a result, our
ultimate realized gain or loss with respect to interest rate fluctuations will depend on the exposures that arise during future periods, prevailing interest rates,
and our hedging strategies at that time. There is inherent rollover risk for borrowings as they mature and are renewed at current market rates. At December
31, 2004, our variable rate debt outstanding was approximately $613.1 million with an average interest rate of approximately 3.65%. Exclusive of our interest
rate swap agreements, if 30-day LIBOR increased 100 basis points, total interest expense would increase approximately $6.1 million. The total extent of mar-

ket risk is not quantifiable or predictable because of the variabllity of future interest rates and our financing reguirements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Trustees and Shareholders

of Prentiss Properties Trust:

We have completed an integrated audit of Prentiss Properties Trust's 2004 consalidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Conselidated financial statemants

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated batance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, change in shareholders’ equity, compre-
hensive income, and cash flows present fairly, in all materizl respects, the financial position of Prentiss Properties Trust and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended Decemnber 31, 2004 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note (2) to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation Transition and Disclosure,” effective July 1, 2003, the Company adopted the pro-
visions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and

Equity” and effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 46R, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”

Internal controf over financial reporting

Alsag, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accampanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, that the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in internal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on criteria established in internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintain-
ing effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of internat control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and perform-

ing such other procedures as we cansider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our apinions.




A compahy’é inte‘r‘nal contnbl over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the prepération ij finahcial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over
financial repoﬂiné includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and diépbﬁt&ons of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit prepa-
ration of fiha‘nciai} statements in.accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in apcqrdanée with ;ﬁdthorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of‘u‘naﬁhorized écquisitioh, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inhbrent I'»r’ni;‘ation‘s, internal controt over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effec-
tiveness td futire berioas:iafe subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with

the policies of prjg:icedures may deteriorate.

Dallas, Texas
March 14,2005 .



{in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
ASSETS
Operating real estate:
Land
Buildings and improvements
_Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress
Land held for development
Deferred charges and other assets, net

Notes receivable, net

Accounts receivable, net

Cash and cash equivalents

Escrowed cash

Investments in securities and insurance contracts
investments in unconsolidated joint ventures
Interest rate hedges
Tromissets

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Mortgages and notes payable

Interest rate hedges

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Mandatorily redeemable preferred units
Distributions payable
.. Jotal liabilities

Minority i_nfterest in Qper;ting_ partnership )

Minority interest in real estate partnerships

Commitments and contingencies

Preferred shares $.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized,

3,773,585 shares issued and outstanding

Common shares $.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
48,268,845 and 45,772,383 (includes 3,286,957 and 3,159,089 in treasury)
shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Common shares in treasury, at cost, 3,286,957 and 3,159,089 shares at

December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively
Unearned compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Disgrjbutions in( excesg_of ea;mings‘_ )
Totat shargholders'ﬁqui_t:y' -

Tota] '_l ikarbilnitii'eé-_ ‘a‘md éhé;éholaers’ eq'u-i'ty i

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2004

$ 341321
1,789,043
(234,007)

1,896,357

23,417
59,014
260,283
1,500

55,772
8,586

9,584

3,279

12,943

2,804

$ 2,333,539

$ 1191911
3,850
105,304

28,103

1,329,168

24,990
35792

100,000

483
1,020,917

(82,694
(3,386)
(302)
(91,429)
943588

| $2333539

december 31,
2003

$ 325623
1,727,056
(210,944)
1,841,735

47,202
210,420
15,904
47,412
5,945
11,913
2,579
14,215
1788
$ 2,199,003

$ 1,029,035
9,842
84,366
10,000
28986
1,162,229

123,058
1565

100,000

458
942,644

(78,000)
(2,176)
(7,198)

. (43487)

912,241

| $2199,003




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

9685

(in thousands except per share amaunfs) 2004
Revenuss: | 1  : b
Rental rncome 356,825
Servics busrness and other rncome o © 13,909
il S ,.370,734
Operatlng expenses
Property operatlng and marntenance 91,681
Real estate taxes : 39,406
General and admrnlstratrve and personnel costs 11,803
Expepses of serwce buisiness 9,958
Deprecratrom and amortization e 92315
. M ‘ ..245203
Other Expenseé “
Interest expense | 68,037
Amomzatron of deferred flnancmg costs 2,343
income from contmumg operatrons before equity in income of
]
unconsohdated joint ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries,
loss on mvestment in securrt ies, impairment and minority interests 55,151
Equity in rncome of unconsolrdated rornt ventures and unconsolidated subsrdranes 2429
Loss on' mvestment in' sechirities - C(420)
Loss from |mpa|rment of mortgage oan (2,300)
Mrnorrty rnterests Co (2740
income from contrnurng operatrons 51,516
Drscontmued operatrons H .
Income from drscontlnued operatrons 3,354
Garn/(loss) from drsposmon of discontinued operations 11,857
Loss from, debt defeasance related to sale of real estate (5,316)
_V_Mlnonty |nterests rel ed to dlscontl ed operations . (310)
’ | wh
income before;gain on sale 6f land and an interest in a real estate partnership 61,201
Gain on'sale of land and an interest in a real estate partnership e - 1222
Net rnconﬁé . 62,423
Preferred, dlvrdends i _ (10,052
Net mcome applrcable to common shareholders ''''' B ,,,.532'371
Basic earnrngs per common share-
Income from continuing opera'nons applicable to comman shareholders 0.96

Discontinued operatrons ]
Net income appl cable‘to_ggmmon shareholders ~ basic

WE‘%E?EQ?LYEF%@U?,T?éf:‘?f.ﬁ‘?ﬁﬁ?”.?ﬁa.’,es,92@?.‘?@1(‘3:.939?,,.A.. BT

Cobe i | : '
Diluted earnings per common share:
lncome from contrnurng operatrons applicable to common shareholders
Drscontmued operatrons :

0.36
0.22

Net |ncome applrcable to common shareholders ~ diluted

b
Werghted average number of commion shares and common share
equrvatents outstandmg drluted

Y

The accarrrparryr'ng (ratés are ‘an‘ integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

57

4452

year ended december 31,

2003

$ 314718
16,769
331 487

80,583
31274
10,988
10,513
72,483

205,841

67,232
2,284

56,130

2,555

a0een ..

48,458

6,034
(4,457)

153
1524

49,982

$ 59,417

.8 5095

$ 1.23

004 .
27

40,068

$ 1.23

004

127

40,270

2435

8452 .

2002

$ 307487
4,386
3 11,873

75,235
35,119
10,361
61,944
182659

64,468
1,832

62914

3,154

(10,450

55,618

10,966

8,430
733
18663

74,281

$ 74281
(8,358)
..55923

$ 123
049
172

38,409

$ 122
...049
1

..38,649



CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

accumulated  (distributions

additional common other in excess of
for the three years ending december 31, 2004 preferred common paid-in shares in unearned  comprehensive earnings)/
(doliars in thousands, except per share data} shares shares capital treasury  compensatian income retaned eamings
Balance at December 31, 2001 ‘ $819,800 $100000 $ 421  $833,314 $(118228) $ (2,556) $ (9,655) $ 16,504
Issuance of 1,828,260 common shares 46,459 18 46,441
Restricted share grants (30,600 common shares) - ' 859 (859)
Amortization of share grants 1,632 1,632
Share grants forfeited (12,777 shares) - (304) 304
Purchase of 494,365 treasury shares (14,196) (14,196)
Issuance of common shares in treasury
{613,750 common shares) 16,535 2,283 14,252
Distributions declared ($2.22 per common share) (85,807) (85,807)
Preferred distributions declared ($2.22 per preferred share) (8,358) (8,358)
Unrealized loss on inv. in securities (104) (104)
Unrealized loss on interest rate hedges:
Unrealized loss for the period (6,587) (6,587)
Reclassification adjustment for loss included in earnings 578 578
Net Income 74,281 74,281
Balance at December 31, 2002 844233 100,000 439 882,897 (118476)  (1479)  (15768)  (3.380)
issuance of 1,713,377 common shares 45,489 18 45,471
Restricted share grants (93,250 common shares) - 1 2,432 (2,433}
Amortization of share grants 1,736 1,736
Common shares in deferred comp. plan (2,150) 16 (2,166)
Purchase of 391,641 treasury shares (12,098) (12,098)
Issuance of common shares in treasury
(2,300,000 common shares) 66,470 11,730 54,740
Distributions declared ($2.24 per common share) (91,071) (91,071)
Preferred distributions declared ($2.24 per preferred share) (8,453) (8,453)
Unrealized loss on inv. in securities (83) (83)
Share options expensed 98 98
Unrealized gain on interest rate hedges:
Unrealized gain for the period 8,390 8,39C
Reclassification adjustment for loss included in earnings 263 263
Net income 59,417 59,417
Balance at December 31, 2003 912,241 100,000 458 942644 (780000  (2,176) (7,198)  (43,487)
Issuance of 2,399,012 common shares 72,964 24 72040
Restricted share grants (97,450 common shares) - 1 3,344 (3,345)
Amortization of share grants 2,006 2,006
Share grants forfeited (4,000 shares) 8 (129) 129 8
Common shares in deferred comp. plan 82 86 (4)
Purchase of 125,963 treasury shares {4,561} (4,561)
Redemption of Series B Preferred Units - 1,600 (1,600)
Distributions declared ($2.24 per common share) (100,320) (100,320)
Preferred distributions declared ($2.24 per preferred share) (8,453) (8,453)
Unrealized gain on inv. in securities 191 191
Share options expensed 303 303
Unrealized gain on interest rate hedges 6,705 6,705
Net income 62,423 62,423
Balance at December 31, 2004 $943589 $100000 $ 483 $1,020917 § (82694) $ (3386) $  (302) $ (91,429)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RO ! - year ended december 31,
(dollars in !ha‘usands‘)‘ o . 2004 2003 2002

Netincome ™ = $ 62423 5 59417 § 74281

Unrealized ‘gain‘sjand losses on securities:

Unrealized (l‘p‘s‘ses)/gai}ns arising during the period 191 (83) (104)
Unrealized igains/(losses) on interest rate hedges:

Unrealized géins/(losse5) arising during the period 6,705 8,390 (6,587)
-7.Reclassific‘:at‘ib_r;,adjustfhent for IQ§§es included in earnings T 263 578
Otner comprehensive income " Tegs 8ED (6,113)
gomprehehéive inEthe‘ | o $ M§9",>3‘19 $ 67,987 $ 68,168

The accompanying hotes are anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

.
\
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Minority interests
{Gain)/loss from disposition of discontinued operations
Gain on sale of land and an interest in real estate partnership
Loss on impairment-of discontinued operations
Loss on debt defeasance
Loss on investment in securities
Loss on impairment-of mortgage loan
Provision for doubtful accounts
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Earnings in excess of distributions from joint ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries
Non-cash compensation
Reclassification of accumulated other comprehensive income
Gain on derivative financial instrument
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deferred charges and other assets
Accounts receivable
Escrowed cash
QOther payables/receivables (affiliates)
Accounts payable and other liabilities ]
‘Net cash provided by operat ng actlwtles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Development/redevelapment of real estate
Purchase of real estate
Purchase of mortgage loan
Capitalized expenditures for in-service properties
Proceeds from the sale of real estate
Distributions in excess of earnings of joint ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries
Proceeds from the sale of joint venture interest in a real estate partnership
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable
Purchase of interest in Prentiss Properties Resources, inc.
Cash from consolidation of Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc.
Proceeds from the sale of investmerits
- Investments in securltles and msurance contracts
Net cash used in mvestlng act\vmes -

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from sale of common shares
Redemption of preferred units
Repurchase of operating partnership units
Purchase of treasury shares
Capital contribution from consolidated joint ventures
Distributions paid to limited partners
Distributions paid to common shareholders
Distributions paid to preferred shareholders
Distributions paid to preferred unitholders
Payment of debt defeasance cost on debt extinguishment
Proceeds from mortgages and notes payable
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable ‘ B
Net cash (used m)/provnded by fmancmg actlvmes T

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
_Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equwalents end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

&0

$

3

2004

$ 62,423

3,054
(11,957)
(1,222)

5,316
420
2,900
168
95,988
2,343
(88)
3,370

(323)

(7,148)

(11,854)
2,924

11,935

(15,347)
(241,451)
(54,396)
151,023

69,338
11,504

1,107
(782)
(79 004)

66,496
(105,000
(891)
26,874
(63,397)
(98,959)
(8,452)
(3,176)
(5,316)
824,161
(708,944)

sz

(76,604)

2,641
5,945

8586

69,127

year ended december 31,

2003

$ 59,417

10,280
4,457
(9,435)
1,792

3,563
80,256
2,284
2,687
263
(312)

(2,434)
(11,319)
(1,430)

(6,444)

(11,002)

(181,706}

(35,236}
85,116
315

(67)
461

(185)

100,801

190
(3,347)
(89,020)
(8,452)
(8,636)

566,685
(648677)

9sM

865
5080
$ 5,945

$ 69 094

133625

(2308

2002

$ 74,281

11,183
(8,430)
2,855
5,428
73,457
1,832
(162)
1,757
578

(301)

(3,586)
(4,081)
3,191
2,971
L. 363
160,611
(26,294)
(113,985)
(47,000)
(27,187)
54,631

. 7o
(160,505)

52,558
(50,535)
(2,472)
1488
(3,320)
83,776
(8,264)
(9,843)
559,800
~ (456,507)
@71

(765)
. 5845
$ 5080

$ 68,753




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i i
| |

(1) THE: Dl‘?iGAiN;IZATIjON ANﬁ 2004 TRANSACTIONS
ORGANIZATION . .
0t i . P
We are a seif-admiriisfered and self-managed Maryland REIT that acquires, owns, manages, leases, develops and builds primarily office properties throughout
the United States. We are sé!f—’administered in that we provide our own administrative services, such as accounting, tax and legal, through our own employees.
‘ ‘ ; :

We are self;ménaged in that, we:provide ali the management and maintenance services that our properties require through our own employees, such as, prop-

erty managers.1 1ea§ing profeésidnals and engineers. We operate principally throurgh our operating partnership, Prentiss Properties Acquisition Partners, L.P.,

and its subs1d|ar1es‘ nd two management service companies, Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries and Prentiss Properties Management,

LP The ownersh|p of the operatmg partnershnp was as follows at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

L, : series g .
. v y ’ i i convertible
2004 S ' R . common preferred
(units in thousands) il - units % units %
Prentiss Prb‘pértie‘s‘;TrusL g o 45,063 97 12% 3 774. 100 OO%
Third pames po ‘ 1,335 288% - 0.00%
Total ‘ 46 398 100 OO% . 3,774 100 DO%
T ,
R : series d
o i ‘ convertible series b series e
2003 pe by ‘ [ common preferred preferred preferred
(umts n thausands) b umts % umts % units % units %
Prennss Propertles Trust 42 696 96.66% 3 774 100.00% ~ 0.00% - 0. OO%
Th|rd pames ; S ‘ 1,475 3.34% - O OO% 1 900 100.00% 200 100 OO%
Totai Sy o 44171 100 00% 3, 774

100 OO% 1 9OO 100.00% 200 lOO OO%

e R e A i e SR e e ke i e s S

Our primary bu‘sin‘es‘s is the:ownership and operation of office and industrial properties throughout the United States. Our organization which includes approx-
imately 475 employees cons:sts of a corporate office located in Dallas, Texas and ﬂve regionat offices each of which operates under the guidance of a member

of our semor management team The following are the 10 markets in which our properties are located W|th the first market being the location of each regional

office: . i I

region [ co . L :‘,i .o market

Mid- Atlantic B e B Metropolitan Washington, DC
Midwest | C M0 _ Chicago, Suburban Detroit

Southwest * - 'w o o Dallas/Fort Worth, Austin, Denver

Narthern Cahforma

Ozkland, Silicon Valley

San Diego, Los Angeles

Southern Cahforma

&1




As of December 31, 2004, we owned interests in a diversified portfolio of 124 primarily suburban Class A office and suburban industrial properties, the results

of which are consclidated with and into the accounts of operating partnership, as follows:

number of net rentable

buildings square feet(1X2

{in millians)

Office properties 97 16.0
Industrial properties 27 22
Total 124 18.2

(1} Throughout this Annual Report, we use the term net rentable square feet and define the term as the area of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes
the actual rentable area pius a portion of the common areas of the property allocated to a tenant. Our calculation of the net rentable square feet as included herein is unaudited.

(2} Our consofidated joint venture properties contain approximately 989,000 net rentable square feet, of which the minority interest holders' pro rata share is 485,000 net rentable feet.
Also, we have investments in unconsolidated joint venture properties which consist of 1.6 million net rentable square feet, our pro-rata share of which totals 669,000 net rentable
square feet.

In addition to managing properties that we own, we manage approximately 9.8 million net rentable square feet in office, industrial and other properties for

third parties.

We have determined that our reportable segments are those that are based on our method of internal reporting, which disaggregates our business based upon
our five geographic regions. As of December 31, 2004, our reportable segments include (1) Mid-Atlantic; (2) Midwest; (3) Southwest; (4) Northern California;

and (5) Southern California.

2004 TRANSACTIONS

Joint Venture Arrangement

On January 22, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. was established to acquire office properties in our core markets of Washington D.C./Northern Virginia,
Chicago, Dallas/Ft. Worth, Northern California and San Diego/Orange County. The parinership was initially wholly owned by the operating partnership and its
affiliates and was seeded by the transfer of several recent acquisitions including, 2281 Wood QOak Drive a single office building containing approximately
228,000 net rentable square feet located in Herndon, Virginia, Corporate Lakes HH! & single office building containing approximately 124,000 net rentable square

feet located in Chicage, Iliinois and seven office buildings containing approximately 370,000 net rentable square feet ocated in Carlsbad, California.

Pursuant to a joint venture agreement, effective February 1, 2004, Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP, a Netherlands based pension fund and unrelated third party,
acquired a 48% limited partnership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. for proceeds totaling $68.9 million. As a result of the transaction, we recorded a
gain on sale of $1.2 million. The joint venture is consolidated with and into the accounts of the operating partnership. Proceeds from the transaction were used

to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.




Acquisitions

During the year ended Decermber 31, 2004, we acquired, from unrelated third parties, 8 office buildings totaling approximately 2.3 million net rentable square

feet as detailed bélow:

o | oo month of number of net rentable aequisition

acquired propenies v ' segment market acquisition buildings _ square feet™ price(@
B Do ' L e i {in thausends) {in millions)
Ertyplace Center ‘r ‘ : " Southwest Dallas/Ft. Worth April 2004 1 1,296 $ 1233
The B!uffs(3) o g Southern Calif. San Diego May 2004 1 69 17.7
5500 Great Amenca Parkway Northern Calif. Silicon Valley May 2004 3 306 348
2101 Webster Northern Calif. Oakland Oct. 2004 1 459 65.7
Lakesrde & e Midwest Chicago Oct 2004 2 198 326
g g e - e 22 e e e .8 . 2,;328 R . 2741

(1} Net rentable square feet défines the area of a property for which a tenant is required to pay rent, which includes the actual rentable area plus a portion of the common areas of the
property allocated toa tenant

{2) The acqu\sxtlons were funded with proceeds from our revolving credit facility, debt assumption, property sales and proceeds generated from the sale of commeon shares.

(3} Acquxsmons were acqurred by Prentiss Office Investors, L.P,, the joint venture described above. The net rentable square feet and acquisition price is presented at 100%. Each part-

ner contrnbuted thelr pro rata share of the purchase price of each property to Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. prior to acquisition.
I

On July 15, 2004:,‘ we achired from an unrelated third party, approximately 7.7 acres of land in Del Mar, California for gross censideration of $15.1 million.
The acquisitioh wa;s funded with proceeds from our revolving credit facility.

Dispositions

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we sold, to unrelated third parties, 4 industrial buildings, containing approximately 91,000 net rentable square feet

and 8 office bu|ldmgs contarnmg approximately 1.2 mitlion net rentable square feet as detailed below:

Lo . month of number of net rentable gross
properties sold ;f . X segment market disposition buildings square feet proceedst!
by (in thousands) (in miflions)

Natomas Corporate Center Northern Calif. Sacramento May 2004 [ 566 $ 80.7
Shadowndge Busrness Center Southern Calif. San Diego July 2004 4 g1 10.2
One Westchase Center Southwest Houston Aug. 2004 1 466 44.2
1800 Sherman Avenue Midwest Chicago Nov. 2004 1 136 182
' 12 1,259 $ 1533

(2) We recognized a $12.0 millios gain on the sale of the properties. Proceeds from the property sales were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revalving

credit facility. }
Development '
During the year ended December 31, 2004, we transitioned a parcel of land from land held for development to construction in progress. The construction,
which has an esttmated total projéct cost of $48.1 million, includes a two building office project located in De! Mar, California and wilt contain approximately

158,000 net rentab!e square feet upon completion. The project which is currently 50% pre-leased is owned by Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC, a joint




venture, owned 70% by our operating partnership and its affiliates and 30% by Collins Corporate Center, LLC, an unrelated third party. The accounts of
Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC are consolidated with and into the accounts of our operating partnership. The December 31, 2004 carrying amount of

this development project was $23.4 millicn.

Financing

On February 19, 2004, we renewed our $3C0 million revolving credit facility, including an extension of the maturity date from May 23, 2005 to February 19,
2007. The interest rate on the facility will fluctuate based on our overall leverage with a range between 30-day LIBOR plus 112.5 basis points and 30-day LIBOR
plus 160 basis points. The pricing on the renewed facility represents a 12.5 basis point to 15.0 basis point pricing reduction across the leverage grid. The facil-
ity was substantially oversubscribed with initial commitments of $370 million. Banking participants in the revolving credit facility include Bank One as
Administrative Agent; Bank of America as Syndication Agent; Commerzbank, EuroHypo and Societe General as Documentation Agents; PNC Bank, Sun Trust
and Unicn Bank of California as Co-Agents; and Comerica Bank, KeyBank, Mellon Bank, and SouthTrust Bank as Lenders. On June 25, 2004, we exercised
an accordion feature within our revolving credit facility expanding the facility’s overall borrowing capacity from $300 million to $375 million. Other terms of the

facility remain unchanged.

On March 2, 2004, we negotiated an interest rate reduction on our $75.0 million unsecured term loan with Commerzbank AG. The interest rate which is based
on overall leverage was reduced from 30-day LIBOR plus 125 to 175 basis points to 30-day LIBOR plus 112.5 to 160 basis points. In addition, the term loan
which had an original maturity date of March 15, 2006 was extended to March 15, 2009,

On May 20, 2004, in connection with a real estate sales transaction, we exercised our right to complete a voluntary defeasance of the mortgage loan collater-
alized by the sold properties. Pursuant to the defeasance, we transferred the mortgage loan with an outstanding principal balance of $35.8 million to an unre-
lated successor entity. The buyer of the properties transferred proceeds totaling $41.1 million representing the proceeds necessary to acquire U.S. treasuries
sufficient to cover the debt service of the mortgage loan from the defeasance date through maturity of the loan. We recognized a loss from debt defeasance of
$5.3 million during the period which we included in discontinued operations. The amount used to repay the mortgage loan was funded with proceeds received

from the properties sold.

On July 23, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P., completed a five-year, $10.7 million loan collateralized by a 63,000 net rentable square foot office building in
San Diego, California. The loan, which is interest only until maturity, has an interest rate that fluctuates between 130 and 150 basis points over 30-day LIBOR
depending on the property's occupancy, and matures July 23, 2009. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund a pro rata capital distribution to the joint ven-
ture partners based on their ownership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. Qur operating partnership used proceeds received from the capital distribution

to repay a portion of the autstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On July 29, 2004, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P, completed a five-year $85.0 miltion loan, collateralized by nine office buildings owned by various subsidiaries
of Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. located in Hlinois, California and Virginia. The interest rate on the loan is 85 basis points over 30-day LIBOR and the monthly
payments are interest only, with the principal of $85.0 million payable at its maturity on August 1, 2009. Proceeds from the loan were used to fund a pro rata
capital distribution to the joint venture partners based on their ownership interest in Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. Qur operating partnership used proceeds

received from the capital distribution to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On August 16, 2004, Prentiss/Collins Del Mar Heights, LLC, completed a three-year, $34.0 million construction foan with two one-year extension options to fund
a portion of its 158,000 net rentable square foot office development project in Del Mar, California. Construction of the development project commenced dur-

ing the second quarter of 2004. The loan which has an interest rate of 140 basis points over 30-day LIBOR matures September 1, 2007. The interest rate will




drop 10 basis boiﬁts if certain’ economic.and occupancy targets are achieved. Borrowings under the construction loan, which totaled $8.9 million at December

31, 2004, were ‘used‘to fond“a porticn of the development cost incurred to date.

On October 1, 2004 a $33 2 mllhon 6.92% fixed rate borrowing collateralized by a building located in Dallas, Texas was open for repayment without penalty.

We repaid the' outstandmg balance using proceeds from our revolving credit facility.

On October 8, 2004 in cormectlon with & property acquisition, we assumed a $46.0 mitlion, 8.22% amortizing mortgage foan with a maturity date of November
1, 2005, We recorded the debt’ at $47.7 million representing our estimate of the fair market value of the debt on the date of acquisition. The fair value of the
debt was ca!cuiated usmg an effectrve interest rate of 3.7% which represents our estimate of a market interest rate that we could have achieved on a 1- -year
collateralizéd mortgage roan on the date of acquisition.

On Decemberr 211"‘2(‘304‘ Prentiss Offce tnvestors, L.P, completed a five-year $20.0 million loan, collateralized by two office buildings located in Waukegan,
Winois. The mterest rate: on the joan is 110 basis points over 30-day LIBOR and the monthly payments are interest only, with the principal of $20.0 million
payable atiits maturlty on December 1,2009. Proceads from the loan were used to fund a pro rata capital distribution to the joint venture partners based on
their ownershrp mterest in Prentiss’ Offrce Investors, L.P. Our operating partnership used proceeds received from the capital distribution to repay a portion of
the outstand‘in‘g‘r borrowioge'uoder our revolving credit facility.

During the' per|od we repald approxrmately $40.4 million of our $70.4 million collateralized term ioan scheduled to mature on September 30, 2004. The remain-
ing $30.0 mxllron was extended for a period of three years to mature on September 30, 2007 at 30-day LIBOR pius 115 basis points. The foan was previously
collateralized by four propemes including Willow Oaks | & I, 8521 Leesburg Pike, and the IBM Cali Center. The amendment released the Willow Oaks proper-
ties from the collatereﬂ poo?

Interest Rate Swap Agresments

On January 28, 2004, our oberatfhé partnership completed two four-year interest rate swaps in a notional amount totaling $50.0 milion. The interest rate swap,
which eﬁectiveiy 1oeks 30-day LIBOR at 3.819% on $50.0 million of our variable rate borrowings, matures October 1, 2008,

On March ‘1‘0,‘ 2004 our operating‘pannership completed a five-year interest rafe swap in the notional amount of $30.0 million. The interest rate swap, which
effectively locks 30loay LlBORjat 3.443% on $30.0 million of our variable rate borrowings, matures October 1, 2009.

il .
v
'

On Agprit 26 2004,r0ur operatmg partnershrp completed a five-year interest rate swap in a notional amount of $50.0 million. The interest rate swap, which effec-

tively |ocks 30 day UBOR at 3 935% on $50.0 million of our variable rate borrowings, matures May 1, 2009.

On June 23 2004‘ Prentlss Ofﬂce Investors, L.P., completed a four-year interest rate swap in a notional amount of $70.0 million. The interest rate swap, which

effectively locks 3 ‘ day LIBOR at 4.139% on $70.0 mitlion of future variable rate borrowings, matures August 1, 2008.




Equity

During the year ended December 31, 2004, 2,496,462 common shares of beneficial interest, par value $.01, were issued. The table below details the common

shares issued during the period, common shares placed in or removed from treasury during the period and the common shares outstanding at December 31, 2004:
Common shares outstanding at December 31, 2003 42,613,294

Common shares issued:

Dribble Plant) 1,634,300
Share options exercised 612,020
Conversion of operating partnership units 113,200
1296 Share Incentive Plan 97,450
Employees’ Share Purchase Plan 29,683
Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan(2) 6,154
Trustees' Share Incentive Plan 3,655

‘ 2,496,462

Common shares placed in/removed from treasury:

Common shares surrendered in connection with share options exercised (125,963)

Restricted share grants forfeited (4,000)

Common shares removed from treasury pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan 2,085
Common shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 44,981,888

(1) On June 10, 2002, we entered into a securities sales agreement with Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation which we refer to as the Dribbie Plan. Under the Dribble Plan we may
sell, with Brinson Patrick acting as our sales agent, up to 3,000,000 of our comman shares at the then market price directly to the public. During the vear ended December 31,
2004, we issued 1,634,300 common shares through the Dribble Plan resulting in net proceeds of $54.1 million. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the outstanding bor-
rowings under our revoiving credit facility. On May 28, 2004, we entered into an additional securities sales agreement with Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation covering 2,000,000
of our common shares in the form of the Dribble Plan that was adopted on June 10, 2002. Shares will be issuable pursuant to the May 28, 2004 Dribble Plan after all shares have
been issued under the original Dribble Plan.

(2)  We have a Dividenc Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan which allows investors an option to purchase common shares by making optional cash investments of $100 to $5,000
in a given month for current shareholders or $500 to $5,000 for persons who are not current shareholders. The plan also allows shareholders to purchase our common shares by
reinvesting all or a portion of cash dividends received on our common or preferred shares. Purchases of greater than $5,000 can be accomplished by us granting a waiver to the
$5,000 limit. During the year ended December 31, 2004, pursuant to our Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan, we issued 6,154 common shares resutting in net pro-
ceeds of $214,000. The proceeds were used to repay a portion of the cutstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

On February 4, 2004, pursuant to a unit repurchase agreement between our operating partnership and Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P., we repur-
chased from Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. our outstanding 7.50% Series E Preferred Units and 26,768 common units held by Brandywine Operating
Partnership, L.P. The Series E Preferred Units, which were classified as mandatorily redeemable preferred units, a liability, on our consolidated balance sheet,
were repurchased at their liquidation value of $10.0 million plus accrued and unpaid dividends of $70,055. The common units, which were classified within
minority interest in operating partnership on our consolidated balance sheet, were repurchased for $891,803 representing a per unit price of $33.316, calcu-
lated as the average of the daily market price of our common shares for the 10 consecutive trading days prior to the date of repurchase. Concurrent with the
repurchase, Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. repaid two promissory notes totaling $8.9 million and accrued and unpaid interest of $282,308 due to our
operating partnership. An amount totaling $1.7 million, representing the difference between the units repurchased and the proceeds from the promissory notes

was paid by our operating partnership to Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. using funds from our revolving credit facitity.




Using proceeds from our revolving credit facility, on February 24, 2004, we repurchased the operating partnership’s outstanding 8.30% Series B Cumulative
Redeemable Pe{ﬁetuaI,Preferred Units, which were classified within minority interest in operating partnership on our consolidated balance sheet, for approxi-
mately $96.2 mil“li‘o“n, which.included accrued and unpaid dividends of $1.2 million. An amount totaling $1.6 million representing the original issuance cost
of the Series B Qurﬁula‘give Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units was subtracted from net income in arriving at net income applicable to common shareholders

in accordance wifh EITF Topic No. D-42.

(2) SUMMAﬁsY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consalidation
Prentiss Propertiejszrust does not have any other significant assets, liabilities or operations, other than its investment in the operating partnership and sub-
sidiaries of the oberating partnership, nor does it have employees of its own. Except for variable interest entities, all majority-owned subsidiaries and affiliates
where we have financial and operating control are included in the consolidated financial statements. All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eIimin‘a‘tjed in consolidation. Except for variable interest entities in which we have determined that we are the primary beneficiary, investments in real
estate joint \/entures over which we have the ability to exercise significant influence, but over which we do not have financial or operating control, are account-
ed for using the équity‘method of accounting. Accordingly, our share of the earnings of these joint ventures is included in consolidated net income. We con-
solidate any yariéfnle interest entity in’ which we determine that we are the primary beneficiary.

! N
in January 2003,‘t‘hje Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” In December 2003,
the Financial Stanbérds Board issued a revision to FASB Interpretation No. 46, FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). The Interpretation, as revised, requires consol-
idation of an entityj By an enterprise if that enterprise will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity's expect-
ed residuéi rétufﬁs if they o‘écdr, or both. An entity subject to this Interpretation is called a variable interest entity. The disclosure provisions of this Interpretation,
as revised, are efféqtive for financial statements issued after December 31, 2003. Per this Interpretation, as revised, a public entity that is not a small business
issuer with a variable intergst entity to which the provisions of the Interpretation have not been applied as of December 24, 2003, shall apply this Interpretation
no later thar; the-end of tﬁe first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004. However, prior to the required application of this Interpretation, a public enti-
ty that is ‘not‘ a sfr{all busin:ess issuer shall apply this Interpretation to those entities that are considered to be special-purpose entities no later than as of the

end of the first réhorting period that ends after December 15, 2003,

We have eva?uateé our investments in Broadmoor Austin Associates and Tysons International Partners and determined that the consolidation of these entities
by our operating :;Sa‘rtr\ership i$ not required pursuant to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). tn addition, we evaluated our investment in Prentiss Office (nvestors,
L.P.and Prentisé?(;qllins Déj Mar Heights, LLC and determined that Prentiss Properties Acquisition Partners, L.P. will absorb a majority of the expected losses
and receive a majbr‘ity of the expected residual return of the entities and as a result, in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46, as revised, the entities are

consolidated with and into the accounts of Prentiss Properties Acquisition Partners, L.P.
| .

Real Estate ‘ .

We allocate the phjrchase price of properties acquired to tangible assets consisting of land and building and improvements, and identified intangible assets and
liabilities generall‘y;conslsting of (i) above- and below-market leases, (i} in-place leases and (iii) tenant relationships. We allocate the purchase price to the assets
acquired and Iiabflities assdmed based on their relative fair values in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, “Business

Combinations.” These faif values are derived as follows:

Amounts allocated to land are derived from (1) comparable sales of raw land, (2) floor area ratio (FAR) specifics of the land as compared to other developed

properties (average‘land cost per FAR) and (3) our other local market knowledge.

&7



Amounts aliocated to buildings and improvements are calculated and recorded as if the building was vacant upon purchase. We use estimated cash flow pro-
jections and apply discount and capitalization rates based on market knowledge. Depreciation is computed using the straight-tine method over the estimated

life of 30 to 40 years for office buildings and 25 to 30 years for industrial buildings.

We record above-market and below-market in-place lease values for acquired properties based on the present value (using a market interest rate which reflects
the risks associated with the leases acquired) of the difference between (1) the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in-place leases and (2) man-
agement’s estimate of fair market lease rates for the corresponding in-place leases, measured over a period equal to the remaining non-cancelable term of the
lease for above-market leases and the initial term plus the term of the fixed rate renewal option, if any for below-market leases. We perform this analysis on a
lease (tenant) by lease (tenant) basis. The caplitalized above-market lease values are amortized as a reduction to rental income over the remaining non-can-
celable terms of the respective leases. The capitalized below-market lease values are amortized as an increase to rental income over the initial term plus the
term of the fixed rate renewal option, if any, of the respective leases. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we allocated $7.1 million and $2.3 miltion of
the purchase price of real estate acquired to below market and above market lease value which will be amortized over weighted average remaining lease lives

of 9 years and 5 years, respectively.

Other intangible assets, in-place leases and tenant relationships, are calculated based on an evaluation of specific characteristics of each tenant’s lease. Qur
estimates of fair value for other intangibles includes an estimate of carrying costs during the expected lease-up periods for the respective spaces considering
current market conditions and the costs to execute similar leases. In estimating the carrying costs that would have otherwise been incurred had the leases not
been in place, we include such items as real estate taxes, insurance and other operating expenses as well as lost rental revenue during the expected lease-up
period based on current market conditions. Costs to execute similar leases include leasing commissions, legal and other related costs, The value of in-place
leases is amortized to expense over the remaining non-cancelable term of the respective leases. Should a tenant terminate its lease, the unamortized portion
of the in-place lease value would be charged to expense. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we allocated $21.1 miltion and $29.6 million to in-place leas-

es and tenant improvements and leasing commissions which will be amortized over weighted average remaining lease lives of 6 years and 7 years, respectively,

Based on estimates of the fair value of the components of each real estate property acquired between January 1, 2003 and December 31, 2004, we allocat-

ed the purchase price as follows:

year ended december 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003
lnd ) N - s assy s 33173
Buildings and improvements $ 183,250 $ 107,506
Tenant improvements and leasing commissions $ 28,641 $ 28,159
Below market lease value $ (7,122) $ (833)
Above market lease value $ 2,342 $ 3,241
In-place leases 3 21,099 $ 7,425
Above market debt $ (1,651) $ -

We classify real estate properties, leasehold improvements and fand holdings as long-lived assets held for sale or long-lived assets to be held and used. In accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” we record assets held for
sale at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less cost to sell. With respect to assets classified as held and used, we periodically review these assets to
determine whether our carrying amount will be recovered. All of our long-lived assets were classified as held and used at December 31, 2004. The carrying
amount is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. We recog-

nize an impairment loss to the extent the carrying amount is not recoverable. The impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds fair value.




: WE, deprecxate our buildings and rmprovements using the strarght -line method over -an estimated useful life of 30 to 40 years for office
buitdings and 25 1t0 30 years for industrial buildings. Interest expense and other directly related expenses incurred during construction periods are capitalized
and deprecrated commenclng With the date the building is placed in service, on the same basis as the related asset. For the years ended December 31, 2004,

2003 ang 2002, capitalized interest costs totaled $659,000, $416,000 and $3.4 million, respectively.

v

Expenditureé fdr repairs and’ maintenance are charged to operations as incurred. Significant betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated
useful life. The cost and related accumulated depreciation for assets sold or refired are removed from the accounts with the resulting gain or loss reflected in

net i mcome for the perlod

Deferred Cha‘qssf

Leasing costs and \easehold \mprovemen‘rs are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related lease. Deferred financing costs are
recorded at: cost and are amomzed usmg the effective interest method over the fife of the related debt. Other deferred charges are amortized over terms appli-

cable to the expendnure

Allawance for Dm}‘bt:ful Aé&buhls |

Accounts recervable hre reduced by an alfowance for amounts that we estimate to be uncollectible. Cur receivable balance is comprised primarily of accrued
rental rate: rncreases to be recelved over the life of in-place leases as well as rents and operating cost recoveries due from tenants. We regularly evaluate the
adequacy of our a!lowance for doubrful accounts considering such factors as credit quality of our tenants, delinquency of payment, historical trends and cur-
rent economic condrtlons We reserve a\l outstanding recervables that are 90-days past due along with a portion of the remaining receivable balance that we

feel is uncol!ectrb!e based on our evaluatlon of the outstanding receivable balance. In addition, we increase our allowance for doubitful accounts for accrued

rental rate rncreasee,rrf w‘e‘determlne such future rent is uncoliectible.

i

Cash and Cash Equrvalents

Cash and cash equwa\ents consrst of cash on hand and investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. The majority of our cash
and cash equwalents are held at major commercial banks which may from time to time exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit of $100,000.

We have not experlenced any Iosses to date on our invested cash.

Escrowad Cas'h

Escrowed cash rnctudes amounts established pursuant to certain agreements for real estate purchase and sale transactions and real estate tax, insurance and

d pursuant to certain of our mortgage loan agreements

capital resewe deposrts req}ur‘

Investments in Sécuritiejs r

At December 31 2004 lnvestments in securrtles consist of investments in marketable securities held pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan. We
account for our rnvestments |n securmes as “available for sale” in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for

Certain rnvestmen § in Debt and Equity Securities.” Any decline in market value that is deemed to be other than temporary is recognized as a realized loss in

the determmatlon of net rncome for the perrod No such realized loss has been recognized to date. Any change in the market value of the investments which
is deemed temporary is mc\uded as.an.unrealized gain or 1oss in accumulated other comprehensive income on our consolidated balance sheet. At December
31, 2004, we have an accumulated unrealized gain of approximately $369,000 from our investments in securities. The unrealized gain is presented in accu-

mulated other comprehensrve income in‘our consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity. In addition to the investments in marketable securities




held pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan, at December 31, 2003, we held a $423,000 investment in Narrowcast Communications Corporation, a
provider of an electronic tenant information service known as Elevator News Network. The investment in Narrowcast Communications Corporation was carried
at cost as it was not considered a marketable security under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, During the year ended December 31, 2004,

we received a return of our investment of approximately $3,000 and recorded a loss on investment of approximately $420,000.

Investment in Insurance Contracts

Investments in insurance contracts consist of investments held pursuant to our Executive Choice Deferred Compensation Plan as described in Note (16). We
account for our invesiments in insurance contracts at the cash surrender value of the contracts at each balance sheet date in accordance with FASB Technical

Bulletin No. 85-4, “Accounting for Purchase of Life Insurance.”

Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

Except for ownership interest in a variable interest entity, we account for our investments in joint ventures using the equity method of accounting because we
exercise significant infiuence over, but do not controf these entities. These investments are recorded intially at cost and are adjusted for our share of equity in
earnings, cash contributions and distributions. We report our share of income and losses based on our ownership interest in the entities. Any decline in mar-
ket value that is deemed to be other than temporary is recognized as an impairment in equity in income of joint ventures, Any excess of carrying amount of our
non-controlling interests over the book value of the wnderlying equity is amortized over 40 years from the date of purchase. For the three years ended December

31, 2004, we recognized amortization expense totaling approximately $254,000 per year.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. If we qualify for taxation as a REIT,
we generally will not be subject to federal corporate income tax on our taxable income that is distributed to our shareholders. A REIT is subject to @ number of

organizational and operationai requirements, incfuding a requirement that it currently distribute at least 90% of its annual taxable income.

Effective January 1, 2003, our operating partnership acquired for approximately $67,000, the voting stock of Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc., from Ampuila,
LLC, a single member limited liability company owned by Michael V. Prentiss, Chairman of the Board of Prentiss Properties Trust. Prentiss Properties Resources,
Inc. was incorporated in March 2001 to serve as a Taxable REIT Subsidiary and provide management and other services to our operating partnership and third-
party clients. The management services business serves a broad base of clients, including major financiat institqtions and pension funds, large corporate users,
real estate advisory firms and real estate investment groups. Through Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. we offer a full range of fee-based services, including
property management, leasing, tenant construction, insurance, accounting, tax, acquisition, disposition, facilities management, and corporate and asset man-
agement services. Prior to this transaction, we owned a 98% non-voting interest and accounted for our interest in Prentiss Properties Resaurces, Inc. using the
equity method of accounting. Subseguent to this transaction, the operating partnership owns 100% of Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. and we consolidate
the accounts of Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. with and inte the accounts of the operating partnership. Taxable income from Prentiss Properties Resources,

Inc. is subject to federal, state and local taxes.

Leases

We, as lessor, have retained substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership and account for our leases as operating leases.




Revenue Recégnitiqn

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases,” income on leases which includes scheduled rental rate

increases over the lease term is recognized on a straight-line basis. Income received from tenants for early lease terminations is recognized as earned.

Service business fees and other income items received are recognized as earned. Leasing fees are generally recognized upon tenant occupancy of the leased
premises unless slich fees are irrevocably due and payable upon lease execution, in which case recognition occurs on the lease execution date. Included in
our service businessiand other. income is interest income from cash deposits and notes receivable of $828,000, $1.8 million and $2.0 million for the years

ended December 31 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively

Mandatorily Redéemable Praforred Units

in May 2003,‘ the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with ‘C‘harac‘teristics of both Liabilities and Equity,” which defines a mandatorily redeemable financial instrument as a financial instrument issued
in the form of shar‘e“s‘ which embodies an unconditional obligation requiring the issuer to redeem the instrument by transferring its assets at a specified or deter-
minable déte or ub;oh an event certain to occur. Due to the redemption provisions of our Series E Preferred Units, in accordance with Statement No. 150 we
classified our;Seriés‘E Preferred Units as mandatorily redeemabie and thus a liability on our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2003. On February

4, 2004 the $eries;E Preferred Units were repurchased at their fiquidation value.

Distributions

We pay regu|é‘r quarterly distributions to the holders of our outstanding common shares. These distributions are dependent on distributions from our operating
partnership. The halders of ‘our Series D Convertible Preferred Shares receive 2 quarterly dividend per share equal to the per share distribution paid on our

common shares.

Earnings and proﬂﬁs, which‘wi(l determine the taxability of distributions to sharehoiders, will differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes due to
the differenices for federal fax purposes, primarily in the estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation, timing of the recognition of capital gain or loss
transact&ons,‘chang‘es in our gllowance for doubtful accounts, and the recognition of rental income on a straight-line basis for financial reporting purposes.

"

Minority interest

Minority interest i’n‘ the operating partnership represents the limited partners’ proportionate share of the equity in our operating partnership. The operating part-
nership pays a reguiar quarterly distribution to the holders of common units. income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average percent-

age ownership during the vear.

Minority interest ir) real estate partnerships represents the other partners’ proportionate share of the equity in certain real estate partnerships. We have deter-
mined that gither cur operating partnership is the primary beneficiary of those real estate partnerships determined to be variable interest entities or that our
operating partne(ship holds financial and operating control over those real estate partnerships determined not to be variable interest entities and thus, consol-
idates the accounﬁs with and into the accounts of the operating partnership. Income is allocated to minority interest based on the weighted average percent-

age ownership duﬁng the year.




Concentration of Credit Risk

We place cash deposits at major banks. We believe that through our cash investment policy, the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabllities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates include such items as purchase price allocation
for real estate acquisitions, impairment of long-lived assets, depreciation and amortization and allowance for doubtful accounts. Actual results could differ from

our estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” requires disclosures about the fair value of
financial instruments whether or not such instruments are recognizable in the balance sheet. Our financial instruments inciude receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, escrowed cash, investments in securities, accounts payable, other accrued expenses, mortgages and notes payable and interest rate hedge agree-
ments, The fair values of these financial instruments, other than the fixed rate mortgages and notes payable, are not materially different from their carrying or
contract amounts. We estimate the fair value of our consotidated fixed rate mortgages and notes payable to exceed the carrying amount by $41.6 million at

December 31, 2004.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended and interpreted, begin-
ning January 1, 2001, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments. Specifically it requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities in the statement of financia! position and to measure those instruments at fair value. Changes in fair value will affect either share-

holders’ equity or net income depending on whether the derivative instrument qualifies as a hedge for accounting purposes.

During 2004, we recorded an increase in the fair value of our derivatives of $7.0 million. The increase of fair value was recorded as a credit of $6.7 mitlion to

other comprehensive income, and & gain in current period earnings of approximately $323,000.
On December 31, 2004, our derivative financial instruments were reported at their fair value as a liability of $3.8 million and an asset of $2.8 million. We have

accumulated unrealized losses of $3.5 million and accumulated unrealized gains of $2.8 million presented in accumulated other comprehensive income on

our consolidated balance sheet.
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Earnings Per Shara

We calculate eammgs per. share in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” which requires a dual
presentatlon of basm: and duuted earmngs per share on the face of the income statement. Addmonaliy, the statement requires a reconciliation of the numerator
and denommatorvused in computmg basm and diluted earnings per share. The table below presents a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used

to calculate ‘bavchtﬂa‘hd digufed earnihgs per share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

P

i Ve . "“ : i
{in thousands, excépi'bér share cfata) ' : 2004 2003 2002

Reconciligtion of the nunerator used for basic eam/ngs per share

income from honhrumgoperahons : $ 51,516 $ 48458 $ 55618

Preferred dlwdends | ?‘ P ’ (10,052) (8,452) (8,358)

Galn on ; i estate partnersh|p 1,222 9 435 -
$ 42,686 $ 49,441 $ 47,260

: \ L

Dlscontmued op‘ 9 685 1, 524 18,663

Net income apphcahie to common shareholders $ 52 371 $ 50 965 $ 65923

Reconcrhaﬁon of ihe denammafor used fu{ basic earnings per shafe

Weighted' average common shares outstandmg 44, 330 40,068 38,409

= \:‘ ; f : ‘.w.“ i e A e e b M e B 24 £k ot © g A 4 A ke L R L S Y A R et SR - S i b ey e bt o] P e - - - . -

Bas:c eammgs pe share $ 1 18 3 1 27 $ 1.72

Reconczllatmn of the numerator used for dilutive earnings per share

Income ffom contmumg operatlons $ 51, 516 $ 48,458 $ 55618

Preferred: dwldends g f : {10,052) (8,452) (8,358)

1 222 9,435 ’ -
$ 42 686 $ 49,441 $ 47,260
9 685 1,524 18 663
$ 52,371 $ 50,965 $ 65,823
*f‘ . ‘z .

Recuncmai/an o{ fhe denumlnatar used for dilutive eammgs per share

Weighted average common shares outstandmg : ' 44 330 40,068 38,409

Preferred shares(“ AR - - -

[ [ :
Opt;ons bt i;‘, : ;;: e 127 181 240
Share grants ‘ I . 72 21 -
IR
Weighted ayerag humb‘er_of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding 44,529 40,270 38,649
Dluted earmngs per share o $ 1.18 $ 1.27 $ 1.71
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(1} The following securities were not included in the diluted earnings per share computation because they would have had an antidilutive effect.

{in thousands, except per share data) weighted average exercise price 2004 yearzeﬂn(f:d 2002
Share options 2951 - 15 -
Share options 29.99 - 37 -
Share options 31.35 - 37 37
Series D Convertible F{eferred Shares ) S » 3,774 _ 3,774 3,774
Total A ) o 3,774 3,863 3,811

Accounting for Share-Based Compensation

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.” The statement amends Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
expanding disclosure requirements and providing alternative methods of transition for an entity that voluntarily changes to the fair value based method of

accounting for stock or share-based employee compensation.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted the fair value based method of accounting as prescribed by statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, as amend-
ed, for our share-based compensation plans and have elected to apply this method on a prospective basis as prescribed in Financial Accounting Standards
No. 148. The prospective basis requires that we apply the fair value based method of accounting to all awards granted, madified or settled after the beginning

of the fiscal year in which we adopt the accounting method,

Historically, we applied the intrinsic value based method of accounting as prescribed by APB Opinion 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for our share-
based awards. Had we fully adopted Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, for awards issued pricr to January 1, 2003, it would have changed
our method for recognizing the cost of our plans. Had the compensation cost for our share-based compensation plans been determined consistent with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, our net income and net income per common share for 2004, 2003, and 2002 would approximate the

pro forma amounts below:

year ended

(amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
Net income applicable to comman shareholders as reported $ 52371 $ 50,965 $ 65,923
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense included therein 2,714 1,959 . 1,632
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value method for all awards (2,795) (2,237) {2,155)
Pro Fofma net incqme a:pplicable to common sha”‘rer;cide:rs- '$ ‘ 52,'290 $. 50687 - ‘ $ 65,400
Earnings per share:
Basic — as reported ‘ $ 1.18 3 1.27 $ 1.72
Basic - pro forma - o $ h 1.1b8 A $ .1.27 $ 1.70
Diluted - as reported $ 1.18 $ 1.27 }$ 1.71
Dituted ~ pro forma ) - ‘ - $ 1:17 $ 1.26 ' 3 ’ 1.69




(3) DEFER‘RE’D; GH,AR}GES AND OTHER ASSETS, NET

Deferred charges and other assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Deferred leasing costs and ténant improvements
In-place leases . ‘

Above market ‘*leasé‘j valugs, ‘n:et‘of amortization
Deferred finanj'c'ing‘ costs

Prepaids and other assets

S b ek b s ok S a1 8 S ot £ = e s et e 5 m w was 5 et s e s s bt savmet e o kot

. i i
Less: accumulated amortization
e J PSP MOREL P S H

O P, [ URON

JURESE -1 e

(4) NOTES RECEIVABLE

A 2004
$ 31 I,SZd
27,910
5,666
14,568
11,610

“ 371,074
(110,791)

$ 260,283

{in thausands)
2003

$ 276,926
7,425
3,324
14,870
8920

311,465
(101,045)
$ 210,420

Our notes receivable balance of $1!5 million at December 31, 2004 is the result of a real estate transaction that included a non-recourse promissory note total-

ing $4.4 million, collateralized by a real estate property sold, maturing March 1, 2005, bearing interest at 7.95% per annum and requiring interest only pay-

ments untilimaturitgf. On De¢ember 22, 2004, we received correspondence fram the borrower indicating an inability to fulfill their total obligation under the note.

Due to the fact that our note receivable is subordinate to a first mortgage totaling approximately $12.0 million, we initiated an evaluation of the underlying real

estate. Our evaluation was to determine whether the fair value of the property, less cost o sell would be sufficient to satisfy both the first mortgage and our note

receivable. in ourso‘pinion,‘the fair value of the underlying real estate would not be sufficient to satisfy both the first mortgage and our note receivable and thus

in the preparation 6\‘ our financial statements, we recognized a $2.9 miflion write-down of the note. The resulting $1.5 million note receivable balance repre-

sents our estimate 6f the present value of the expected future cash flows to be received under the note.

(5) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable consistéd of the following at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

bbb e i

Rents and services

Accruable rental. income

Other

SO TTC SR N O U S e b o et @ A R e b e o e et s

2004

$ 10449
50,721
809
61,9;1;9
(6,207)
$ 55,7;2

{in thousands)
2003

$ 12322
44,137
939
57,398
(9.986)

$ 47.,412

Accruable rental:incomie represents rental income recognized on a straight-line basis in excess of rental revenue accrued in accordance with individua! lease
? : -

agreements..
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On June 30, 1999, we loaned $4.2 million to various key employees as part of our long-term incentive plan to retain such emplayees. The funds were used to
purchase common shares of the company in the open market. The loans are full recourse notes, which accrue interest quarterly at a fixed rate of 7.0% and have
a term of five years. Interest payments are due quarterly. The loan balances were to be forgiven, contingent upon each key employees’ continued employment
with us, in the following manner: one-third of the principal balance was forgiven at the end of the third year of the loan term, ane-third was forgiven at the end

of the fourth year of the loan term, and the remaining principal balance was forgiven in June 2004 concurrent with the end of the fifth year of the loan term.

(6) INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED JOINT VENTURES AND UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

The following information summarizes the financial position at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of operations for the years ended December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002 for the investments in which we held an unconsolidated interest during the periods presented:

company’s

total assets total debt (@ total equity investment

Summary of Financial Position december 31, december 31, december 31, december 31,
(in thousands) 7 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2002
Broadmoor Austin Associates!l) $ 97962 $103,334 $131979 $138552 $(34814) $(35991) $ 4217 $ 3882
Tysons International Partners(2) 89,268 95,186 59,113 59,914 28914 34,213 8,726 8,226

Other Investments(®) - - - - - - ~ 1,107

$ 12943 $ 14215

company’s share

Summary of Operations total revenue net income/(loss) of net income/(loss)

(n thousznds) . We4 03 w02 W04 2008 0z ;o4 2008 2002
Broadmoor Austin Associates $ 20015 $20093 $20118 % 5058 % 4586 $ 4285 $ 2529 $ 2293 § 2,148
Burnett Plaza Associatest4) - - 4,302 - - 960 - - 192
PPS Partners LLC® - - 44 - - (13) - - (103
Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc.(® - - 14,075 - - 664 - - 651

Tysons International Partners 11,985 12,960 13,092 (359) 1,052 6382 (100) 262 173

$ 2,428 $ 2,555 $ 3,154

(13 We own a 50% non-controiling interest in Broadmoor Austin Associates, an entity, which owns a seven-buiiding, 1.1 million nef rentable square foot office complex in Austin, Texas.

(2) We own a 25% ron-controling interest in Tysons Internationat Partners, an entity, which owns two office properties containing 452,000 net rentable square feet in the Northern
Virginia area.

(3) Prior to April 14, 2004, we owned a 1% interest in certain real estate entities accounted for using the cost method of accounting. On April 14, 2004, we sold our interest to
Brandywine Realty Trust for proceeds totafing $1.1 million, equaling our carrying amount of our investment at the date of sale.

(4) Prior to March 2002, we owned a 20% non-controlling interest in Burnett Plaza Associates, an entity, which owns a 1.0 million net rentable square foot office building in downtown
Fort Worth, Texas. On March 7, 2002, we acquired the remaining 80% interest in Burnett Plaza Associates. The summary of operations above includes the results of operations for
the periods prior to our acquisition of a controliing interest on March 7, 2002.

(5) PPS Partners LLC was a joint venture between our operating partnership and a third-party property owner, The third-party property owner contributed property management con-
tracts to PPS Partners LLC. Our operating partnership through a sub-management contract managed the properties and participated in the net income of the joint venture. Effective
Qctober 2001, our operating partnership resigned the management duties of the properties.

{6} On March 28, 2001, Prentiss Properties Resources, inc. was incorporated under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware o serve as a Taxable REIT Subsidiary and
provide services to our operating partnership. On March 29, 2001, Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. acquired our interest in Prentiss Properties Limited, inc., valued at $3.9 mil-
lion, along with certain other assets with a carrying amount of approximately $2.5 million. At December 31, 2002, our operating partnership held a 98% economic interest and 0%
voting interest in Prenmtiss Properties Resources, Inc. Effective January 1, 2003, our operating partnership acquired the remaining 2% interest in Prentiss Properties Resaurces, Inc.
for total consideration of approximately $67,000. The summary of operations abave includes the results of operatians for the period prior to our acquisition of a controlling interest
on January 1, 2003.

(7) The mortgage debt, all of which is non-recourse, is collateralized by the individual real estate property or properties within each venture.




(7) MORTGAG;TS‘ ANDJ;\N’OTES‘ PAYABLE

T

At December 31 2004, we had,mortgag‘e and notes payable of $1.19 billion, excluding our proportionate share of debt from our unconsolidated joint ventures,

The foliowing table §ets fortﬁl 'dqr:mortgé'ges and notes payable as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(in thousands)

description ! . 2004 2003 amortization mteresl rate") matunty
Re\'/o!vrrr;c'redrt facmty - ; B H$ ) 217 50(‘)~ I ?$« 7111 OOO o wﬁe\rﬁremw" W[IBOR + 1 250% February 19 2007
PPREFI portfoho loan@) 180,100 180,100 Nane 7.58% February 26, 2007
High Bluffs construchon !6an‘, i 8,929 ‘» None LIBOR + 1.400% September 1, 2007
Collateralize‘ﬁ termvldeh - Uhi‘oﬁ Bank of Calif.(3 30,000 70,813 None LIBOR + 1.150% September 30, 2007
Unsecured term oan - Eurohypo | 100,000 100,000 None | LIBOR + 1.250% May 22, 2008
Unsecured term Ioan - Commerz 75,000 75,000 None LIBOR + 1.250% March 15, 2009
Unsecured term Ioan Eurohypo il 13,760 14,000 30yr 7.46% July 15, 2009
Co\laterallzed term Ioan Mass Mutual@) 85,000 - None LIBOR + 0.850% August 1, 2008
Variable rate mortgage notes payable(5) 96,700 66,000 None (6) (61
Frxed rate mortgage notes payab#em 384 922 412, 122 ® @ ®
: - $1 191 911 o e éi—ozg 035 e e . SRR

e b s

(1) 30-day LIBOR was 2 40% a& Decemper 31, 2004.

2 The PPREF! portfoho voan is, coJlatera)rzed by 36 properties with an aggregate net book value of real estate of $236.9 million.
(3} The term ioan [ co laterauzed by two-properties with an aggregate net book value of real estate of $18.4 million.
(4) The term Ioan is' couaterahzed by 9 properties with an aggregate net book vaiue of real estate of $107.7 million.
(5) The vanab\errate mortgage loans are collateralized by 4 buildings with an aggregate net book value of $126.4 million.
{6) Interest rates on aur vanable rate mor‘tgages range from 30-day LIBOR plus 110 basis points to 30-day LIBOR plus 150 basis points. Matunty dates range from July 2005 through

December 2009

(7)  The fixed rate mortgage loans are collateralized by 22 bundmgs with an aggregate net book value of $488.7 million.
(8 Theeffective, mteres\ rates for our fixed rate mortgages range from 3.70% to 8.05% with a weighted average effective interest rate of 7.14% at December 31, 2004. Maturity dates
range irom November 2005 through June 2013 with a weighted average maturity of 5.6 years from December 31, 2004.

Our future:scheduled principal repayments on our mortgages and notes payable are as follows:

years ending‘décEmber‘Sl;

(in thousands)
§ 118308
T 9704
448,510
106,048
250,111

259 130

Thereafter '

e ‘: - : - . S, L . . $1191911

Under our! toan agreements we are requ|red to satisfy varrous affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations on total indebtedness, total collateral-
ized mdebtedness and cash drstnbutlons as well as obligations to maintain certain minimum tangible net worth and certain minimum interest coverage ratios.

We were ,‘T?' qomph‘a‘nce‘w‘rth these covenants at December 31, 2004.




(8) INTEREST RATE HEDGES

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to the effect of interest rate changes. We limit our interest rate risk by following established risk management

policies and procedures including the use of derivatives. For interest rate exposures, derivatives are used to hedge against rate movements on our related debt.

To manage interest rate risk, we may employ options, forwards, interest rate swaps, caps and floors or a combination thereof depending on the underlying expo-
sure. We undertake a variety of borrowings from credit facilities, to medium- and long-term financings. To hedge against increases in interest cost, we use inter-

est rate instruments, typically interest rate swaps, to convert a portion of our variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt.

On the date we enter into a derivative contract, we designate the derivative as a hedge of (a) the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability (fair-value hedge) or (b) the variability of cash flows that are to be received or paid in connection with (i) a recognized asset or liability or (ii) a forecasted
transaction (cash flow hedges). Currently, we have only entered into derivative contracts designated as cash flow hedges. These agreements involve the
exchange of amounts based on a variable interest rate for amounts based on fixed interest rates over the life of the agreement based upon a notional amount.
The difference to be paid or received as the interest rates change is recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. The related amount payable to or receiv-
able from counterparties is included in accounts payable and other liabilities. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highiy effective and that is desig-
nated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge, to the extent that the hedge is effective, are recorded in other comprehensive income, until earnings are affected by
the variability of cash flows of the hedged transaction (e.g. until periodic settiements of a variable-rate asset or liability are recorded in earnings). Any hedge
ineffectiveness {which represents the amount by which the gains or losses of the derivative exceed the gains or fosses of the hedged instrument) is recorded

in current-period earnings. Gains or losses from a fair-value hedge, as well as the related gains or losses from the hedged item are recognized currently in earnings.

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as our risk-management objective and strategy for undertak-
ing various hedge transactions. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges to (1) specific assets and liabilities on the
balance sheet or (2) specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions. We also formally assess (both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis)
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been highly effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of hedged items and whether
those derivatives may be expected to remain highly effective in future periods. When it is determined that a derivative is not (or has ceased to be) highly effec-

tive as a hedge, we discontinue hedge accounting prospectively, as discussed below.

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively when (1) we determine that the derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the cash flows of a
hedged item (including hedged items such as firm commitments or forecasted transactions); (2) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (3)
it is no longer probable that the forecasted transaction will occur; (4) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets the definition of a firm commitment; or (5)

management determines that designating the derivative as a hedging instrument is no longer appropriate.

When we discontinue hedge accounting because it is no longer probable that the forecasted transaction will occur in the originally expacted period, the gain
or loss on the derivative remains in accumulated other comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earn-
ings. However, if it is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period or within an additional two-month
period of time thereafter, the gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income will be recognized immediately in earnings. in all situa-
tions in which hedge accounting is discontinued and the derivative remains outstanding, we will carry the derivative at its fair value on the balance sheet, rec-

ognizing changes in the fair value in current-period earnings.

To determine the fair value of derivative instruments, we use a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at

each balance sheet date. For our derivatives, standard market conventions and technigues such as discounted cash flov\f analysis, option pricing models,




replacement. cost,:and termination cost are used to determine fair value. All methods of assessing fair value result in a general approximation of value, and

such value may never actually be realized.

Over time, the unrealized gains and fosses held in accumulated other comprehensive income will be reclassified to earnings. This reclassification is consistent
with when the hedged items are recognized in earnings. Within the next twelve months, we expect to reciassify to earnings approximately $1.9 miltion of unre-

alized lossesand‘\$987,000 of unrealized gains of the current balances held in-accumulated other comprehensive income.

The following table $ummarizes the notional values and fair values of our derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2004, The notional value provides an

indication of the éxfent of ourinvolvement in these instruments as of the balance sheet date, but does not represent exposure to credit, interest rate or market risks.

swap rate received

: swap rate paid (variable) at

notional amount: . (fixed) december 31, 2004 swap maturity fair value
: (in thousands)

$ 25.0 million .+ , _ 4.345% 2.400% July 2005 $ (212)
$ 15.0 million .1 . 4.345% 2.400% July 2005 (127)
$ 200 milliob e 5.985% 2.400% March 2006 (676)
$ 300 million .o ‘ 5.990% 2.400% March 2006 (1,015)
$500miion .. 2.270% 2.400% August 2007 1,500
$ 25.0 million- } 2.277% 2.400% August 2007 746
$70.0 million(l),lll ' ‘ 4.139% 2.400% August 2008 (1,136)
$ 30.0 miltion ‘ 3.857% 2.400% September 2008 (175)
$ 30.0 milion ) 3.819% 2.400% October 2008 (134)
$ 20.0 million . 3.819% 2.400% October 2008 (89)
$ 50.0 million 1 ‘ ‘ 3.935% 2.400% May 2009 (286)
$ 30.0 million 3.443% 2.400% October 2009 558
$ (1,048)

(1) The interest réi_e swap agreement was executed by our Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. joint venture.

i

Cash paymehts rhade under our interest rate hedges exceeded cash receipts from our interest rate hedges by $10.6 million, $9.7 million and $8.2 million for

the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 respectively.
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(9) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and other liabilities consisted of the foliowing at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

(in thousands)

2004 2003
Accrued interest expense s sgs 3 568
Accrued reat estate taxes 28,178 24,764
Advance rent and deposits 20,010 18,067
Deferred compensation fiability 6,516 4,941
Below market lease values, net of amortization 8,319 2,625
Other liabilities 36,596 28,351

(10) DISTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE

In December 2004, we declared a cash distribution for the fourth quarter of 2004 in the amount of $.56 per share, payable on January 7, 2005, to common
shareholders of record on December 27, 2004. Additionally, it was determined that a distribution of $.56 per unit would be made to the partners of our oper-

ating partnership and the holders of our Series D Convertible Preferred Shares. The distributions totaled $28.1 million and were paid January 7, 2005.

(11) LEASING ACTIVITIES

Our future minimum lease payments (excluding operating expense reimbursements) to be received, under non-cancelable operating leases in place at

December 31, 2004, which expire on various dates through 2022, are as follows:

years ending december 31, (in thousands)
2005 $ 298648
2006 274,115
2007 236,013
2008 190,158
2009 157,308
Thereafter 347,152

- o - S ) $1,603,395
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The geogr‘a‘phi‘c cbntenrratiorr of tbe future minimum lease payments to be received is detailed as follows:

market | S ! : (in thousands)
DallasfFort Worth = $ 371879
Meiro, Washingion, DC | -, v 355,677
Chicago . , 254918
Oakand o1 ‘ : 173,100
SanDiego . 11| S 137,346
Austn Lo 88,220
Derver © 1. u : ‘ 42,214
Silicon Valley ‘ : ‘Y r v 31,640
Suburban Detrort T ' B 25,179
Los Angeles SR 23,222

[

$ 1 503 395

For the years end_ed December 31,.2004, 2003, and 2002 no individual tenant accounted for more than 10% of our total rental income.

(12) SUP“PL*E‘MENT:A“L‘D|SCVLUSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dlstnbutnons totalmg $28.1 mnlron payable to holders of common shares, operatmg partnership units and Series D Convertible Preferred Shares were declared
in December 2004 The drstrrbutlons were paid in January 2005,

Pursuant to our Iong term lncentnve plan, during the year ended December 31, 2004, we issued 97,450 restricted share grants to various key employees. The
shares, whrch had a market value of approximately $3.3 million based upon the per share price on the date of grant, were classified as unearned compensa-
tion and recorded m the shareholders equity section of the consolidated baiance sheet. The unearned compensation is amortized quarterly as compensation
expense over the three‘year: vesting period.

During the year errded Detember 31, 2004, 113,200 common shares were issued pursuant to the conversion of 113,200 common units of our operating part-
nership. The corimon shareé had a market value of approximately $4.2 million on the conversion date.

During the year ended December 31, 2004 we marked-to-market our investments in securities and our interest rate hedges. During the year ended December
31, 2004 We recorded unreahzed garns of $191,000 and $6.7 million on our investments in securitres and interest rate hedges, respectively.

During the year ended Decernber 31,.2004, common shares in treasury increased by $4.7 million, primarily related to an increase of $4.6 million attributable
to 125,963 common shares surrendered as payment of the exercise price and statutory tax withholdings for certain share options exercised during the

penod and $129 OOO representlng forferture of 4,000 restricted share grants.

In connection with‘ the ‘ac‘:quisitkons during the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded other assets of $478,000, escrowed cash of $595,000 and
assumed Irabrlrtles of approxlmately $2 8 million. As a result of property saies during the year ended December 31, 2004, we removed approximately $3.3 mil-

lion, $601 000 arnd $237 OOO of recervab!es other assets and liabilities, respectively.

i




(13) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On March 28, 2001, Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. was incorporated under the General Corparation Law of the State of Delaware to serve as a Taxable
REIT Subsidiary and provide management services to our operating partnership. Our operating partnership held a 98% economic interest and 0% voting inter-
est in Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. Effective January 1, 2003, our operating partnership acquired the remaining 2% interest in Prentiss Properties
Resources, Inc., for gross consideration of approximately $67,000. As a result, beginning January 1, 2003, the accounts of Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc.

are consolidated with and into the accounts of our operating partnership.

Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries incurred certain personnel and other overhead-related expenses on behalf of our operating partnership.

In 2002, the year prior to consclidation the overhead related expenses totaled $4.6 million.

(14) CAPITAL SHARES

Our board of trustees is authorized to provide for the issuance of 100,000,000 common shares and 20,000,000 preferred shares in one or more series, to
establish the number of shares in each series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of each such series and the qualifications, limitations

or restrictions thereof.

As of December 31, 2004, 45,062,840 and 3,773,585 common shares and Series D Convertible Preferred Shares were issued and outstanding, respectively.
Of the 45,062,840 common shares, 80,952 common shares were held pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan and classified as common shares in
treasury on our consolidated balance sheet. The Series D Convertible Preferred Shares are convertible at the holder's option on a one-for-one basis into our

common shares, subject to certain adjustments. Effective December 29, 2005, the Series D Convertible Preferred Shares become redeemable at our option.

At the operating partnership level, 46,397,771 common units were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004. The units included 45,062,840 held by
Prentiss Properties Trust and 1,334,931 held by limited partners of our operating partnership. The 1,334,931 common units are redeemable at the option of
the holder for a like number of common shares, or at our option, the cash equivalent thereof and are accounted for as minority interest in operating partner-

ship on our consolidated balance shest.

(15) SHARE INCENTIVE PLANS

We have two separate share-based incentive compensation plans both of which are approved by our shareholders. The plans include (1) a trustees’ share
incentive plan and (2) an employees’ share incentive plan. Under the plans, we are authorized to issue common shares or cash pursuant to awards granted
in the form of (1) non-qualified share options not intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; (2) restricted or
non-restricted shares; (3) share appreciation rights; and (4) performance shares. Awards may be granted to selected employees and trustees of our company

or an affiliate of our company.

The Trustees’ Plan

Under the trustees’ plan, we are authorized to issue awards with respect to @ maximum of 550,000 shares. Annually on the first business day of July we grant
to each independent trustee non-qualified share options to purchase 7,500 of our common shares. The options are 100% vested at grant and, therefore,

expensed upon issuance. In 2004, we issued to the independent trustees, a total of 37,500 non-qualified share options.

€9
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On the first bbsinés§ day of éach fiscal quarter, we issue to each independent trustee common shares having an aggregate value of $6,250, based on the per
share fair market‘v‘alue of the common shares on the date of grant. The common shares are 100% vested at grant and, therefore, expensed upon issuance. A

total of 3,655‘, 4,300 and 4,625 common shares were granted pursuant to the plan during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.
At December 31, 2QO4, we had 229,925 common shares that remain available for future issuance under our trustees’ plan.

The Employses’ Plan

Under the erhp|qyées’ plah, we are authorized to issue awards with respect to a maximum of 6,500,000 common shares. Awards may be granted to employ-
ees of our op‘erating partnership or management service companies. No participant may be granted, in any calendar year, awards in the form of share options
or share appreciation rights with respect to more than 390,000 common shares or restricted share awards for more than 50,000 common shares. We have

broad discretion in’ determining the vesting terms and other terms applicable to awards granted under the plan.

The exercisei;iricé.‘qf each bption granted during 2004 was equal to the per share fair market value of our comman shares on the date of grant. Under the
employees’ pian,‘ :d:uring the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we granted 240,650, 271,000 and 206,508 options which vest 33-1/3% per
year on each anniversary qf the date of grant, commencing with the first anniversary of the date of grant. In addition during 2004, 2003 and 2002 we issued
97,450, 93,25Q aﬁd 30,600 restricted shares which vest 100% on the third anniversary of the date of grant.

At Decembefal, 2004, we had 1,775,119 common shares that remain available for future issuance under our employees’ plan.

'

A summary of the $tatus of bur optioné as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the changes during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

2004 2003 2002

i - ’“vblbeighted a S weighted ‘ weighted

# shares of average # shares of average # shares of average

underlying exercise underlying . exercise underlying exercise

—— L. ORMONS . rice  _ Optens ... P options price

Outstanding at beg‘inning‘df the year 984,456 $ 2645 1,421,514 $ 2493 2,179,175 $ 2365

Granted ' | 278,150 $ 3410 308,500 $ 2673 244,000 $ 2843

Exercised - | - 612,020 $ 2600 745,558 $ 2366 997,661 $ 2301

Forfeited : ‘ 3,335 $ 2809 - $ - 4,000 $ 2624

BRI | i e S DU R S T

Outsténdiné a’;‘er;d: c;f year R 647,251“ »$ B 36.11 984,458 7 $ 2645 1,421,514 $ 2493

Becistleatendotvesr 161435 $ 2019 4065 § 2662 6790% o523
Weighted-ave‘rage“fa‘ir valuﬁe‘of o - S

options granted during the year $ 1.84 $ 0.88 $ 119
The fair value of each share option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-

average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002
Expected term 3_ 5.00 5.00 5.00
Expected divfdeﬁa‘yield 6.57% 8.32% 7.81%
Expected volatility, . - 16.90% 15.28% 13.64%
Risk-free interest rate " 3.13% 3.01% . 4.27%



The following table summarizes information about share options outstanding at December 31, 2004:

options outstanding options exercisable

numbsr weighted weighted average number weighted

outstanding at average remaining exercisable average

range of exercise price 12/31/04 exercise price contr. life at 12/31/04 exercise price
$15.00 to $20.00 5,000 $  20.00 1.8 5,000 $ 2000
$20.01 to $25.00 30,167 $ 2408 4.0 30,167 $ 2408
$25.01 to $30.00 303,934 $ 27.10 7.8 58,768 $ 2873
$30.01 + 308,150 $ 3383 91 67,500 § 3256
$15.00 + 647,251 $ 3011 8.2 161,435 $ 2919

(16) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

We have a 401(k) savings plan for our employees. Under the plan, as amended, employees, age 21 and older, are eligible to participate in the plan after they

have completed one year and 1,000 hours of service. Participants are immediately vested in their contributions, matching contributions and earnings thereon.

We initially match 25% of an employees’ contribution, not to exceed 25% of 6% of each employee’s wages. Qur cost of the initial match totaled approximate-
ly $289,000, $271,000 and $306,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We may also elect, in any calendar year, to make
a discretionary match to the plan. The amount paid pursuant to the discretionary match totaled approximately $0, $0 and $314,000 during the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

We have registered 500,000 common shares in connection with a share purchase plan. The share purchase plan enables eligible employees to purchase
shares, subject to certain restrictions, of the company at a 15% discount to fair market value. A total of 29,683, 32,065 and 39,766 common shares were
issued, in accordance with the share purchase plan, during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. At December 31, 2004, we

have 181,566 shares available for future issuance.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, we adopted the Key Employee Share Option Plan. Pursuant to  the plan, officers and other selected key employ-
ees of our operating partnership or management service companies who earn bonuses have the option of deferring the payment of such bonuses. Such deferred
compensation may be used to purchase various mutual funds and/or our common shares. Pursuant to the participant’s election, we purchase shares on the
open market and place them in a trust for the benefit of such participant. The trust may deliver to the participant shares or the fair market value of such shares
beginning six months from the date they were placed in the trust. The purpose of the deferred compensation plan is to provide a vehicle for the payment of
compensation otherwise payable to the participants, in a form that will provide incentives and rewards for meritorious performance and encourage the recipi-
ents’ continuance as our employees. During the 2000 plan year we provided a discount of 15% on the purchase price of our common shares purchased by
participants in the plan. For each plan year thereafter, we did not provide a discount on our common shares. The mutual fund investments are carried at their
market value of $2.8 million and included as investments in securities on our consolidated balance sheet. The plan holds 80,952 of our common shares which
we purchased in the open market on behalf of the participants. These are included as common shares in treasury on our consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2004. The fair value of the plan assets totaling $5.9 million are included as deferred compensation liability in accounts payable and other lia-
bilities on our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2004. As a result of the change in the fair value of our investments in securities, we recorded unre-
alized gains of $191,000 and unrealized losses of $83,000 and $104,000 in other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.




As of February 12 2003 we adopted two deferred compensatlorl plans for our executive officers. The Executlve Choice Share Deferral Plan for Executives
allows our executlve offlcers to elect'to defer the receipt of shares issued upon the exercise of optlons pursuant to our 1996 Share incentive Plan. In addition,
the Executlve éhorce Share Deferral Plan allows our officers to defer receipt of restricted securities issued pursuant to our 1996 Share Incentive Plan and to
defer recelpt of our common shares received pursuant to our Key Employee Share Option Plan and our Share Purchase Plan. The Executive Choice Deferred
Compensatnon Plan provldes a means for our executive officers to defer receipt of salary and bonus and property other than our common shares received under

the Key Employee Share Optron Plan.

We also adopted tw; deferred compensatlon plans for our trustees, similar to those adopted for our executives. Under the Executive Choice Share Deferral Plan
for Trustees, the mdependent members of our board of trustees may defer receipt of shares issued upon the exercise of options received under the Amended
and Restatéd Trustees Share lncentlve' Plan. Under the Executive Choice Deferred Compensation Plan for Trustees, our independent trustees may defer other
compensation jrecélyed puréuarlt to service on our board of trustees.

For each of the déferred corhpensatlon plans described above, the executive’s or the trustee's receipt of shares and other compensation is deferred by plac-
ing such shares or other compensatlon in an account, which is treated as an unfunded deferred compensation obligation of the company, and the employee
or trustee does not receive the shares or other compensation until he elects to receive the sharas or other compensation at a future date. Each of the plans
described above is mtended solely as @ means of deferring gain that would otherwise be realized by our officers and trustees and is not intended to amend any

other plan or program

(17) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENGCIES

Legal Matters :

We are subj ect to vanous legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. These matters are generally covered by insurance. We

believe that the fmal outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of oparations or liquidity.

Environmental :Mat‘tiers l ‘; g
We obtaln iehvl:rorl‘jh‘tental site assessments for all acquired properties prior to acquisition. The environrhental site assessments have not revealed any environ-
mental conditlo‘h llabllity or‘eompliance concern that we believe may have a material adverse effect on our business, assets or results or operations, nor are
we aware of any such condltlon llablllty or concern. It is possible that the environmental site assessments relating to any one of our properties or properties 1o
be acqulred in the future do not reveal all environmental conditions, liabilities or compliance concerns or that there are material environmental conditions, lia-
bilities or complrance concems that arose after the related environmental site assessment report was completed of which we are otherwise unaware.

i I ! '

insurance; - ' )]

We have a‘n‘d;vvilli lgeep in :torcé cornprehensive insurance, including liability, fire, workers' compen_satlon, ‘extended coverage, rental loss and, when available
on reasonablé cor]jrherclal terrns, flood, wind, earthquake and terrorism insurance, with policy specifications, limits, exclusions and deductibles customarily
carried for slml‘la‘r propertlee We currently maintain insurance to cover environmental conditions and business interruption if and when they occur. This poli-
cy covers. both goverhmentalvand thlrd -party claims associated with the covered environmental conditions. Our real property insurance policies exclude earth-
quake coverage for propertles located within California. As a result, we maintain a separate $125 million blanket earthquake policy on the properties we own
in Northern and Southern Callforma Our real property insurance policies exclude terrorism coverage. However, we maintain a separate $100 milfion blanket
stand-alone terrorrsm pOlle on the properties we own. Certain types of losses, however generally of a catastrophic nature, such as acts of war, are either unin-

surabte or the cost of obtalnmg insurance is so high that it is more prudent to accept the risk of loss. If more terrorists incidents occur, however, future insur-
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ance policies purchased by us may expressly exclude hostile acts, and it may become economically unfeasible to obtain insurance covering terrorist attacks.
In the event of such terrorist acts or other catastrophic losses, we would expect our insurance premiums to increase thereafter, which may have an adverse

impact on our cash flow. We believe that our properties as of the date of this filing are adequately insured in accordance with industry standards.

Financial Guarantees and Commitments

In connection with the disposition of a real estate property in May 2001, we entered into a financial guarantee with a maximum future potential payment of
$1.4 million. The financial guarantee, provided to the third party purchaser, guaranteed payment of an amount not to exceed the $1.4 million potentiat maxi-
mum if certain tenants, as defined in the purchase and sale agreement, fail to extend either their leases beyond the maturities of their current in-place leases
or to perform according to their in-place leases. An amount totaling $1.0 million was considered probable at the date of disposition and therefore, accrued dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2001. Pursuant to the financial guarantee, during the year ended December 31, 2003, we paid the anticipated $1.0 million

to the third party purchaser.

As a condition of the purchase and sale and as security for our guarantee, we provided to the title company at closing, two irrevacable letters of credit, totaling
$1.4 million, drawn on a financial institution and identifying the purchaser as beneficiary. One letter of credit totaling $1.0 million expired in 2003. The remain-

ing balance on the second letter of credit totaling $189,000 at December 31, 2004 expires as follows:

(in thousands) letters of credit
2005 $ 63
2006 126

. . . e e . . A 55

(18) RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable interest Entities.” In December 2003,
the Financial Standards Board issued a revision to FASB Interpretation No. 46, FASB Interpretation No. 46(R). The Interpretation, as revised, requires consol-
idation of an entity by an enterprise if that enterprise will absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses if they occur, receive a majority of the entity’s expect-
ed residual returns if they occur, or both. An entity subject to this Interpretation is called a variable interest entity. The disclosure provisions of this Interpretation,
as revised, are effective for financial statements issued after December 31, 2003. Per this Interpretation, as revised, a public entity, that is not a small business
issuer, with a variable interest entity to which the provisions of the Interpretation have not been applied as of December 24, 2003, shall apply this Interpretation
no later than the end of the first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004, However, prior to the required application of this Interpretation, a public enti-
ty, that is not a small business issuer, shall apply this Interpretation to those entities that are considered to be special-purpose entities no later than as of the

end of the first reporting period that ends after December 15, 2003.

In November 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on an approach for evaluating whether the criteriz in paragraph 42 of Statement 144 have been met for the
purposes of classifying the results of operations of a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale as discontinued
operations. The consensus was incorporated into Appendix A (03-13A) of Issue No. 03-13, "Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement No.

144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, in Determining Whether to Report Discontinued Operations.”




The guidance‘ should be applied to a-component of an enterprise that is either disposed of or classified as held for sale in fiscal periods beginning after
December 15; 2004. In accordance with the criteria prescribed in 03-13A, we evaluated our continuing involvement resulting from certain management agree-
ments retained in relation to réal estate sale transactions occurring during the period and as a result of our evaluation determined that the results of operations

fram the sdld propérties should be classified within discontinued operations on our consolidated statements of income.

In December 2004, the Finhancial Accounting Standards Board Issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” a
revision to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” The Statement supersedes APB Opinion No.

25, “Accounﬁng for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its refated implementation guidance.

The Statement which focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions, estab-
lishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in
which an entity incurs fiabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by

the issuance of tﬁdse eciui;y instruments.

The Statemeht requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-
date fair value of the award: (with limited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in
exchange fbr‘the award—the requisite service period {usually the vesting period). No compensation cost is recognized for equity instruments for which employ-

ees do not render the requisite service.

The Statement, which is effective as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005 for public entities that do

not file as small Buginess issuers, will not have a material impact on our financial statements.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 153, “Accounting for Non-monetary
Transactions.” The statement requires non-monetary exchanges to be accounted for at fair value, recognizing any gain or loss, if the transactions meet a com-
mercial-substance criterion and fair value is determinable. The statement is effective for non-monetary transactions occurring in fiscal years beginning after

June 15, 2005, We believe that the implementation of this standard will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.




(19) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The table below presents information about income from continuing operations and segment assets used by our chief operating decision maker as of and for

the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

For the Year Endsd and As of December 31, 2004

corporate
northern southern total  not aflocable  consofidated
“(in thousands) mid-atlantic midwest southwest california california segments  to segments total
Revenues:
Rental income $ 93873 $ 59,079 $ 127,758 $ 36623 $ 39,492 $ 356825 $ - $ 356,825
Service business and other income 3713 1,035 3,073 2,862 982 11,665 2,244 13,909
Totalrevenwes 97586 60114 130831 39485 40474 368490 2244 370734
Expenses:
Property operating and maintenance 21,687 13,470 37,299 10,766 8459 91,681 - 91,681
Real estate taxes 7,580 12,004 13,644 3,110 3,068 39,406 - 39,406
General & administrative and
personnel costs 419 257 278 159 (14) 1,099 10,704 11,803
Expenses of service business 2,496 1,110 2,077 1716 1,429 8,828 1,170 8,998
Depreciation and amortization 21,029 15902 34,845 6,716 13,463 91,955 360 92,315
Toblegerses | S21L 4273 843 246 25405 232969 12234 205203
Interest expense - - - - - - 68,037 68,037
Amortization of deferred financing costs - - - - - - 2,343 2,343
income from continuing operations before
equity in income of unconsolidated joint
ventures, foss on investments in securities,
impairment and minority interests 44 375 17,371 42,688 17,018 14,062 135,521 (80,370) 55,151
Equity in income of unconsolidated
joint ventures (100) - 2,529 - - 2,429 - 2,429
Loss on investments in securities (420) (420
Loss from impairment of mortgage loan (2,900) - ~ - - (2,900) - (2,800)
Minority interests (2744)  (2748)

Income from continuing operations L8 41375 8 17371 8 45217 § 17018 3 14069 $ 135050 § (83534) % 51516

Additions to long-lived assets:

Development/redevelopment $ 108 § 2565 § 310 §% 691 $ 11673 $ 15347 % - $ 15347

Purchase of real estate - 32,590 123,336 100,491 32,821 289,238 - 289,238
Capital expenditures for in-service properties 9,797 13,846 17,756 7,418 5,479 54,396 - 54,396
Totsladdtons ~ $99305 § 49,101 § 141402 § 108600 § 49973 §$ 358981 § - § 358981
Investrment bslance i equiy metiod ivesiess S 8726 $ - S 427 5 - S -8 129428 - § 12943

Total assets ~.....B 605355 $437173 § 698093 § 282059 $ 276907 $2299.587 $ 33952 $2333,539

BE




v Do northern southern total

{in thousands) . " i G s mid-atlantic midwest southwest california california segments
Revenues: : * ;' ‘

Rental mcome, k 3 f i ‘ : $ 89,220 $ 54,948 $ 107,462 $ 32,558 $.30,530 $ 314718

Service busmess and other income . 3,973 ) 2,085 2,461 ‘ 2,504 : 931 12,014
1 Tgtel revenues ”M sw ‘ 193 393 ) 57, 933 109923 o 35‘062 : 3—1 521 ”326 732
Expenses: r” r : Pl

Property eperatrng and rnarntenance 19,329 14,279 31,488 10,141 ‘ 5,346 80,583

Real estate taxes 1; e 6,733 8,854 10,809 2,626 2,252 31274

General & admnn:strafiv:e end personnel costs 447 276 274 146 148 1,291

Expenses ef sér\rice b’us‘r‘\ess 2,691 1,457 1,812 1,501 1,308 8,769

Deprecrahon and amortlzanon o 18,§_28 14, 356 ‘ 26,704 4747 7,954 72,289
) T g 3 ‘ 1;008 4{94,206

Tota1 operatrng expenses - 47,728

Interest expense .

Amomzatlon of deferred ﬂnanc ing costs - - - - - -
lncome from conhnu ng operat ons before

equity in mcome of unconsohdated joint

ventures and mmorlty mterests i 45,465 17,811 38,836 15,901 14513 132,526

Equity in mcome of unconsohdated
jomtventures T 261 - 2,294 - - 2,555

Mmorlty rnterests b

P U — [T [E—

Income from contlnumg eper .3 45 726 $ 17 811 }

pddiions o org ed asses: e
Developmen‘redevelopmem  $ 1,292 §% M4 3—75»”$M 48(;;'.3:“””” :1»$ 106$ ‘A10,542 -
Purchase of real estate e 52,158 31,375 28,052 6,062 67,086 184,733

) Caprtal expendrtures for‘h -service preperties 8056 6,359 ’ 13,173 4,377 B 3,271 ] 35 236V

Total addltrone f\?' TR $ 61,506 $ 42, 1093 4e_,o§6"_>_$" 10443 $ 7 70,463 $ 230 611

lnvestment balance in equlty methodmlrwes“tees $ 9226 $ - éh_3*88; $ ‘”—:§ ' -3 13,108:'

T9@1~eesets:, RS T $619207 $412769 $ 638,170 3 252098 3 244004 $2166248

89

3§ 135081

corporate
not allocable  consolidated
to segments total

$ - $ 314,718
4,755 16,769
4,755 331,487

- 80,583

- 31,274

9,697 10,988
1,744 10,513
194 72 483

) 11,635 ) 205 841

67,232 67,232
2,284 2,284

(76,396) 56,130

- 255
(10.227)  (10,227)

$(86623)8 48458

$ -$ 10642
- 184733

- 3523

$ - $ 230611
LS. -5 13108
s 32845 $2199093



For the Ysar Ended and As of December 31, 2002

{in thousands) mid-atlantic midwest southwest
Revenues:

Rental income $ 81275 $ 57990 $ 105934

Service business and other income 433 22 104

Total revenues ) _ 81~,7Q8 58,012 106,968
Expenses:

Property aperating and maintenance 18,143 13,768 27,500

Real estate taxes 6,201 10,067 14,011

General & administrative and personnel costs 425 302 379

Depreciation and arportizatfon - . »14,5857 12047 23,830 )

Total expenses ' ) ] 39,37547 36,184 » 65,720

Interest expense - - -

Amortization of deferred financing costs - - -~
Income from continuing operations before

equity in income of unconsolidated joint

ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries

and minority interests 42,354 21,828 41,248
Equity in income of unconsclidated joint

ventures and unconsolidated subsidiaries 1,875 1,007 2,282
Minority interests - - -
Income from continuing operations 3 44,229 $;722',835 ' $ 43530
Additions to long-lived aésqts: o o »

Development/redevelopment $ 8,08£ $ 10,§77 $ 4172

Purchase of real estate 565,152 - 107,475

Capital expenditures fpr fn-service properties 413‘1‘3’7 B 2»,329V 13,296"
Total additions ) ) $ 67546 $ 13306 §$ 124,943
Investment balance in eéu.ity method investees % 9763 $ - % 3,914
Total assets ‘ $617,295 $ 383559 % 639,4‘16-

@
©

northern southern total
california california segments

$ 33480 $ 28808 $ 307487
280 (59) 1,710

33,760 28,749 309,197

10,420 5,404 75,235
2,607 2,233 35119
358 7 1,635

17,706 14,883 173,847

16,054 13,866 135,350

(386) (146) 4,632

$ 15668 $ 13720 $ 139,982

$ 108 § 295 $ 26,294

- 10,597 173,224
4,215 3,034 27,187

$ -3 -$ 13677

$ 267,060 $ 180,379 $2,087,699

4,321 7,075 61,858

$ 4323 $ 16587 $ 226,705
$

corporate
not alfocable
to segments
$ -
2,676
2,676
8,726

86

8,812
64,468
1,832
(72,436)
(1,478)
(10,450)

$ (84,364)
3 -
3 -
6,299

$ 34,590

consolidated
total

$ 307,487
4,386
311,873

75,235
35,119
10,361
61,944
182,659

64,468
1,832

62,914

3,154
(10,450)
$ 55618

$ 26294
173,224
27,187

$ 226,705

$ 19976

$2,122,289




(20) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the lmpairment or Dispasal of Long-Lived Assets,” effective for finan-
cial statements iss:ued‘f‘or fiScél‘years beginning after December 15, 2001, income and gain/(loss) for real estate properties sold and real estate properties held
for sale are to be ?reﬂeﬁted inthe consolidated statements of income as discontinued operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we sold 4 industria! buildings containing approximately 91,000 net rentable square feet and 8 office buildings con-
taining approxnmately 1.2 mllhon net rentable square feet. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we sold 11 office buildings containing approximately
983,000 net. rentable square feet. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we sold 7 industrial buildings containing approximately 875,000 net rentable

square feet and 3 oﬁ‘xee bu»!dmgs containing approximately 134,000 net rentable square feet.

Concurrent with‘t‘he‘dispojsition of 7 of the 8 office buildings sold during the year ended December 31, 2004, we entered into management agreements under
which we would ;perform rjnanégement duties for a fee. We evaluated our continuing involvement resuiting from the management agreements pursuant to the
criteria outlined in E)TF 03:13A, “Applying the Conditions in Paragraph 42 of FASB Statement No. 144 in Determining Whether to Report Discontinued
Operations,” and as a resu(t of our évaluation determined that neither the continuing cash inflows nor cash outflows are significant and thus, the properties
should be c!assmed wuthm d|scontmued operations on our consolidated statements of income.

i
Below is a summary:of our cbmbined results of operations from the properties disposed of or held for sale included in discontinued operations during the peri-

ods presented.

Discontinued Operations

year ended december 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Rental income $ 14,037 $ 33,164 $ 48,767

Praperty revenues 14,037 33,164 48,767
Interest and Other \ncome ‘ 19 47 -
Total Revenues 14,056 33,211 48,787
Property operating aha maintenance 4,046 11,392 15476
Real estate taxes 2,001 3,638 5,344
Depreciation and amor‘uzatlon 3673 7,773 11,513

Property expenses 8,720 22,803 32,333
interest expense ‘ a8z 2,582 2,613
Loss on impairment of real estate - (1,792) (2,855)
income from disg:ibintinued operations $ 3334 $ 6,034 $ 10,966
Gain/(loss) from dispositio‘n of discontinued operations 11,957 (4,457} 8,430
Loss from debt defeasance: related to sale of real estate (5,316} - -
Minority interest felated to discontinued operations (310) (53) (733)
Totai Dnscentlnued Ope;no;as e T é 9 685 R '$ 1,5é4 . $ ‘ 18,663

[EURREY et At bt e e e Ceem b e a - . . -
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(21) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following schedule is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

(amaunts in thousands, except per share data) first quarter second quarter third quarter fourth quarter total

Year ended December 31, 2004

Revenue $ 87,786 $ 90,550 $ 94224 $ 98174 $ 370,734
Income from continuing operations $ 13769 $ 13,257 $ 139841 $ 10,549 $ 51,516
Net income $ 16,999 $ 18792 $ 12,554 $ 14,078 $ 62423
Net income per commeon share-basic $ 0.31 % 0.38 $ 0.23 $ 0.27 $ 1.18
Net income per common share-dituted $ 0.30 $ 0.37 % 0.23 $ 0.27 $ 1.18
Year ended December 31, 2003

Revenue $ 80278 $ 82161 $ 83,049 $ 85993 $ 331,487
income from continuing operations $ 11,338 $ 11,391 $ 13311 $ 12418 $ 48,458
Net income $ 15510 $ 8512 $ 14218 $ 21,177 $ 59,417
Net income per common share-basic $ 0.34 $ 0.16 $ 0.30 $ 0.45 $ 1.27
Net income per common share-diluted $ 034 3 0.16 % 0.30 $ 0.45 $ 1.27
Year ended Decernber 51, 2002

Revenue $ 73955 $ 79,156 $ 78500 $ 80262 $ 311,873
income from continuing operations $ 14,527 $ 13,170 $ 15575 $ 13,347 $ 55,618
Net income $ 18,220 $ 17,341 $ 22,834 $ 15826 $ 74281
Net income per common share-basic $ 0.43 $ 0.40 3 0.53 $ 0.35 3 1.72
Net income per comman share-diluted $ 043 $ 0.39 $ 0.53 $ 0.35 $ 171

(22) INCOME TAXES

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under sections 856 through 860 of the internal Revenue Code of 1986, commencing with our taxable year ended
December 31, 1996. To qualify as a REIT, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we currently
distribute at least 90% of our adjusted taxable income to our shareholders, It is aur current intention to adhere to these requirements and maintain our RE(T
status. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to corporate level federal income tax on taxable income we distribute currently to our shareholders. if we fail
to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to federal income taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax)
and may nat be able to qualify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and
lacal taxes on our income and property, and to federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income. In addition, taxable income from non-

REIT activities managed through taxable REIT subsidiaries is subject to federal, state and local income taxes.



Reconciliation between GAAP Net Income and Taxable Income

The following isa réiconcilia‘ti(jmﬂbf GAAP net income to taxable income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

n thousands) . 2004 2003 2002

GAAP netincome: 1+ $ 62423 $ 59417 $ 74281
GAAP Joss (net mcome) of taxable subsud;ames mc!uded above (1 397) (883) (651)
GAAP net mcome from REIT operanons 61 026 58 534 73 630

e s e i ——

GAAP to tax ad;ustments (1

Deprecuatwon and amomzatlon ‘ 25,200 18,897 14,495

Gains and |osses from cap«tal transactions(2) (11,946) (4,783) (296)
Straight- ling: rent ad;ustment net of rents received in advance (7,476) (7,948) (7,177)
Camtahzed operatmg expenses and interest cost related to development projects (5,822) (182) (3,017)
Interest i mcome l . ; 484 482 481
Compensat:on expenseK ; . E {2,162) (665) (4,542)
Other. dlfferences net ., x ] ‘ (103) 648 3,502
Total GAAP to tax adJustments ) T (1825) - 6 445 T 3446

Adjusted taxab & income subject to drstnbuhon requirement(3) $ 58,201 $ 64,983 $ 77,076

e e 4 e B b g e o e i A i o s s e 1 s S e 2k E o sebm e 2 o

(1) Alladj ustments to GAAP net lncome from REIT operations are net of amounts attributable to mingrity interest.
(2) Represents thel GAAP to tax’ d|fference for gains and losses including tax-deferred gain on transactions qualifying under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue Code.
3) The distnbutlon requirémant'was 90% in each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, *
I L : ¢

SR ‘
Characterization of Distributions -
The cIassificatiod“o‘fldistributipns presented below is determined out of our earnings and profits as defined by Section 316 of the Internal Revenue Code, which
differs from federal taxable income.

T

The following fable ¢hara<;te’rizes distributions paid per common share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002:

L i
i

i thausands) . ;”J [ 2004 2003 2002

Ordinary i mcome R o $1.213  54.15% $1425 63.66% $1788 80.73%
Return of cap;ta : ’ $ 1027 4585% $ 0814 3634% $0427 19.27%
Capltal ga ns' $ 0.00 '0.00% $ O OO O OO% $ 0.00 0.00%
Y 2 240 $ 2240 $ 2215
; ) @3




Prentiss Properties Resources, Inc. was incorporated in March 2001 to serve as a Taxable REIT Subsidiary and provide management and other services to our
operating partnership and third-party clients. The management services business serves a broad base of clients, including major financial institutions and pen-
sion funds, large corporate users, real estate advisory firms and real estate investment groups. Prentiss Properties Resgurces, Inc. had a deferred tax liability

totaling approximately $550,000 at December 31, 2004 as detailed below:

(in thousands) dr./(cr)
Bad Debt Reserve $ 218
Accrued employee liabilities 28
Accrued depreciation & amortization (149)
Loss from partnership interests (559)
Other miscellaneous tax benefits 6
State Tax reserve (94)
TAotal deferred tax liability 7 “ - : $  (550)

(23) PRO FORMA

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented as if all of the properties acquired between January 1, 2004 and December

31, 2004 had occurred January 1, 2004 and 2003.

These pro forma consolidated statements of income should be read in conjunction with our historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for
the year ended December 31, 2004. The pro forma consolidated statements of income are not necessarily indicative of what actual results would have been

had the acquisitions actually occurred on January 1, 2004 and 2003 nor purport to represent our operations for future periods.

ProForma for the years ended december 31,

(in thousands) 2004 2003
Total revenue $ 391,163 $ 374,748
income applicable to common shareholders before discontinued operations $ 42948 $ 51,646
Net income applicable to common shareholders $ 52,633 $ 53,170

Basic earnings per share:

Income applicable to common shareholders before discontinued operations $ 0.97 $ 1.29

Net income applicable to common sharehaolders $ 1.19 % 1.33

Weighted average mumber of common shares outstanding 44,330 40,068
Diluted earnings per share:

Income applicable to common shareholders before discontinued operations $ 0.96 3 1.28

Net income applicable to common shareholders $ 1.18 $ 1.32

Weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding 44,529 40,270




The folfowing unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income are presented as if all of the properties acquired between January 1, 2003 and December

31, 2003 had occurred January'1, 2003 and 2002.
These pro forma cbnsolidated;statements of income should be read in conjunction with our historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for
the year ended December 31, 2004. The pro forma consolidated statements of income are not necessarily indicative of what actual results would have been

had the acquisitions actually occurred as of January 1, 2003 and 2002 nor does it purport to represent our operations for future periods.

ProForms - S ‘ ‘ : year ended december 31,

fin thousands) | @ : 2003 2002
Totat revenue ‘ | B $ 345621 $ 335,997
Income applic“able:to:tommon shareholders before discontinued operations $ 50417 $ 48401
Net incomg aﬁﬁliéébie to cofnmon shareholders : $ 51941 $ 67,064

Basic earnings per. share: !

Income appiicabfe to comman shareholders before discontinued operations $ 1.26 3 1.26

Net income apygj)l‘ic‘able o ‘ébfnmon shareholders $ 1.30 $ 1.75

Weighted a‘vera‘ge‘numb‘er of common shares outstanding 40,068 38,409
Diluted earnings pe(;share: ‘

Income a‘pplicablel o common shareholders before discontinued operations $ 1.25 $ 126

Net income applicable to common éhareholders $ 1.29 $ 1.74

Weighted éveréée numbér‘of commeon shares and common share equivalents outstanding 40,270 38,649

(24) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 13, 2005, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P. compieted a five-year interest rate swap agreement in-a notional amount of $20.0 miifion. The interest rate
swap effectively locks 30-day'LIBOR at 4.00% on $20.0 million of our variable rate borrowings. The interest rate swap is effective February 1, 2005 and matures
February 1, 2010 | |

On February 14, 2005, Prentiss Office Investors, L.P., which is owned 51% by our operating partnership and its affiliates and 43% by Stichting Pensioenfonds
ABP, acquired from an unrelated third party, a two building office complex with abproximately 197,000 net rentable square feet. The properties are located in
Herndon, Virginiaa:ud were acquired for gross proceeds of $51.5 million. Each partner contributed their pro rata share of the purchase price to Prentiss Office

Investors, L.P. for the acquiéition. Amounts contributed from the operating partnership were funded with proceeds from our revolving credit facility.

On March 10, 2005, we‘ entered into @ Purchase Agreement pursuant to which a trust, which was formed by us on February 24, 2005 (the “Trust”), will issue
$26,250,000 and $25,000,000 of trust preferred equity securities (the “Capital Securities”) to each of Taberna Preferred Funding 1, Ltd. and Merrill Lynch
International ‘resp‘ejétive!y ‘in‘»a private placement pursuant to an applicable exemption from registration. The transactions contemplated by the Purchase
Agreement will oﬁéur on oribefore March 15, 2005. The Capital Securities will mature on March 30, 2035 (all dates listed in this summary assume a closing
date of March 15, 2005), but may be redeemed at our option beginning on March 30, 2010. The Capital Securities will require quarterly distributions by the
Trust to the holde‘r“s ‘of the Capital Securities, at a variable rate which will reset quarterly at the LIBOR rate pius 1.25%. Distributions will be cumulative and will

accrue from ihe déte of original issuance but may be deferred by us for up to 20 consecutive quarterly periods.

9B




The proceeds of the Capital Securities received by the Trust, along with proceeds of $1,586,000 received by the Trust from the issuance of comman securities
(the “Common Securities”) by the Trust to Prentiss Properties Limited, inc., a company subsidiary, will be used to purchase $52,836,000 of junior subordi-
nated notes (the “Notes”), to be issued by Prentiss Properties Acquisition Partners, L.P. pursuant to an indenture (the “Indenture”) to be entered into, as of

the closing date provided above, between Prentiss Properties Acquisition Partners, L.P. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as trustee.

The Notes will mature on March 30, 2035, but we may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, beginning on March 30, 2010 in accordance with the provisions
of the Indenture. The Notes bear a variable rate which will reset quarterly at the LIBOR rate plus 1.25%. Interest is cumulative and will accrue from the date

of original issuance but may be deferred by us for up to 20 consecutive quarterly periods.
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Prentiss Properties
3890 West Northwest Highway Suite 400 Dallas Texas 75220 214.654.0886 www.prentissproperties.com




